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Dear Shareholders,

Entering fiscal 2007, we set in motion an aggressive five-year strategy focused on maximizing cash flow from operations,
identifying and closing accretive acquisitions and enhancing our ability to integrate new businesses. Fiscal 2007 proved to
be a record year for KMG by virtually all financial measures, Success was a result of our strong wood treating businesses
and the substantial expansion over fiscal 2006 of our Animal Health segment. We launched a new product, AVENGER?
an insecticidal cattle ear tag, which we acquired through our February 2006 acquisition from Boehringer Ingelheim.

We improved margins, return on equity, and ended the year with an even stronger balance sheet. Revenue increased by

26% with a resultant significant increase in net income.

Strong Financial Performance

In fiscal 2007, net sales rose 26% to $89.8 million, and net income grew 134% to $8.8 million or $0.80 per diluted
share, In 2006, net income included a non-cash impairment charge of $2.4 million associated with the Company’s MSMA

agricultural product. Excluding the impairment charge in the prior year, net income rose 67% in 2007.

Financial Highlights
(thousands, except per share amounts)

Net Sales $89,785 371,016 $59,168 $35,536
Gross Profit 30,843 23,858 18,066 11,291
Operating Income 14,585 6,688 5,402 3,142
Net Income 8,849 3,776 3,052 1,917

2007 2006 2005 2003

Earnings per Diluted Share 0.80 0.40 0.37 0.25
Weighted Average Diluted Shares Outstanding 11,034 9,447 8,256 7,550

Total Assets 81,233 72,702 61,103 32,337
Shareholders’ Equity 56,410 46,918 32,888 23,029
Long-term Debt 10,468 13,981 17,644 4,250

Depreciation and Amortization 3,832 3,889 2,204 1,423
Non-Cash impairment Charge - 2,368 - -

* The results for 2006 include a non-cash impairment charge of $2,368 associated with the Company’s MSMA product.

Segment Highlights

Wood Treating Chemicals: Stable Products Producing Strong Cash Flow
Demand for our wood treating chemicals - pentachlorophenol and creosote — was near record levels during fiscal 2007,
driven by continued strong demand for utility poles and rail ties. Our penta revenues increased 2% to $28.4 miliion as

compared ta fiscal 2006, and creosote revenues were up 42% to $43.6 million, due to increased pricing we instituted to




pass along our cost increases. The Railway Tie Association is currently forecasting
demand for rail ties to be relatively flat in 2008. We anticipate the same for utility
pole demand. These core businesses have grown significantly over the years
through acquisition and optimization of operations, and now generate stable

cash flow for KMG and serve as a solid base for the Company's further expansion.

Animal Health: Robust Growth Stemming from 2006 Acquisition
Revenues in our Animal Health segment increased 63% in fiscal 2007 to $14.1
million, driven by two factors: the success of aur new insecticidal cattle ear tag,
and the conclusion of a transitional distribution agreement we had in place with
Boehringer Ingelheim during fiscal 2006, which had the effect of raising prices
realized for the acquired product lines. Qur AVENGER® insecticidal cattle ear tag
introduced a novel active ingredient that has proven to be highly effective in
controlling parasitic flies on cattle, Additionally, it is the only tag on the market
that has not demonstrated fly resistance. We believe AVENGER® will be the #1
selling ear tag in calendar 2007, its first year on the market. Of note, there are 92
million cattle in the US, and the majority of the market is untapped. We are also
pursuing the South American market. Brazil’s cattle herd alone is twice the size
of the US herd, and the other countries in the southern cone of South America
along with Mexico alsc have large livestock industries. To take advantage of
this, we have hired an experienced animal health sales manager based in South
America, as well as a regulatory professional located at our headquarters to
manage the activities necessary to obtain product registrations throughout Latin
America. Importantly, we manufacture our animal health products in a state-of-
the-art production facility where we can double production with little additional

capital expenditure,

We are very enthusiastic about the long-term opportunities for growth in this
segment, both organically and through acquisitions. We are aiming to grow
Animal Health to a $40-50 million business within five years, and see an identifiable

way forward to achieve this objective.

Sharing Profits with Shareholders

During 2007, we continued our track record of sharing the Company's success
with shareholders. KMG distributed cash dividends totaling $0.075 per share, and
subsequent to year-end, we increased the annualized dividend rate to $0.08.
We continue to believe that shareholders shoutd benefit from the Company’s

growth through both dividends and potential growth in share value.




Comparison of Five Year Cumulative Total Return*

Among KMG Chemicals, Inc., The NASDAQ Composite Index,
The DJ Wilshire Specialty Chemiicals Index and the S&P Small Cap Specialty Chemicals Index
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The graph above compares our cumulative total stockholder return since July 31, 2602, with the NASDAQ Composite Index, the

DJ Wilshire Specialty Chemicals Index and the S&P Small Cap Specialty Chemicals Index. The graph assumes that the value of
the investment in our common stock and each index {including reinvestment of dividends) was $100.00 on july 31, 2002.

Recognition

As KMG continues to grow, the Company is receiving recognition from the investment community and the financial media.
Institutional ownership totaled 41% of shares outstanding as of June 30, 2007, up from 37% the year prior and just 12% at

June 30, 2005. There are now three firms covering KMG in research. Additionally, KMG was ranked #57 on Fortune Small Business’

2007 list of America’s Fastest-Growing Small Public Companies and #130 on Forbes’ 2007 list of the 200 Best Small Companies.

Focused Strategy for Continued Growth

We are focused on continuing to grow KMG primarily by acquiring and optimizing businesses that are accretive to cash
flow and earnings. We remain committed to mature specialty chemical product lines serving niche markets, which are
Following an acquisition, KMG  IpHERIRUEEY Generie Consolidation  Maturity

operates with lower overhead
costs thus creating operating

P . KMG
efficiencies. The company also ’Paten! expires ‘becomes
improves product quality, interested

stability of supply, distribution
efficiencies and customer service.
As a result, KMG expands
profitability and extends the
economic life of its products.
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typically available from large chemical companies that have outgrown the target business. Qur current operations are in
the industrial wood treating, animal health and agricultural markets, and to reach our growth objectives, we are seeking
to develop a new platform in industrial chemicals. This market is highly fragmented, and we believe there is significant
opportunity to bring product lines to KMG that meet our investment criteria. We have targeted specific market sectors
within the industrial chemical space and are actively pursuing opportunities. We will also continue to focus on animal
health, as we believe this market provides the opportunity to grow to a dominant position in the US with further

expansion into international markets.

We follow a disciplined strategy and systematic pracess for identifying, evaluating and pursuing acquisitions, as highlighted

by the graphic below.
Suspect
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Meeting our growth objectives will be challenging but it is achievable. There are three core competencies that are key to
KMG's success. First is maximizing free cash flow from operations, which provides the ability to pursue acquisitions. The
second is identifying and closing on acquisitions that meet our criteria and metrics. And the third is effective and efficient

integration of new businesses minimizing the time
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Solid Balance Sheet to Support Continued Growth

Our balance sheet s strong and we are well positioned to acquire a sizeable business at a time when other potential
acquirers may be suffering through this latest credit crunch. At July 31, 2007, the Company had cash of $16.0 million,
up from $11.2 million at 2006 year-end; working capital of $28.7 millicn, up from $19.6 million; long-term debt of $10.5

million, down fram $14.0 million; and shareholders’ equity of $56.4 million, up from $47.0 million.

Outlook |

| fully expect that KMG will deliver double-digit growth in EPS in fiscal 2008. We have a robust pipeline of prospect

acquisitions in targeted sectors, which provide opportunities for growth much as we have experienced historically.

We have further increased our acquisition efforts and should be able to expand the number of target opportunities
in fiscal 2008. KMG has moved up the ‘food chain’ and has gained greater credibility in several key sectors, which
improves the quality and number of acquisition targets we assess. | am most optimistic that we will close a notable

acquisition during fiscal 2008.

Longer-term, our goal is to grow to sales of $250 million in five years through a combination of acquisitions and

organic growth.

In summary, | am encouraged by the Company’s 2007 success, and equally enthusiastic about our growth prospects

and in-house capabilities. | iook forward to reporting to you on KMG's continued growth.

Sincerely,
Cj 1. Neal Butler [
J. Neal Butler President, |

President and CEQ Chief Executive Officer U
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PART1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Company Overview

We manufacture, formulate and globally distribute specialty chemicals. We grow primarily by purchasing product lines
and businesses that operate in segments of the specialty chemical industry that:

. provide an opportunity to obtain a significant share of the market segment through further acquisitions and
organic growth;

. are of a size that larger industry participants generally find too small to be attractive;

. have niche products with well established and proven commercial uses;
. offer products that have moved well beyond their discovery phase and into their consolidation phase and

require little or no on-going research and development expenditures; and
. have significant barriers to entry.

We have acquired and currently operate businesses engaged in the industrial wood preserving and agrochemical
segments. We are a leading seller of the wood preserving chemicals pentachlorophenol, or penta, and creosote to industrial
customers who use these preservatives primarily to extend the useful life of utility poles and railroad crossties. We are the
only supplier of penta in North America, and we believe we are the only major supplier of creosote in the United States to
wood treaters who do not produce creosote for their internal use. We are also developing a growing presence as a seller of
agrochemicals, which include animal health pesticides and agricultural chemicals. Our animal health pesticides are used on
cattle, swine and poultry to protect these animals from flies and other pests. Our agricultural chemicals include an herbicide
used primarily for weed control in cotton and along highways.

For the twelve months ended July 31, 2007, we generated revenues of $89.8 million and net income of $8.8 million, On
July 31, 2007, we had total long-term debt, including the current portion, of $14.1 million, cash and cash equivalents of
$16.0 million and total stockholders’ equity of $56.4 million.

Business Strategy

Our goal is to continue to profitably grow in a manner that increases shareholder value. Qur business strategies to
achieve this are:

. Acquire. When we identify market segments exhibiting the characteristics described above, we
systematically approach participants and offer to acquire product lines and businesses that we believe
provide us the opportunity to capture a significant share of the market.

. Optimize. We seck to increase the profitability of our businesses by focusing on customer satisfaction,
pricing policies, consolidating operations, managing raw material purchases and reducing overhead.

. Grow. Once we have entered a new market segment, we grow both organically and through additional
strategic acquisitions. Our organic growth results primarily from expanding into new geographic markets,
increasing the penetration of our products within the markets we serve, and extending our product lines
through new and alternative offerings.

We maintain a conservative balance sheet and adequate cash reserves, which we believe provides us an opportunity to
execute our business strategy through all business and economic cycles.




Business Segments

Wood Preserving Chemicals—Penta and Creosote Segments.  'We supply penta and creosote to industrial customers
who use these products to extend the useful life of wood, primarily utility poles and railroad crossties.

Our penta products include penta blocks, flakes, solutions, sodium penta-and hydrochloric acid, a byproduct of penta
production. Penta is used primarily to treat electric and telephone utility poles, protecting them from insect damage and
decay. We estimate that approximately two million treated utility poles are purchased each year by utility companies in the
United States and that approximately 45% are treated with penta. We manufacture both solid penta blocks and penta flakes at
our facility in Matamoros, Mexico. We sell solid penta to our customers, or make it into a liquid solution of penta concentrate
at our Matamoros, Mexico and Tuscaloosa, Alabama facilities. In the United States, we sell penta primarily in Alabama,
Arkansas, Georgia, Louisiana, Mississippi and Missouri. The hydrochloric acid we produce as a byproduct of penta
production is sold in Mexico for use in the steel and oil well service industries. Our penta segment constituted 32% of our net
sales in fiscal yvear 2007, 39% in fiscal year. 2006 and 33% in fiscal year 2005.

Creosote is a wood preservative used to treat utility poles and railroad crossties. Creosote is produced by the distillation
of coal tar, a by-product of the transformation of coal into coke. We believe that since January 2001, average annual
purchases of wood crossties by United States and Canadian railroads have ranged from approximately 14.0 million to
22.0 million. Almost all wood crossties are treated with creosote. We believe that less than 10% of utility poles are treated
with creosote annually. We sell creosote to wood treaters throughout the United States. Our creosote segment constituted
about 48% of our net sales in fiscal year 2007, 43% in fiscal year 2006 and 50% in fiscal ycar 20035,

Agrochemicals—Animal Health Pesticides and Agricultural Chemicals Segments.  We sell animal health pesticides to
protect cattle, swine and poultry from flies and other pests. These animal health pesticides include oral larvicides, ear tags,
sprays and dust products. We manufacture these products at our Elwood, Kansas facility or under agrecments with third-party
formulators. These products are sold under the trade names Avenger, Rabon, Ravap, Patriot and Annihilator, among others.
We purchased the Rabon and Ravap product lines in fiscal years 2003 and 2004, respectively. The Rabon and Ravap
products contain tetrachlorvinphos and include oral larvicides, insecticidal powders and liquid sprays. We sell these products
in the United States and Canada. In February 2006, we expanded our presence in animal health pesticides by purchasing
additional product lines, including ear tags for cattle, along with several liquid and dust formulations for livestock and their
premises. These products are sold in'the United States, Canada, Australia, Mexico and several other countries in Latin
America. Qur animal health pesticides segment comprised 16% of our net sales in fiscal year 2007, 12% in fiscal year 2006
and 8% in fiscal years 2005.

Our agricultural chemicals consist of an herbicide, known as MSMA,. which we manufacture at our Matamoros, Mexico
facility. Our MSMA herbicides are used primarily for weed control in cotton fields and along highways. MSMA is also used
in Latin America to protect cotton and sugarcane fields. This product line was the subject of an impairment charge in fiscal
year 2006 of $2.4 million. Our agricultural chemicals segment constituted 4% of our net sales in fiscal year 2007, 6% in
fiscal year 2006 and 7% in fiscal year 2005.

Suppliers

We depend on outside suppliers for all of the raw materials needed to produce our penta products, and are subject to
fluctuations in the price of those materials. The principal raw materials used for our penta products are chlorine, phenol and
cosolvent, each of which we purchase from a limited number of supplicrs. We purchase almost all of the creosote we sell
under long term contracts from two suppliers, VFT Belgium N.V. and Koppers, Inc. Our creosote supply agreements with
cach of them provide that we purchase an agreed minimum volume of creosote in each calendar year at a fluctuating, -
mutually agreed or formula-based price. The creosote supply agreement we entered into with Koppers in fiscal year 2007 is
for an initial term ending in 2017. ‘

We generally have more than one source for raw materials for our animal health pesticides and agricultural chemicals.
However, we have only one major supplier of the tetrachlorvinphos active ingredient used in our Rabon and Ravap products,
from whom we buy under a supply agreement, and one minor. supplier for that ingredient. Our major supplier for the active
ingredient in cur Rabon products sells us the product at an agreed price under a contract that expires July 2009 and is subject
to automatic renewal. We also have only one supplier for two other animal health active ingredients, dichlorvos and
endosulfan, but we have supply agreements for each of them. We believe that where we do not have supply contracts, the
necessary raw materials are available from a variety of sources.




Customers

We sell our wood treating chemicals and our agrochemicals to approximately 135 customers. No customer accounted
for 10% or more of our revenues in fiscal years 2007 or 2006, but one customer for our wood preserving chemicals, Koppers,
accounted for approximately 10% of our revenugs in fiscal year 2005. No other customer accounted for 10% or more of our
revenues in fiscal years 2005. Assuming that the level of overall demand for wood preserving chemicals remains the same,
we do not believe that the loss of any major customer, including Koppers, would have a material adverse effect on sales of
our wood preserving chemicals,

Marketing

In fiscal year 2007, we marketed our wood preserving chemicals and animal health pesticides in the United States
through five employees and one independent sales agent. We sell our MSMA products exclusively through Drexel Chemical
Company in the United States, and produce MSMA for sale under their registration. in general, under our MSMA agreement
with Drexel Chemical Company, we cach cover our costs of production or sales and share equally in the profits. Outside the
United States, we sell our products directly and through sales agents. The animal health pesticides line we purchased from
Boehringer Ingelheim in February 2006 was marketed and sold by Bochringer Ingelheim as our sole United States distributor
under a transition agreement that ended in July 2006. Since then we have been directly marketing these products.

Geographical Information

Sales made to customers in the United States were 96% of total revenues in fiscal year 2007, 97% in fiscal year 2006
and 98% in fiscal year 2005. The balance of our sales in each of those fiscal years was made to foreign customers, primarily
in Latin America, As of the end of fiscal year 2007, our property, plant and equipment were allocated, based on book value,
68% in the United States and 32% in Mexico where our penta manufacturing facility is located. '

Competition

There are only a few firms competing with us in the sale of our wood preserving chemicals and our other products. We
compete by selling our products at competitive prices and maintaining a strong commltmem to product quality and customer
service.

The principal wood preserving chemicals for industrial users are penta, creosote and chromated copper arsenate, or
CCA. We supply United States industrial users with both penta and creosote, but not CCA. We are the only manufacturer of
penta in North America. Penta is used primarily to treat electric, telephone and other utility peles, to protect them from insect
damage and decay. We estimate that approximately two million treated utility poles are purchased each year by utility
companies in the United States. Of that amount, we estimate approximately 45%, or 900,000 utility poles, are treated with
penta and that 5%, or 100,000 utility poles, are treated with creosote. The remaining poles are treated primarily with CCA.
We believe that we have provided and will continue to provide the wood treating industry in the United States with most of
its annual consumption of creosote not produced for internal use.

In the animal health pesticides segment, we compete with several companies, particularly in the production and
marketing of ear tags. Two firms, Albaugh, Inc. and Luxembourg-Pamol, Inc., compete with us in the sale of MSMA. In
addition, we compete for product sales in weed control in cotton fields with the glyphosate herbicides sold by several
companies, including Monsanto Company.

Our wood preserving chemicals and our agrochemicals must be registered prior to sale under United States law. See “~-
Environmental and Safety Matters—Licenses, Permits and Product Registrations”. As a condition to registration, any
company wishing to manufacture and sell these products must provide to the EPA substantial scientific research and testing
data regarding the chemistry and toxicology of the products. This data must be generated by the applicant, or the applicant
must purchase the information. from other data providers. Wé believe that the cost of satisfying the data submission
requirement serves as an impediment to the entry of new competitors, particularly those with lesser financial resources. While
we have no reason to believe that the product registration requirement will be discontinued or materially modified, we cannot
give any assurances as to the effect of such a discontinuation or modification on our competitive position.




Employees

' ¢

As of the end of fiscal year 2007, we had a total of 118 full-time employees. Nineteen of our employees worked at our
corporate offices in Houston, Texas, 71 at the Matamoros facility, 9 in Alabama, 15 in Kansas at our animal health operating
facility and one each in Louisiana, Missouri, Virginia and North Carolina. None of our employees in the United States are
represented by a labor union. Approximately 50% of our employees in Mexico are represented under a labor contract which
was renewed in May 2007. We believe that we have good relations with our employees.

Environmental and Safety Matters

Our operations are subject to.extensive federal, state and local laws, regulations and ordinances in the United States and
abroad relating to the generation, storage, handling, emission, disposal, transportation and discharge of certain materials,
substances and waste into the environment, and various other health and safety matters. Governmental authorities have the
power to enforce compliance with their regulations; and violators may be subject to civil, criminal and administrative
penalties, injunctions or both, We must devote substantial financial resources to ensure cornpliance, and we believe that we
are in substantial compliance with all the applicable laws and regulations. '

We anticipate that the regulation of our business operations under federal, state and local environmental regulations in
the United States and abroad will increase and become more stringent over time. We cannot estimate the impact of increased
and more stringent regulation on our operations, future capital expenditure requirements or the cost of compliance.

United States Regulation. The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as
amended, also known as “CERCLA” and the “Superfund” law, and comparable state laws generally impose joint and several
liability for costs of investigation and remediation and for natura! resource damages, without regard to fault or the legality of
the original conduct, on certain classes of persons with respect to the release into the environment of substances designated
under CERCLA as hazardous substances. These persons include the owner or operator of the site where the release occurred
and companies that disposed or arranged for the disposal of the hazardous substance at the site. These liabilities can arise in
association with the properties where operations were conducted, as well as in association with the disposal facilities where
wastes were sent. Under CERCLA, such persons may be liable for the costs of cleaning up the hazardous substances that
have been released into the environment, for damages to natural resources and for the costs of certain health studies. Many
states have adopted comparable or more stringent state statutes. In the course of our operations, we may have generated and
may generate materials that fall within CERCLA’s definition of hazardous substances. We may be the owner or operator of
sites on which hazardous substances have been released and may have generated hazardous substances that have been
transported to or otherwise released upon offsite facilities. We may be responsible under CERCLA for all or part of the costs
to clean up facilities at which such substances have been released by previous owners or operators and offsite facilities to
which our wastes were transported and for associated damages to natural resources.

The Federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended ("RCRA™) and comparable state laws, regulate the
treatment, storage, disposal, remediation and transportation of wastes including those designated as “hazardous wastes™. The
EPA and various state agencies have limited-the disposal options for these wastes and impose numerous regulations upon the
treatment, storage, disposal, remediation and transportation of those wastes. It is possible that our operations may generate
wastes that are subject to RCRA and comparable statc statutes. Furthermore, wastes generated by our operations that are
currently exempt from treatment as hazardous wastes may be designated in the future as hazardous wastes under RCRA or
other applicable statutes and, therefore, may be subject to more rigorous and costly treatment, storage and disposal
requirernents.

The Clean Water Act imposes restrictions and strict controls regarding the discharge of wastes into waters of the United
States. The Clean Water Act, and comparable state laws, provide for civil, criminat and administrative penalties for
unauthorized discharges of hazardous substances and of other pollutants. In the event of an unauthorized discharge of wastes,
we may be liable for penalties and could be subject to injunctive relief.

Our operations are also governed by laws and regulations relating to workplace safety and worker health, principalily the
Occupational Safety and Health Act and its regulations. The Occupational Safety and Health Act hazard communication
standard, the EPA’s community right-to-know regulations and similar state programs may require us to organize and/or
disclose information about hazardous materials used or produced in our operations. We believe that we are in substantial
compliance with these applicable requirements. o ’
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Mexico Regulation. QOur Matamoros facility and its operations in Mexico are subject to various environmental laws,
regulations and ordinances promulgated by governmental authorities in Mexico. The Ministry of the Environment and
Natural Resources { Secretariate de Medio Ambiente ¥ Recursos Naturales ) is given overall responsibility for environmental
regulation in Mexico, Secretariate de Medio Ambiente Y Recursos Narurales ' responsibilities include enforcement of
Mexico’s laws and regulations concerning air and water emissions and hazardous waste treatment, storage and disposal.
Secretariate de Medio Ambiente Y Recursos Naturales 1s given broad authority to enforce compliance with environmental
laws and regulations and can require that operations be suspended pending completion of required remedial action.

Licenses, Permits and Product Registrations.  Certain licenses, permits and product registrations are required for our
products and operations in the United States, Mexico and other countries in which we do business. The licenses, permits and
product registrations are subject to revocation, modification and renewal by governmental authorities. In the United States in
particular, producers and distributors of chemicals such as penta, creosote, tetrachlorvinphos and MSMA are subject to
registration and notification requirements under federal law (including under the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and
Rodenticide Act (“FIFRA™) and the Toxic Substances Control Act, and comparable state law) in order to sell those products
in the United States. Compliance with these requirements has had, and in the future will continue to have, a material effect on
our business, financial condition and results of operations. Under FIFRA, the registration system requires an ongoing
submission to the EPA of substantial scientific research and testing data regarding the chemistry and toxicology of pesticide
products by manufacturers, Under agreements with other industry participants, we share most research and testing costs
pertaining to our chemical products. We incurred expenses of approximately $1.5 million in fiscal year 2007, $1.2 million in
fiscal year 2006 and $990,000 in fiscal year 2005 in connection with the research, testing and other expenses related to our
participation in several industry task forces.

Environmental Regulatory Proceedings. The Florida Department of Environmental Protection (“FDEP”) is cleaning
up a Flonda site known as the Seminote Refinery/St. Marks Refinery Site. In October 2003, we received correspondence
from the FDEP regarding past operations of [dacon, Inc. on this site. One of our subsidiaries purchased substantially all of
Idacon’s assets, which did not include the refinery site, in 1988. This site is alleged to be contaminated with dioxins,
pentachlorophenol and other contaminants. The FDEP alleged in its October 2003 letter that we may be responsible for
violations at the site. We have received no further correspondence or demands from the FDEP. We cannot assure you that the
FDEP will not designate us as a potentially responsible party.

The EPA has listed the Star Lake Canal Superfund Site in Port Neches and Groves, Texas on the National Priorities List.
In December 2002, we received a letter from the EPA addressed to 1dacen, Inc. (f/k/a Sonford Chemical Company) notifying
Idacon of potential liability under CERCLA in connection with this site. The letter requested reimbursement from Idacon for
costs incurred by the EPA in responding to releases at the sites, equal to approximately $500,000 as of July 31, 2002. Idacon
sold substantially all of its assets to one of cur subsidiaries in 1988. We responded to a request for information from the EPA
on the corporate history and relationship between us and Sonford Chemical Company in April 2003, We have received no
additional correspondence from the EPA. However, on December 22, 2005, the EPA and certain potentially responsible
partics entered an administrative order on consent which requires the implementation of a several year long remedial
investigation and feasibility study. A remedy, if any, will not be selected until studies are complete, a proposed remedy plan
is released for public comment, and the EPA issues a record of decision documenting the basis for selecting its remedy or
decision that no further action is required. We cannot assure you that the EPA will not designate us as a potentially
responsible party.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risks described below, together with all of the other information included in this
report. We believe the risks and uncertainties described below are the most significant we face. The occurrence of any of the
Jollowing risks could materially harm our business, financial condition or results of operations. In that case, the trading
price of our common stock could decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment. Additional risks and uncertainties
not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may alse impair our operations.

Risks Relating to Our Business
We may experience a reduced demand for our wood preserving chemicals if the demand for the wood products on which

those chemicals are used decreases, which may adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flow and
financial condition,




Our wood preserving chemicals, penta and creosote, which represented 80% of our total revenues in fiscal year 2007,
are sold into mature markets. The principal consumers of our wood preserving chemicals are industrial wood treating
companies who use our products to protect wood utility poles and railroad crossties from insect damage and decay. Although
these products are sold into relatively stable markets, the demand for treated wood generally increases or decreases with the
financial strength and maintenance budgets of clectric utilities and railroad companies.

Penta is used primarily to treat utility poles in the United States. In recent years, utility pole demand has generally
declined, as we believe electric utilities in the United States have reduced their maintenancé spending due to competitive
pressures arising from deregulation. Although utility pole demand has recently increased, deregulation may continue to affect
negatively the utility pole market.

The preservation of wood railroad crossties represents the largest market for creosote in the United States. We believe
that since January 2001 average annual purchases of wood crossties by United States and Canadian railroads have ranged
from approximately 14.0 million to 22.0 million. In fiscal year 2007, purchases reached the top end of this range but are now
declining somewhat. If the current purchase rate continues to decline, or if railroads shift significantly to a greater use of non-
wood ties, such as those made with concrete or plastic, we will experience a decline in our creosote sales.

A decline in either utility pole or wood crosstie sales could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.
Increases in the price of our prrmary raw materials may decrease our profitability and adversely affect our liguidity ami
cash flow.

Chlorine is a key component in the manufacture of penta. The price we pay for chlorine has more than quadrupled since
fiscal year 2002. Although we have been able to achieve significant price increases for penta since July 2002, these increases
have not been sufficient to maintain the previous profitability of that product. High energy prices have increased the
competition for creosote, since it can be burned as a fuel in certain markets and can be used as feed stock in the carbon black
market. Creosote is produced by our suppliers from the distitlation of coal tar. Coal tar supplies, particularly in the United
States, are in short supply, a situation which we expect will continue indefinitely. Historically, the cost of our creosote has
increased each year, and we believe that it will continue to increase. »

The prices we pay for our raw materials have increased significantly in the last several years, and we have not always
been able to pass those increases through to our customers fully and timely. In the future, we may be unable to pass on
increases in our raw material costs, and raw material price increases may erode the profitability of our products by reducing
our gross margins. Price increases for raw materials may also increase our working capital needs, which could affect
adversely our liquidity and cash flow. For these reasons, we cannot assure you that raw material cost increases will not have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

If our products are not re-registered by the EPA or are re-registered subject to new restrictions, our abu’:ry o sell our
products may be curtailed or significantly limited.

Our creosote, penta and MSMA products, and many of our animal health products, are presently undergoing re-
registration review by the EPA under FIFRA. We have submitted and will submit a wide range of scientific data to support
our U.S. reglstrations In order to be re- reglstered we are required to demonstrate, among other things, that our products will
not cause unreasonable adverse effects on human health or the environment when used according to approved label
directions. The EPA has issued its preliminary risk assessments for creosote and penta, and has identified certain risks to
human health and the environment. In August 2006, the EPA issued a preliminary re-registration eligibility decision and
concluded that MSMA is not eligible for re- -registration. Alone and with other registrants of these products, we have provided
and will provide comments and data on the preliminary risk assessment for creosote and penta, and on the re-registration
eligibility decision for MSMA, to show to the EPA that our products do not pose unreasonable risk to human health and the
environnient when used in accordance with approved label directions. We cannot assure you as to when or if the EPA will
issue a final decision concluding that our creosote and penta products, and-our animal health pesticides and agricultural
chemicals, do not pose an unreasonable risk to human health or the environment when used in accordance with approved
label directions. We also cannot assure you as to when or if those products will be re-registered by the EPA, or if re-
registered, what use or labeling restrictions might be required to obviate or mitigate risks identified by the EPA. Even if our
products are re-registered by the EPA, we cannot assure you that our products will niot be subject to further data submission
requirements, or subject to use or labeling restrictions, that have an adverse effect on our financial position and results of
operations. The failure of our current or future-acquired products to be re-registered by the EPA or the imposition of new use,
labeling or other restrictions in connection with re-registration would have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations.




Our products may be rendered obsolete or less attractive by changes in regulatory, legislative, and industry requirements
or by supply-chain driven pressures te shift to environmentally preferable alternatives.

Changes in regulatory, legislative and industry requirements, or changes driven by supply-chain pressures, may shift
current customers away from products using penta, creosote or certain of our other products and toward alternative products
that are believed to have fewer environmental effects. The EPA, foreign and state regulators, local governments, private
environmental advocacy organizations and a number of large industrial companies have proposed or adopted policies
designed to decrease the use of a variety of chemicals, including penta, creosote and others included in certain of our
products. Our ability to anticipate changes in regulatory, legislative, and industry requirements, or changes driven by supply-
chain pressures, will be a significant factor in our ability to remain competitive. Further, we may not be able to comply with
changed or new regulatory or industrial standards that may be necessary for us to remain competitive.

We cannot assure you that the EPA, foreign and state regulators and local governments will not restrict the uses of
penta, creosote or certain of our other products or ban the use of one or more of these products, or that the companies who
use our products may decide to reduce significantly or cease the use of our products voluntarily." As a result, our products
may become obsolete or less attractive to our customers.

We are dependent on a limited number of suppliers for cosolvemt, creosote and one of our animal health pesticides, the
loss of any one of which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

We depend on two major suppliers for the cosolvent needed to produce the liquid formulation of our penta product. Both
of these suppliers produce cosolvent as a byproduct of a process intended to manufacture a higher value product. Changes in
that process or in market conditions affecting the higher value product could materially affect the availability or price of
cosolvent. Our creosote is supplied primarily by two suppliers. There are no other significant suppliers of creosote for the
North American market. We have one major supplier and one minor supplier of the tetrachlorvinphos active ingredient for
our Rabon and Ravap products, and only one supplier for each of two other active ingredients in our ammal health pesticides,
dichlorvos and endosulfan. .

If we were to lose any of these suppliers, we might have difficulty securing a replacement supplier at reasonable cost,
and no assurance can be given that such loss would not have a material adverse effect on our financial condmon and results
of operations.

Weather may impact our ability to conduct business adversely.

The supplier of approximately one-haif of our creosote is based in Europe. As such, we are dependent on terminals
located in coastal areas for the importation of a substantial portion of the creosote we use. These terminals are vulnerabie to
hurricanes and other adverse weather conditions that have the potential to cause substantial damage to terminal facilities and
interrupt our importation of creosote, For example, in 2005 Hurricane Katrina forced us to close our terminal in New Orleans,
Louisiana temporarily and locate an interim substitute terminal. We cannot assure you that'adverse weather conditions will
not affect our importation of creosote in the future, the occurrence of which could have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operations.

If we are unable to identify, fund and execute new acquisitions, we will not be able to execute a key element of our
business strategy. '

Our strategy is to grow primarily by acquiring additional businesses and product lines. We cannot assure you that we
will be able to identify, acquire or profitably manage additional businesses and product lines, or successfully integrate any
acquired business or product line without substantial expenses, delays or other operational or financial difficulties. Financing
for acquisitions may not be available, or may be available only at a cost or on terms and conditions that are unacceptable to
us. Further, acquisitions may involve a number of special risks or effects, including diversion of management’s attention,
failure to retain key acquired personnel, unanticipated events or circurnstances, legal liabilities, impairment of acquired
intangible assets and other one-time or ongoing acquisition-related expenses. Some or all of these special risks or effects
could have a material adverse effect on our financial and operating results. In addition, we cannot assure you that acquired
businesses or product lines, if any, will achieve anticipated revenues and earnings.




The consideration we pay in connection with an acquisition also may affect our financial results. If we were to proceed
with one or more significant acquisitions in which the consideration included cash, we could be required to use a substantial
portion of our available cash or obtain debt or equity financing. To the extent that we issue shares of our capital stock or other
rights to purchase shares of our common stock as consideration for an acquisition or in connection with the financing of an
acquisition, including options or other rights, our ex1st1ng cornmon shareholders may be diluted, and our earnings per share
may decrease. .

If we are unable to successfully position ourselves in smaller niche markets, our business may be adversely affected.

. . We are positioned in smaller niche markets that have been or are being abandoned by larger chemical companies.
These markets tend not to attract larger chemical companies due to lower volume demand. As a result, larger chemical
companies have been divesting themselves of products and businesses that fall into these smaller markets where our
acquisition efforts are focused. Larger companies sometimes market and sell newer competing products using other
technologies or containing different active ingredients, and their.sales efforts may shift demand to these newer products and
depress sales of the older products. Thus, we cannot assure you that we will be successful or continue to be successful in
niche markets. :

The specialty chemical industry is highly competitive, and we may not be able m compete effectively with our compeumrs,
which could adversely impact our results of operations.

The specialty chemical industry is highly competitive. Competition in specialty chemicals is based upon.a number of
considerations, such as the size of our competitors, competition for raw materials, product innovation, product range and
quality, relationships with customers, reliability of delivery, technical support and distribution capability, and price. Among
the participants in the specialty chemical industry are some of the world’s largest chemical companies and major integrated
petroleum companies that have their own raw material resources. Some of these companies may be able to produce products
more economically than we can. In addition, some of our competitors have greater financial resources, which may enable - .
them to invest significant capital into their businesses, including expenditures for research and development. If any of our
current or future competitors develops proprietary technology that enables them to produce products at a significantly lower
cost, our technology could be rendered uncconomical or obsolete. Increased competition in any of our business segments
could compet us to reduce the price we receive for our products, which could result in reduced profit margins and/or loss of
market share.
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Restrictions in our debt agreements could limit our growth and our ability to respond to changing conditions.

Our revolving credit facility and the senior credit facility with Wachovia Bank, N.A. contain a number of significant
covenants which affect our ability to take certain actions and restrict our ability to incur additional debt. These include
covenants that prohibit acquisitions that are not approved by Wachovia Bank. In addition, our revolving credit facility
requires us to maintain certain financial ratios and satisfy certain financial condition tests, which may require us to take
action to reduce our debt or take some other action to comply with them.

These restrictions could limit our ability to obtain future financings, make needed capital cxpenditures, withstand a
future downturn in our business or the economy in general or otherwise conduct necessary corporate activities. We may also
be prevented from taking advantage of business opportunities that arise because of the limitations that these restrictive
covenants impose on us. '

A breach of any of these covenants would result in a default-under the applicable debt agreement. A default, if not
waived, could result in acceleration of the debt outstanding under the agreement and in a default with respect to, and '
acceleration of, the debt outstanding under our other debt agreements. The accelerated debt would become immediately due
and payable. If that should occur, we may not be able to pay atl such debt or to borrow sufficient funds to refinance it. Even if
new financing were then available, it may not be on terms that are acceptable to us.




The distribution and sale of our products is subject to prior govermmental approvals and thereafter ongoing governmental
regulation. . ' .

Our products are subject to laws admintstered by federal, state and foreign governments, including regulations
requiring registration, approval and labeling of our products. The labeling requirements restrict the use and type of
application for our products. More stringent restrictions could make our products less desirable which would adversely affect
our sales and profitability. All of our products are subject to the EPA’s registration and re-registration requirements, and are
conditionally registered in accordance with FIFRA. Those registration requirements are based, among other things, on data
demonstrating that the product will not cause unreasonable adverse effects on human health or the environment when used
according to approved label directions. All states where our products are used also require registration before they can be
marketed or used in that state.

Governmental regutatory authorities have required, and may require in the future, that certain scientific testing and
data production be provided on our products. We have and are currently furnishing certain required data relative to our
products. Under FIFRA, the federal government requires registrants to submit a wide range of scientific data to support U.S.
registrations. This requirement significantly increases our operating expenses, and we expect those expenses will continue in
the future. Because scientific analyses are constantly improving, we cannot determine with certainty whether or not new or
additionat tests may be required by regulatory authorities. While Good Laboratory Practice standards specify the minimum
practices and procedures which must be followed in order to cnsure the quality and integrity of data related to these tests
submitted to the EPA, there can be no assurance that the EPA will not request certain tests or studies be repeated. In addition,
more stringent legislation or requirements may be imposed in the future. We can provide no assurance that our resources will
be adequate to meet the costs of regulatory compliance, or that the cost of such compliance will not adversely affect our
profitabitity. '

We are subject to extensive environmental laws and regulations and may incur costs that have a material adverse effect on
our financial condition as a result of vielations of or liabilities under environmental laws and regulations.

«  Like other companies involved in environmentally sensitive businesses, our operations and properties are subject to
extensive and stringent federal, state, local and foreign environmental laws and regulations, including those concerning,
among other things:

. the treatment, storage and disposal of wastes;

. .the investigatiox‘l and remediation of contaminated soil and groundwater;

. the discharge of effluents into waterways;

. the emission of substances into the air; and

. other matters relating to environmental protection and various healtih and safety matters.

The EPA and other federal and state agencics, as well as comparable agencies in Mexico and in other countries
where we selt our products, have the authority to promulgate regulations that could have a material adverse impact on our
operations. These environmental laws and regulations may require permits for certain types of operations, requires the
instaliation of expensive pollution control equipment, place restrictions upon operations or impose substantial liability for
pollution resulting from our operations. We expend substantial funds to minimize the discharge of hazardous materials in the
environment and to comply with governmental regulations relating to protection of the environment. Compliance with
environmental and health and safety laws and regulations has resulted in ongoing costs for us, and could restrict our ability to
modify or expand our facilities or continue production, or require us to install costly pollution control equipment or incur
significant expenses, including remediation costs. We have incurred, and expect to continue to incur, significant costs to
comply with environmental and health and safety laws. Federal, state and foreign governmental authorities may seek fines
and penalties, as well as injunctive relief, for violation of the various laws and governmental regulations, and could, among
other things, impaose liability on us for cleaning up the damage resulting from a release of pesticides, hazardous materials or
other chemicals into the environment.




Qur use of hatardous materials exposes us to potential Habilities,

¥

Our manufacturing and distribution of chemical products involve the controlled use of hazardous materials, Qur
operations, therefore, are subject to various associated risks, including chemical spills, discharges or releases of toxic or
hazardous substances or gases, fires, mechanical failure,-storage facility leaks and similar events. Our suppliers are subject to
similar risks which may adversely impact the availability of raw materials. While we adapt our-manufacturing and
distribution processes to the environmental control standards of regulatory authorities, we cannot completely eliminate the -
risk of accidental contamination or injury from hazardous or regulated materials, including injury of our employees,
individuals who handle our products or goods treated with our products, or others who claim to have been exposed to our
products, nor can we completely eliminate the unanticipated interruption or suspension of operations at our facilities due to
such events. We may be held liable for significant damages or fines in the event of contamination or injury, and such
assessed damages or fines could have a material adverse effect on our financial performance.and results of operations. -

Our business success depends significantly on the reliability and sufficiency of our manufacturing facilities.

Our revenues depend significantly on the continued operation of our manufacturing facilities. The operation of our
facilities involves risks, including the breakdown, failure, or substandard operation or performance of equipment, power
outages, explosions, fires, natural disasters and other unscheduled downtime: The occurrence of material operational
problems or the loss or shutdown of our facilities over an extended period of time due to these or-other events could have a
material adverse effect on our financial performance and. operating results. - '

Qur business is subject to many operational risks for which we may not be adequately insured.
t ] . N -

We cannot assure you that we will not incur losses beyond the limits of, or outside the coverage of, our insurance
policies. From time to time, various types of insurance for companies in the chemical industry have not been available on
commercially acceptable terms or, in some cases, have been unavailable. In addition, we cannot assure you that in the future
we will be able to maintain existing coverage or that premiums will not increase substantially. :

" We maintain limited insurance coverage for sudden and accidental environmental-damages. We do not believe that
insurance coverage for environmental damages that occur over time is available at a reasonable cost. Also, we do not believe
that insurance coverage for the full potential liability that could be caused by sudden and accidental incidences 1 is ava:lable at
a reasenable cost. Accordingly, we may be subject to an uninsured or under-insured loss in such cases. :

We may experience a reduction in demand for creosote if our customers dilute creosote with fuel oil prior to treating.

If creosote begins seiling at a premium to fuel oil, it is likely that some of our customers would ditute creosote with
fuel oil. The potential for dilution with fuel oil is a limiting factor on our ability to price creosote. If dilution were to occur on
a widespread basis, we could see a significant declmc in our creosote sales. A de(.Ime in creosote sales could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations.

Our business may be adversely affected by cyclical and seasonal effects.

In general, the chemical industry is cyclical and product demand for certain products is seasonal. Many of our
products are used in industries that are cyclical in nature. Changes affecting these industries ¢an adversely affect our revenues
and margins. Seasonal usage of our chemical products follows varying agricultural seasonal patterns, weather conditions and
weather-related pressure from pests, as well as customer marketing programs and requirements. Weather patterns can have an
impact on our sales, particularly sales of our agricultural chemicals. The end users of some of our products may, because of
weather patterns, delay or intermittently suspend field work during the planting season which may result in a reduction in the
use of some products and therefore reduce our revenues and profitability. There can’be no assurance that we will adequately
address any adversc seasonal effects.

We depend on our senior managemenl team and the loss of any member could adversely affect our operations.

Qur success is dependent on the management and leadership skills of our senior management team, including
J. Neal Butler, our President and Chief Executive Officer, John V. Sobchak, our Chief Financial Officer,’and ~
Roger C. Jackson, our General Counsel. The loss of any member of our senior management team or an inability to attract,
retain and maintain additional qualified personnel could prevent us from implementing our business strategy. We cannot
assure you that we will be able to retain our existing senior management personnel or attract additional qualified personnel
when needed.
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If we are unable to successfully negotiate with the labor unions representing our employees, we may experience a material
work stoppage, . .

More than half of our full-time employees who work at our facility in Matamoros, Mexico, where penta and certain
other products are produced, are represented under a labor contract that is negotiated annually. We cannot assure you that a
new agreement will be reached each year without union action, or that a new agreement will be reached on terms satisfactory
1o us. An extended work stoppage, slowdown or other action by our employees could significantly disrupt our business.
Future labor contracts may be on terms that result in higher labor costs to us, which also could adversely affect our results of
operations, '

We are subject to possible risk of terrorist attacks which could adversely affect our business.

Since September 11, 2001, there have been increasing.concerns that chemical manufacturing facilities and railcars
carrying hazardous chemicals may be at an increased risk of future terrorist attacks. Additionally, federal, state and local
governments have begun a regulatory process that could iead to new regulations impacting the security of chemical industry
facilitics and the transportation of hazardous chemicals. Our business couid be adversely impacted if a terrorist incident were
to occur at.any chemical facility or while a railcar or tank truck was transporting chemicals. In addition, our business could be
affected due to the cost of complying with new regulations. We are not insured against terrorist attacks, and there can be no
assurance that losses that could result from a terrorist attack on one of our facilities, railcars or tank trucks would not have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We are subject to risks inherent in foreign operations, including changes in social, political and economic conditions,

‘We have facilities in the United States and Mexico, and generate a portion of our sales in foreign countries,
primarily in Latin America. In fiscal year 2007, our production facilities in Matamoros, Mexico comprised approximately
32% of our property, plant and equipment, and approximately 4% of our net sales were in foreign countries. Like other
companies with foreign operations and sales, we are exposed to market risks relating to fluctuations in interest rates and
foreign currency exchange rates. We are also exposed to risks associated with changes in the laws and policies governing
foreign investments in Mexico and, to a lesser extent, changes in United States laws and regulations relating to foreign trade
and investment. While such changes in laws, regulations and conditions have not had a material adverse effect on our
business or financial condition, we cannot assure you as to the future effect of any such.changes.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We own or lease the following properties.

. . Owned/ Lease Expiration

Location Primary Use Approximate Size Leased Date

Houston, Texas ............ Corporate Office 8,000 square feet " Leased March 31,
2009

Elwood, Kansas ........... Manufacture and Warehouse: 14.9 acres Qwned N/A

. Animal Health Pesticides ,
Matamoros, Mexico .... Manufacture and Warehouse: Penta 13.0 acres Owned N/A
and MSMA '
Tuscaloosa, Alabama... Formulation and Distribution: Penta 2.0 acres Owned N/A

We manufacture and warehouse certain of our animal health pesticides at our Elwood, Kansas facility. We
manufacture and warehouse penta products and MSMA products at our Matamoros, Mexico facility, and formulate and
distribute penta solutions at our Tuscaloosa, Alabama facility. We believe that all of these properties are adequately insured,
in good condition and suitable for their anticipated future use. We believe that if the lease for our corporate office is not
renewed or is terminated, we can obtain other suitable facilities.

We also have one long-term tank storage agreement with a commercial terminal facility where we store creosote for
distribution, and have several storage agreements with commercial warehouses from which we distribute our agrochemicals.
Our bulk storage terminal is on the Mississippi River near New Orleans at Avondale, Louisiana. That terminal is used
primarily for creosote imported by us from Europe. If our tank storage agreement is not renewed or is terminated, we believe
we can obtain other suitable facilities.




ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On August 8, 2007 a lawsuil was filed against us in Superior Court, Fulton County, Georgia (Atlanta) styled John
Bailey, et al vs Cleveland G. Meredith et al. The plaintiffs are persons living near the wood treating facility of one of our |
customers. The plaintiffs complain that emissions from the wood treating facility have caused harm to their property and
person, and claim that we are also responsible because we sold wood treating chemicals to the facility. The plaintiffs are
seeking damages in an unspecified amount and other remedies, including injunctive relief. We intend to defend the matter
vigorously. As the litigation is in the early stages of the legal process; and given the inherent uncertainties of litigation, the |
ultimate outcome cannot be predicted at this time, nor can the amount of any potential loss be reasonably estimated.

Suit was filed in 1998 against KMG de Mexico respecting the title to the land on which our facility in Matamoros is
located. The plaintiffs claim that their title to the land was superior to the person from whom our subsidiary bought the land.
The suit was filed in Matamoros, Mexico under Adolfo Cazares Rosas, et al vs. KMG de Mexico and Guillermo Villarreal.
The plaintiffs are seeking to have our purchase overturned and to recover the land or its value. We have been defending this
matter vigorously, and in October 2006 the lower court’s judgment in favor of our title was affirmed by the intermediate
appellate court. That judgment has been appealed by the plaintiffs to the federal court (Tribunal Colegiado). The ultimate
outcome of this litigation cannot be determined at this time, nor can the amount of any potential loss be reasonably estimated.

We are periodically a party to other legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of business, We do
not believe that the outcome of any of those matters will have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and operating resuits.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF‘MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY I:IOLDERS

No matter was submitted during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 to a vote of security holders through the solicitation
of proxies or otherwise. '
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PART H

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUES PURCHASER OF EQUITY SECURITIES '

Since May 2006, our common stock, par value $.01 per share, has traded on The Nasdaq Global Market (trading
symbol KMGB), and prior to that date our common stock has been ‘quoted on either the Nasdaq Capital Market or the Nasdag
National Market under the same symbol, As of October 12, 2007, there were 10,911,599 shares of Common Stock issued and
outstanding held by approximately 500 shareholders of record and more than 300 round lot holders. The followmg table
represents: - ‘

(I ! !

. the high and low sale prices for our common stock as reported by the Nasdaq Global Market during fiscal
' - year 2007, ' Co ‘ '
+  the high and low sale prices for our common stock as reported by the Nasdaq National Market durmg the

period from May 1, 2006 through July 31, 2006,

. the high and low sale prices for our common stock as teported by the Nasdaq Capital Market for the f Tst,
second and third quarters of fiscal year 2006; and .

. the semi-annual dividends we declared and paid during fiscal years 2006 and 2007.
Common Stock Prices Dividends Declared
. . High Low _Per Share Amount
Fiscal 2007 ' o
First Quarter............... S 962 3 750 § 00375 $§ 394982
Second Quarter .......... 10.75 8.81
Third Quarter.............. 12.50 9.30 0.0375 395,799
Fourth Quarter ........... 28.25 11.20
Fiscal 2006
First Quarter............... 3 5870 % 6270 § 00375 § 329479
Second Quarter .......... 8.650 6.250
Third Quarter ............. 9.964 8.130 0.0375 330,642
Fourth Quarter ........... 9.670 7.040

We intend to pay out a reasonable share of net cash provided by operations as dividends, consistent on average with
the payout record of past years. We declared and paid a dividend in the first quarter of fiscal year 2008 of $.02 per share, or
approximately $218,000. The quarterly dividend represents an increase in our annualized dividend rate from $0.075 per share
to $0.08 per share. We have paid dividends on a semiannual basis, but in the future we plan to make dividend distributions on
a quarterly basis. The future payment of dividends, however, will be within the discretion of the Board of Directors and
depends on our profitability, capital requirements, financial condition, growth, business opportunities and other factors which
our Board of Directors may deem relevant.

We repurchased no shares in fiscal 2007.




On July 6, 2006, we sold shares of common stock in a public offering underwritten by Boenning & Scattergood, Inc.
and Sterne, Agee & Leach, Inc. In the offering we sold 1,710,000 shares of common stock and selling shareholders sold
1,510,000 shares of common stock. The shares were sold at a price per share of $7.00 (86.51 net of underwriting discounts
and commissions of $.49 per share). After offering expenses, we received $10.5 million in net proceeds from the sale of
1,710,000 shares of common stock. .

On April 21, 2005, we soid 1,200,000 shares of common stock in a private placement. Tontine Capital Partners, L.P.
purchased 1,000,000 shares, and Terrier Partners, L.P. purchased 200,000 shares. The shares were purchased at a price of
$5.00 per share for an aggregate price of $6,000,000. We paid a fee of $275,000 and issued 10,000 treasury shares to
Boenning & Scattergood, Inc., for acting as placement agent in connection with the offering. The securities sold in the
offering were sold in reliance on the exemption from registration in Rule 506 of Regulation D undcr the Securities Act of
1933, as amended and pursuant to the exemption under Section 4(2) of that act.

The following table presents securities authorized for issuance pursuant to options granted under equity
compensation plans (see note 14 to the notes to the consolidated financial statements included in this report):

Weighted- Weighted-
Average Weighted- Average
Range of Shares Remaining Average Shares Exercise
Exercise Price Qutstanding . Contractual Life Exercise Price Exercisable Price
$ 248500 429,500 . 7.8 years $ 3.80 312,500 § 3.62

The following table presents unvested, performance-based restricted stock awarded under equity compensation plans
(see note 14 to the notes to consolidated financial statements included in this report):

Maximum Grants

2005 AWAIAS —o..oeoeeeeeeeeeeeesesesseeseseseseeeseeeseeres e e 48,400
D007 AWAIAS oo eeeree s eessssssas s eresesseeeseeenseenerene 39,750

. In December 2003, we purchased certain penta distribution assets of Wood Protection Products, Inc., and granted an
affiliate of the seller an option to acquire 175,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $2.50 per share. The
option was vested when granted, and is exercisable for five years. The issuance of the option was exempt pursuant to
Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, The option holder has exercised 25,000 shares.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

- The following table shows selected historical consolidated financial data for the five fiscal years ended '
July 31; 2007. The financial data for each of the three fiscal years ended July 31, 2007 has been derived from our audited .
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report. The financial data for each of the two fiscal years ended
July 31, 2004 has been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. The data should be read in conjunction
with our consolidated financial statements and notes to consolidated ﬁnanc:al statements.'

' Year Ended July 31, -
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Operations ﬁata (n:

NEESALES...eiiiiee et $ 89,785 § 71,006 '$ 59,168 $ 43610 S 35,536
Cost O SAIES ..o 58,942 47,158 41,102 30,859 24,245
Gross profit ... e 30,843 23,858 18,066 12,751 11,291
Selling, general & administrative expenses .... 16,258 14,802 12,664 9,636 8,149
Impairment charge ... — 2,368 — — —
Operating INCOME......orvrreereereiniseieennsesessesenses 14,585 6,688 5,402 3,115 3,142
. N ¥

Interest expense ................ e {945) -(1,044) {620) N K1) (162)
Other INCOME ...o..ooiviiriee s 566 246 38 93 2
Total other (€XPense) ... veeeeereeerierrerrrernenn. {(379) (798) (582) 27 (160)
Income before income taxes ........ceevvvivivneene, 14,206 5,890 4,820 2,844 2,982
Provision for income taxes .........cevenne ST (5,357) C(2,114) (1,768) (1,081) (1,065)
NEL INCOME. ..ot s e $ 8849 § - 3776 § ' 3,052 % 1,763 % 1,917
Earnings per share--basic ............c.cococeurninnnnn. s 084 % 042 § 039 % 023 % 0.26
Earnings per share—diluted..........ccovvrvvnnnrne S 080 § 040 § 037 % 023 § 0.25
Weighted average shér_es outstanding— '

BASIC v 10,573 8914 7.901 7,543 7,513
Weighted average shares outstandmg——

dlluled TS R —— 11,034 9,447 8,256 7,631 7,550
Cash Flow Data (1): : ) : ‘ '
Net cash provided by operating activities....... 3 8968 3 7086 % 7,563 § 3735 § 3,095
Net cash used in investing activities .......covo. (802) (10,967) (13,442) (11,816) (4,424)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing

ACHIVITIES .vovet i rcr e s saecsane (3.330y 6,269 13,685 7,565 1,585
Payment of dividends ........cocoooeveviieiiiininnnnen. 791 660 529 ' 452 394
Depreciation and amortization...........c.cceeeeeene 3,832 3,889 2,204 1,643 1,423
[mpairment charge ... — 2,368 — — —
Additions to property, plant and equipment.... 581 2,085 445 972 276
Balance Sheet Data (1):
TOtal ASSELS .ouvvereevirererrere s $ 81,233 § 72,702 §  6L,103 0§ 43240 S5 32,337
Long-term debt, net of current portion ...... 10,468 13,981 17,644 11,235 © 4250
Total stockholders’ equity ......ccccovvvirieieniens 56,410 46,918 32,888 24,590 23,029

(1) Our historical results are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected for any future period. The comparability of
the data is affected by our acquisitions in fiscal 2006, 2005, 2004 and 2003, and by the adoption of SFAS 142 in fiscal 2003,
the adoption of SFAS 123(R) in fiscal year 2006, and the impairment of MSMA assets in fiscal year 2006. See, “ltem 7,
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations.”
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATION

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in
conjunction with the “Selected Financial Data” section of this report and our consolidated financial statements and the
related notes and other financial information included elsewhere in this report. In addition to historical financial
information, the following discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and
assumptions. QOur actual results and timing of selected events may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-
looking statements as a result of many factors, including those discussed under the section entitled “'Risk Factors " and
elsewhere in this report,

Introduction

We manufacture, formulate and globally distribute specialty chemicals. We operate businesses engaged in industrial
wood preservation and agrochemicals, including animal health pesticides and agricultural chemicals. Our wood preserving
chemicals, penta and creosote, are used by our industrial customers primarily to extend the useful life of utility poles and
railroad crossties. Our animal health pesticides are used on cattle, swine and poultry to protect these animals from flies and
other pests. Our agricultural chemicals include an herbicide used primarily for wced control in cotton and sugarcane ﬁelds
and along highways.

Approximately 80% of our fiscal year 2007 revenues resulted from industrial wood preservation chemicals, with
approximately 48Y% of those revenues attributable to creosote and 32% attributable to penta. Agrochemicals accounted for the
remaining 20% of our fiscal year 2007 revenues, with 16% attributable to animal health pesticides and 4% atmbutable to our
agricultural chemicals.

Our results of operations are impacted by various competitive and other factors including:

. fluctuations in sales volumes;

. raw material pricing and availability; '
. our ability to acquire and integrate new products and businesses; and

. the difference between prices received by us for our specialty chemical products and the cdsts to

produce those products.

Raw material prices have increased over the past several years, including the cost of our primary raw materials,
chlorine, phenol, creosote and cosolvent. We have not always been able to pass these price increases on to our customers. As
a result, the margins for some of our products have been reduced.

Our sales volumes, especially those of our wood preserving chemicals, have increased due to the continued strong
demand for utility poles and railroad crossties and our ability to strengthen our market position.

We experience large fluctuations in the quarterly sales volumes of our agricultural products due to seasonal
agricultural patterns. As a result, our sales and earnings are typically higher in the second half of the fiscal year than in the
first half.

Acquisitions
A key element of our business strategy is to acquire businesses and assets that operate in segments of the specialty

chemical industry exhibiting those characteristics we believe provide us with opportunities to grow our company in a manner
that increases shareholder value. The acquisitions we have completed since 2003 are summarized below.




o ]

In February 2006, we purchased certain assets of the animal health pesticides business of Boehringer Ingelheim. The
assets we purchased included pesticide registrations for pesticides used on cattle, swine, poultry and livestock premises, a
manufacturing and warehouse facility in Elwood, Kansas and related equipment. We also purchased the insecticides finished
goods, raw materials and packaging inventory on hand at closing. The pesticides registrations acquired in the transaction are
for the United States, Canada, Australia, Mexico and several other countries in Latin America, and they complement our
existing animal health pesticides registrations. The new pesticides include a leading brand of insecticidal ear tags for cattle
and several liquid and dust formulations for livestock and their premises. Through the end-of fiscal year 2006, Boehringer
Ingelheim continued to market the purchased pesticides as our sole distributor in the United States pursuant to a transition
agreement with us. The purchase price was approximately $8.9 million, including $2.7 million of inventory. We financed the
acquisition entirely with available cash.

In June 2005, we purchased certain penta assets from Basic Chemicals Company, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary .
.of Occidental Chemical. The assets we purchased included product registrations and data, manufacturing equipment and
certain other assets. The product registrations we acquired in the transaction are for the United States and Canada. Following
this acquisition, we became the sole producer and registration holder for penta in North America. Basic Chemicals Company
acquired the penta assets from Vulcan Materials Company immediately prior to our purchase as part of a larger purchase of
the chemicals business of Vulcan Materials Company. The purchase price was $13.4 million, payable with $3.4 million from
avatilable cash at closing, and a $10.0 million promissory note. The promissory note is payable in five equal annual principal
installments of $2.0 million plus interest at 4% per annum.

" “In fiscal year 2004, we made three acquisitions with an aggregate purchase price of approximately $11.6 million. In
December 2003, we purchased certain penta distribution assets of Wood Protection Products. As part of the purchase, we also
granted an option to acquire 175,000 shares of our common stock, exercisable at $2.50 per share. The acquisition included
distribution and plant equipment, inventory, penta product registrations and a consulting and non-compete agreement with
the principal shareholder of Wood Protection Products. We primarily financed the cash portion of the purchase price with a
$6.0 million term loan. . - : :

In June 2004, we purchased creosote product registrations from Trenton Sales. In connection with our purchase, we
entered into a long term supply agreement with Lufkin Creosoting Co., an affiliate of Trenton Sales, under which we setl
Lufkin Creosoting its creosote requirements for its wood treating operations. We aiso assumed Trenton Sales’ long term
creosote supply agreement with a Mexican producer of creosote. Although we had been purchasing creosote from the same
Mexican creosote producer prior to the acquisition, the acquisition increased our purchases of that lower cost creosote supply.
We also purchased the Ravap trade name and inventory from Boehringer Ingelheim in June 2004, The crecosote distribution
and Ravap acquisitions were completed using available cash, borrowings under our revolving loan and by increasing one of
our senior term Joans by $3.0 million.




Results of Operations

Segment Data

Segment data is presented for our four segments for the three fiscal years ended July 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005. You
should read the foregoing segment data in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto
included elsewhere in this report. :

) Year Ended July 31,
2007 2006 2005
(Amounts in thousands)

Revenues: N ‘ :
PEIA ..ottt et e r s asn b e e e pr e gannne e $ 28,377 § 27.862 % 20,806
CrEOSOE ..ottt snasaaia s Cetereeeesnr e et e e s e e tesesanrrnre 43,645 . 30,674 29,199
Animal health pesticides.........coooooooi 14,149 8,664 © 5,059
Agricultural chemicals. ..o 3,614 3,816 4,104

89,785 § 71,016 § 59,168

Depreciation and amortization:

Penta e s ee e et e $ 2,485 § 2,334 § 886
080T .. v cer e s e er e teesresne e re e s s e s e eemeeene s 297 293 298
Animal health pesticides.......ccoooenii 899 409 150
Agricultural chemicals...............c.covveeerrereererernnre e ser e neeenenens 100 B21 317
$ 3,781 8§ 3857 § 2,151
Income (loss) from operations: ‘ t .
PEILA ..ot s e e $ 9,504 § 9,145 § 6,102
CrEOSOLE 1 oveiet ettt b 9,175 4,048 2,933
Animal heaith pesticides...........orrveerevreremcnmcicccicic e 3,112 1,537 1,015
Agricultural ChemiCals (1) ...vvvieverreieirernreriereses e ee et reneienna ' (533) - (3,235 (368)
$ 21,258 $ 11,495 $ 9,682

(1) Includes a non-cash impairment charge of approximately $2.4 million in fiscal year 2006,
Segment Revenue

The net sales revenues of the penta segment increased by $515,000 to $28.4 million in fiscal year 2007 from
$27.9 million in fiscal year 2006, or a 1.8% increase. The penta revenue increase was the result of higher penta prices.
Creosote segment revenues increased by $13.0 million to'$43.6 million in fiscal year 2007 from $30.7 million in fiscal year
2006, a 42.3% increase. Our creosote revenues expanded in fiscal year 2007 on price increases as volume was down about
4.3% compared with fiscal year 2006. Demand for treated railroad crossties by major railroads continued at the upper end of
the historic range since 2001 of between 14.0 million and 22.0 million crossties purchased annually. We expect that demand
for wood treating chemicals will be flat in fiscal year 2008 relative to fiscal year 2907.

Animal health pesticides segment sales revenues increased by $5.5 million to $14.1 million in fiscal year 2007 from
$8.7 million in fiscal year 2006, or a 63.3% increase. In February 2006 we purchased the animal health pesticide business of
Boehrmger Ingelheim, and the acquisition of those product lines and the introduction of a new ear tag product accounted for
the increase in segment revenue over the prior fiscal year. Sales revenue in agricultural chemicals decreased on lesser volume
by $202,000 to $3.6 million in fiscal year 2007 from $3.8 million in fiscal year 2006, or a 5.3% decrease caused by drought
conditions and reduced cotton acreage in certain markets in the United States. Sales of our animal health and agricultural
products are seasonal, and occur primarily in the second half of our fiscal year. Seasonal usage follows varying agricultural
seasonal patterns, weather conditions and weather related pressure from pests, and customer marketing programs and |
requirements. Weather patterns can have an impact on our sales, particularly sales of agricultural chemicals. The end users of
some of our products may, because of weather patterns, delay or intermittently disrupt field work during the planting season,
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which may result in a reduction of the use of some products and reduce our revenues and profitability. The combined
revenues from products subject to seasonal variations represented about 20% of our total annual revenues. Their peak selling
season is during the last two quarters of the fiscal year, and revenue and profit are concentrated in these periods.

Segment Income (Loss} from Operations '

Income from operations of the penta segment increased by $359,000 to $9.5 million in fiscal year 2007 from
$9.1 million in fiscal year 2006, or an increase of 3.9%, primarily because of higher revenue. In fiscal year 2007, creosote
segment income from operations increased by $5.1 million to $9.2 million from $4.0 million in fiscal year 2006, or an
increase of 127%, on higher creosote prices. Animal health pesticides segment income from operations increased by
$1.6 million to $3.1 million in fiscal year 2007 from $1.5 million in fiscal year 2006, or an increase of 102%. Animal health
pesticides segment volume increased, because of products acquired from Boehringer Ingelheim in fiscal year 2006, including
the new Avenger ear tag we introduced in fiscal 2007. The interim marketing arrangement with Boehringer Ingelheim was
terminated at the end of July 2006, and in fiscal year 2007 we experienced operating margins comparable to more normal
levels for the segment. The agricultural chemicals scgment had a loss of $533,000 in fiscal year 2007 as compared with a pre-
impairment loss in fiscal year 2006 of $867,000.

Fiscal Year 2007 compared with Fiscal Year 2006 and
Fiscal Year 2006 compared with Fiscal Year 2005

Net Sales Revenue and Gross Profit

Fiscal Year 2007 vs. Fiscal Year 2006. Net sales revenue increased from $71.0 million in fiscal year 2006 to
$89.8 million in fiscal year 2007, an increase of 26.4%. For fiscal year 2007, penta net sales comprised 2.7% of the increase
while 69.1% of the increase in net sales came from our creosote segment. Creosote prices increased significantly in fiscal
year 2007, driven substantially by increases in our purchase cost for creosote. Approximately 29.2% of the increase in net
sales revenue came from the animal health segment where we experienced increased volume because of the effect of sales of
the products acquired from Boehringer Ingelheim in February 2006, including the introduction of the new Avenger ear tag.
Agricultural chemical sales declined $202,000 on decreased volune.

Gross profit increased by $7.0 million, or 29.3%, to $30.8 million in fiscal year 2007. Gross profit as a percent of sales
increased to 34.4% of sales in fiscal year 2007 as compared to 33.6% of sales in fiscal year 2006, The margin improvement
in fiscal year 2007 came from the creosote and animal health segments, as penta margins were down in fiscal year 2007 on
increased costs by approximately $500,000. Creosote gross profit increased $3.9 million on higher prices, even though we
experienced a significantly higher cost from our suppliers, and our margin on sales improved to 27.2% of sales in fiscal year
2007 from 25.9% in the prior year. Gross profit in the animal health segment improved by $3.5 million, and margin increased
to 44.5% from 32.9% in fiscal year 2006. The termination of the interim marketing arrangement with Boehringer Ingelheim
positively affected animal health margins in fiscal year 2007. Because other companies may include certain of the costs that
we record in cost of sales in selling, general and administrative expenses, and may include certain of the costs that we record
in selling, general and adminisirative expenses as cost of sales, our gross profit may not be comparable to that reported by
other companies. Margins will continue to be impacted in fiscal vear 2008 by the high costs of raw materials used to produce
penta. Penta raw material costs for chiorine and phenol remained at high levels in fiscal year 2007 and the solvent used for
penta solutions increased in cost approximately 13.7% over fiscal year 2006. We expect that penta raw material costs will
continue at high levels throughout fiscal year 2008, maintaining pressure on our penta margins. We also expect that our
creosote raw material costs will be under increased upward pressure in fiscal year 2008 and beyond, because the supply of
creosote has begun to tighten.

In fiscal year 2006 MSMA market conditions deteriorated at the end the fiscal year and regulatory actions by EPA
adversely affected the product line. We concluded that assets related to MSMA were impaired, and that an impairment charge
of $2.4 million in fiscal year 2006 was required based on diminished future expected cash flows and a shorter expected useful
life. The net value of the long-lived MSMA assets on our balance sheet at July 31, 2007 is $117,000 after the impairment
charge. See note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Fiscal Year 2006 vs. Fiscal Year 2005. Net sales revenue increased from $59.2 million in fiscal year 2005 to
$71.0 million in fiscal year 2006, an increase of 20%. For fiscal year 2006, 60% of the increase in net sales came from our
penta segment. Penta volume increased significantly in fiscal year 2006 due to the penta assets acquisition from Basic
Chemicals Company late in fiscal year 2005. Approx:mately 12% of our increase in net sales revenue in fiscal year 2006
came from the creosote segment, principally due to creosote price increases. Approximately 30% of the increase in net sales
revenue came from the animal health segment where we experienced increased volume, most of which was because of the
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effect of sales of the products acquired from Boehringer Ingelheim in February 2006. Agricultural chemical sales declined
$288,000 on decreascd volume and price.

Gross profit increased by $5.8 million, or 32.1%, to $23.9 million in fiscal year 2006. Gross profit as a percent of sales
increased to 33.6% of sales in fiscal year 2006 as compared to 30.5% of sales in fiscal year 2005. The margin improvement
in fiscal year.2006 came primarily from increased volume of sales of higher margin penta products and from increased
animal health sales volume on products acquired in fiscal year 2006, Co '

MSMA product prices and volumes improved in fiscal year 2005 over the prior year, but in fiscal year 2006, net sales
revenue for MSMA product declined, primarily in the fourth quarter, on both lower prices and volumes. For the first time we
experienced an operating loss in the fourth quarter, and also for the first time, our operating loss for the fiscal year exceeded
depreciation and amortization for the segment. '

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Fiscal Year 2007 vs. Fiscal Year 2006. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased from $14.8 million in
fiscal year 2006 to $16.3 million in fiscal year 2007, an increase of $1.5 million, or 9.8%. In January 2006. we transitioned
sales of creosote and penta from a delivered basis to an FOB plant basis, reducing our distribution expense for those products
by approximately $2.0 million in fiscal year 2007 as compared with 2006. We incurred additional expense in fiscal year 2007
of approximately $i.8 million, however, in connection with the animal health product lines we acquired in February 2006,
including increased expense-for personnel, product storage, advertising and promotions, and amortization of acquired
intangibles. Our expenses for testing, data submission and other costs associated with our participation in product task forces
increased to approximately $1.5 mitlion in fiscal year 2007 from $1.2 million in fiscal year 2006, because of increased costs
to support our MSMA products registrations. Performance stock awards to employees, shares issued to directors, and expense
recognized for previously issued options increased by approximately $151,000 in fiscal year 2007. See note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements,

Fiscal Year 2006 vs. Fiscal Year 2005,  Selling, general and administrative expenses increased from $12.7 million in
fiscal year 2005 to $14.8 million in fiscal year 2006, an increase of $2.1 million, or 16.9%. In fiscal year 2006, our selling,
general and administrative expenses included $4.7 million in distribution expense, as compared to $5.2 million in fiscal year
2005. Distribution expense was down significantly on the conversion of creosote and penta sales to an FOB basis. We also
experienced increased expense for.amortization of penta intangibles acquired in fiscal year 2005, and increased. expense for
supply chain disruptions caused by Hurricanes Katrina and Rita: Approximately $1.5 million of the increase in selling,
general and administrative expense category was due to increased amortization expense. We temporarily lost the use of our -
creosote terminal near New Orleans due to Hurricane Katrina and incurred additional expense for a substitute interim
terminal. We incurred additional expense in fiscal year 2006 of approximately $359,000 over the prior fiscal year for
performance stock awards to employees, shares issued to directors and, with the adoption of FAS 123(R), we began
expensing previously issued options, See note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. Our product permit fees increased
approximately $238,000 in fiscal year 2006, primarily as a result of the acquisition of additional animal health products
registrations and our product regulatory expense. Our expenses for testing, data submission and-other costs associated with
our participation in product task forces increased to approximately.$1.2 million in fiscal year 2006 from $990,00¢ in fiscal
year 2005, because of our purchase of penta registrations in June 2005 and increased costs to support our MSMA products
registrations. ‘ :

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $945,000 in fiscal year 2007 compared with $1.0 million in fiscal year 2006 and $620,000 in fiscal
year 2005. The decrease in fiscal year 2007 was due to principal reductions during the year, and the increase in fiscal yecar
2006 over fiscal 2005 was due to increases in term loan borrowings to complete our acquisitions in wood preserving
chemicals and animal health pesticides.

Income Taxes
QOur effective tax rate was 38% in fiscal year 2007, as compared to 36% in fiscal year 2006 and 37% in fiscal year 2005,
In May 2006, the State of Texas enacted a new law that substantially changed its tax system. The law replaced the
taxable-capital and earned surplus components of the current franchise tax with a new tax that is based on modified gross

revenue. This new tax is referred to as the “Margin Tax” and was effective January 1, 2007. The change in the tax law has not
had a material effect on our conselidated financial statements.

21




Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows

Net cash from operating activities was §9.0 million in fiscal year 2007, as compared with $7.1 million in fiscal year
2006. Net income and the adjustment for depreciation and amortization increased cash by a combined $12.7 million in fiscal
year 2007. This was offset by an increase in fiscal year 2007 in accounts receivable of $3.8 million to $12.8 million from
$9.1 million in fiscal year 2006, an increase of 41.2%. The increase was primarily a result of higher sales revenue.
Inventories increased by $3.1 million to $13.1 million from $10.0 million in fiscal year 2006, an increase of 31.1%, due to
increases in animal health inventory necessary to support higher sales volume and to higher than normal crecsote inventory,

Net cash used in investing activities was $802,000 in fiscal year 2007 and $11.0 million in fiscal year 2006. In fiscal
year 2007, we used approximately $581,000 of net cash for additions to property and plant, primarily in Matamoros, Mexico,
and Tuscaloosa, Alabama. In fiscal year 2006, we used net cash to complete acquisitions in our animal health segment. Qur
acquisitions totaled $8.6 million in 2006. We also used approximately $2.1 million in fiscal year 2006, primarily to improve
penta production capacity and operations at our Matamoros, Mexico and Tuscaloosa, Alabama facilities.

We used $3.3 million in net cash from financing activities in fiscal year 2007, but cash flows from financing activities
provided $6.3 million in fiscal year 2006. In fiscal year 2007, we reduced the indebtedness incurred in fiscal year 2005 to
finance our acquisition of the penta business from Basic Chemicals Company by $2.0 miilion. We also refinanced our term
and revolving loan facilities with our lender, Wachovia Bank, in fiscal year 2007. Additionally, in fiscal year 2007 certain
employees and directors exercised stock options granted in prior years. We used $1.5 million in net cash from financing
activities in connection with the cashless exercise feature of those options, and the tax benefit on those exercised options was
$2.4 million. In fiscal year 2006, we sold 1,710,000 shares and selling shareholders sold 1,510,000 shares of our common
stock at a price of $6.51 per share (net of discounts and commissions). The net proceeds from the sale were $10.5 million.
Principal repayments on all our indebtedness totaled $3.6 million in fiscal year 2007 (excluding the refinance of our
indebtedness with Wachovia Bank) and $3.6 million in fiscal year 2006. We also paid cash dividends of $791,000 in fiscal
year 2007 and $660,000 in fiscal year 2006.

Working Capital

As of May 16, 2007 we entered into a new credit agreement with our lender, Wachovia Bank, National Association. The
new credit agreement replaced existing credit facilities, and provided for both a revolving loan facility of up to $8.0 million
and a term loan facility of $8.4 million. Advances under the revolving loan facility mature on April 30, 2010, and advances
under the term loan facility mature on January 31, 2¢13. Advances under both the revolving and term loan facilities bear
interest at a varying rate of LIBOR plus a margin based on our funded debt to EBITDA:

Ratio of Funded Debt to EBITDA - Margin

Equal to or greater than 2.5to 1.0 .. 2.75%
Equal to or greater than 2.0 to 1.0, but Iess than 2 5 to l 0 ...................................... 2.25%
Equal to or greater than 1.75 to 1.0, but less than 2.0 0 1.0 ..o, 1.70%
Equal to or greater than 1.0 to 1.0, but less than 1.75 10 1.0 oo, 1.20%
Less than 1O K0 L.0uci s s e 1.00%

The new credit facility is secured by our assets, including inventory, accounts receivable, equipment, and general
intangibles, but excluding real property. The new facility has restrictive covenants including the maintenance of a fixed
charge coverage ratio of 1.25 to 1.0 and a ratio of funded debt to the sum of funded debt and owner’s equity of not mere than
45%. We were in compliance with our credit facility covenants as of July 31, 2007, and we expect to remain in compliance,

At July 31, 2007, we had not borrowed underour prior revolving loan facility, and our borrowing base availability under

that facility was $8.0 million. Management believes that the new revolving loan facility, combined with cash flows from
operations, will adequately provide for our working capital needs for current operations for the next twelve months.
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Long Term Obligations

Our purchase of certain penta assets from Basic Chemical Company in fiscal 2006 was financed in part by a
$10.0 million loan from the seller. The indebtedness is payable in five equal annual installments of $2.0 million plus interest
at 4% per annum. The principal balance of that indebtedness was $6.0 million at July 31, 2007. The next installment of
principal will be paid in June 2008.

Our purchase of the Rabon animal heakh products business in fiscal 2003 and our acquisitions in fiscal 2004 were
financed in part by two term loans under a senior credit facility with Wachovia Bank. The combined principal balance of
those two term loan facilities with Wachovia Bank was approximately $8.4 million at April 30, 2007. Those two term loans
are combined in the term loan facility entered into with Wachovia Bank as of May 16, 2007. Currently the amount
outstanding under the term loan facility bears interest at LIBOR plus 1%. Principal on the term loan is payable in monthly
installments of $138,000. For fiscal year 2008, the interest spread over LIBOR for the term loan is expected to be 1.00%.

L

Capital Expenditures

In fiscal year 2007 our capital expenditures were approximately $581,000 for normal improvements to our production
facilities and controls, particularly in Matamoros, Mexico and in Tuscaloosa, Alabama. In fiscal year 2006, our capital
expenditures, excluding acquisitions, were approximately $2.1 million, of which $1.4 million was incurred to expand our
penta production capacity in Matamoros, Mexico and in Tuscaloosa, Alabama.

Our capital expenditures and operating expenses for environmental matters, exctuding testing, data submission and other
costs associated with our product task force participation, were approxlmately $621,000 in fiscal year 2007, $643,000 in
fiscal year 2006, and $531,000 in fiscal year 2005,

We expensed approximately $1.5 million for testing, data submission and other costs associated with our participation in
product task forces in fiscal year 2007, and approximately $1.2 million and $990,000 in fiscal years 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The increased expense was due to increased activity in the product reauthorization process being conducted by
the EPA and the acquisition of additional product registrations. We believe that total testing, data submission and other costs
will be approximately $1.3 million in fiscal year 2008. Since environmental laws have traditionally become increasingly
stringent, costs and expenses relating to environmental control and compliance may increase in the future. While we do not
believe that the incremental cost of compliance with existing or future environmental laws and regulations will have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations, we cannot assure that costs of compliance
will not exceed current estimates.

Contractual Obligations

Qur obligations to make future payments under contracts as of July 31, 2007 are summarized in the following table (in
thousands). .

Payments Duc by Period (in thousands)

More than 5

Total 1 Year 2-5 Years Years
Long-term debt ..o $ 14,124 % 3656 3§ 10,468
Estimated interest payments on debt (1)............... 1,764 713 1,051
Operating 18ases.....covrvvvrrerenierirneserieseneersesenne 3,012 1,064 ‘ 1,946 § 2
Other long-term liabilities (2).......cc.ccooveenee. e 364 364
Purchase obligations (3)......c.ocvvereicicninninnnne 185,760 35,427 86,756 63,577

3 205,024 % 40,860 § 100,585 3 63,579

(1) Estimated payments are based on forecast interest rates as of August 2007

(2) Post retirement benefit obligations are included.

(3) Consists primarily of raw materials purchase contracts. These are typically not fixed prices arrangements. The prices are
based on the prevailing market prices. As a result we generally expect to be able to pass on the costs of raw materials at .
those future prices as a component of our product sales.
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Outlook for Fiscal Year 2008

Demand for utility poles treated with penta and railroad ties treated with creosote was strong in fiscal year 2007,
favorably impacting our sales for our wood treating chemicals. We expect that demand for wood treating chemicals will be
flat in fiscal year 2008 relative to fiscal year 2007. The supply of creosote tightened during portions of fiscal year 2007.
Creosote is a byproduct of the coal tar distillation process, and in some parts of the world coal tar distillate is now being used
for fuel because of high energy prices. Coal tar distillate is also sold into the carbon black market displacing petroleumn
products. Consequently, the average price we pay our suppliers is expected to increase due to higher oil prices. We will
attempt to pass through the increasing cost of creosote to our customers, although no assurance can be given that we will be
completely successful in that effort. Chlerine and phenol, important raw materials for penta producnon are expected to
remain close to current prices, thus mamtammg pressure on penta margins.

We have successfully integrated the animal health insecticide business that we purchased in February 2006. We intend
to continue growing our animal health segment in fiscal year 2008. As part of that effort, we have hired a sales representative
for the Western United States and a sales representative based in Colombia to expand our animal health sales in South
America. We are also exploring several animal health product line extensions in the United States.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements '
We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements, such as financing or unconsolidated variable interest entities.

New Accounting Standards

We adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment,” (“FAS
123(R)"") as of August 1, 2005. FAS 123(R) requires the measurement and recognition of compensation expense for all
share-based payment awards made to employees and directors, including employee stock options, based on estimated fair
values. See notes 1 and 14 to the notes to the consolidated financial statements 1ncluded in this report for a discussion of the
effects of the adoption of FAS 123(R). :

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Accounting for Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157
defines fair value, and establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP),
and expands disclosure about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for the Company for financial statements
issued subsequent to November 15, 2007. We do nat expect the new standard to have any material impact on our ﬁnancnal
position and results of operations.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an interpretation of FASB
Statement No.109.” This interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an entity’s
financial statemenis in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” It prescribes a recognition threshold
and measurement aitribute for financial statement disclosure of tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax refurn.
This interpretation is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 135, 2006. We will be required to adopt this
interpretation in the first quarter of fiscal year 2008. Management is currently evaluating the requirements of FIN No. 48, and
the impact, if any, on our consolidated financial statements.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires the use of estimates,
judgments, and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the periods presented. The significant accounting
principles that we believe are the most important to aid in fully understanding our financial results are the following:

Revenue Recognition. We recognize revenue of our chemical products sold in the open market when risk of loss and
title to the products transfers to our customers, which usually occurs at the time a shipment is made. ‘

Cost of Sales. Cost of sales includes inbound freight charges, purchasing and receiving costs, inspection costs and

internal transfer costs. In the case of products we manufacture, direct and indirect manufacturing costs and associated plant
administrative expenses are included as well as latd-in cost of raw materials consumed in the manufacturing process.
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Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. We provide an allowance for accounts receivable we belicve we may not collect in
full. A provision for bad debt expense recorded to selling, general and administrative expenses increases the allowance,
Accounts receivable that are written off our books decrease the allowance. The amount of bad debt expense recorded each
period and the resulting adequacy of the allowance at the end of each period are determined using a customer-by-customer
analyses of our accounts receivable balances each period and subjective assessments of our future bad debt exposure. Write-
offs of accounts receivable balances have historically been insignificant.

1 . ) .

Inventories. Inventories consist primarity of raw materials and finished goods that we hold for sale in the ordinary
course of business. We use the first-in, first-out method to value inventorics at the lower of cost or market. Management
believes we have not incurred impairments in the carrying value of our inventories.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assers. The initial recording of goodwill and other intangibles requires estimation of the
fair value of assets and liabilities using fair value measurements, which include quoted market price, present value techniques
(estimate of future cash flows), and other valuation techniques. Additienally, SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets,” requires goodwill and other intangible assets to be reviewed for possible impairment on an annual basis, or if
circumstances indicate that impairment may exist. Determining fair value and implied fair value is subjective and often
involves the use of estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions could have a significant impact on the
recording of intangible assets, whether or not an impairment loss is recognized and also the magnitude of the impairment
loss. Our estimates of fair value are primarily determined using present value techniques of projected future cash flows. This
approach uses significant assumptions such as multi-year sales projections with associated expenses. We have performed
impairment analyses on our goodwill and intangible assets of indefinite life, which indicated as of July 31, 2007 an
impairment loss was not appropriate. '

Impairment of Long-Tived Assets. We review pertodically the carrying value of our long-lived assets held and used and
assets to be disposed of at least annually or more frequently when events and circumstances warrant such a review. The
carrying value of long-lived assets is evaluated for potential impairment on a product line basis. We have concluded on the
basis of our evaluation that our long-lived assets are not impaired, cxcept for certain assets related to our MSMA products.
See note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Disclosure Regarding Forward Looking Statements

We are including the following discussion to inform our existing and potential security holders generally of some of the
risks and uncertainties that can affect us and to take advantage of the “safe harbor” protection for forward-looking statements
that applicable federal securities law affords. From time to time, our management or persons acting on our behalf make
. forward-looking statements to inform existing and potential security holders about our company. These forward-looking
statements include information about possible or assumed future results of our operations. All statements, other than
statements of historical facts, included or incorporated by reference in this report that address activities, events or
developments that we expect or anticipate may occur in the future, including such things as future capital expenditures,
business strategy, compeltitive strengths, goals, growth of our business and operations, plans and references to future
successes may be considered forward-looking statements, Also, when we use words such as “anticipate.” “believe,”
“estimate,” “intend,” “plan,” “project,” “forecast,” “may,” “should,” “budget,” “goal,” *expect,” “probably™ or similar . ’
expressions, we are making forward-looking statements. Many risks and uncertainties may impact the matters addressed in
these forward-looking statements. Qur forward-looking statements speak only as of the date made and we will not update
forward-looking statements unless the securities laws require us to do so.

LYY ” ik RIS RE TS

Some of the key factors which could cause our future financial results and performance to vary from those expected
include:

. the loss of primary customers,
. our ability to implement productivity improvements, cost reduction initiatives or facilities expansions;
. market developments affecting, and other changes in, the demand for our products and the introduction of

new competing products;
. availability or increases in the price of our primary raw materials or active ingredients;

. the timing of planned capital expenditures;
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. our ability to identify, develop or acquire, and market additional product lines and businesses necessary to
- implement our business strategy and our ability to finance such acquisitions and development; )

. the condition of the capital markets generally, which will be affected by interest rates, forelgn currency
fluctuations and general economic conditions;

. cost and other effects of legal and administrative proceedings, settlements, investigations and claims,
including environmental liabilities which may not be covered by indemnity or insurance;:

. the ability to obtain registration and re-registration of our products under applicable law;

. the political and economic climate in the foreign or domestic jurisdictions in which we conduct business;
and

. other United States or foreign regulatory or legislative developments which affect the demand for our

products generally or increase the environmental compliance cost-for our products or impose liabitities on
the manufacturers and distributors of such products.

The information contained in this report, including the information set forth under the heading “Risk Factors”, identifies
additional factors that could cause our results or performance to differ materially from those we express in our forward-
looking statements. Although we believe that the assumptions underlying our forward-looking statements are reasonable, any
of these assumptions and, therefore, the forward-looking statements based on these assumptions, could themselves prove to
be inaccurate. In light of the significant uncertainties inherent in the forward-looking statements which are included in this
report and the exhibits and other documents incorporated herein by reference, our inclusion of this information is not a
representation by us or any other person that our objectives and plans will be achieved.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE D]SCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to certain market risks in the ordinary course of our business, arising primarily from changes in interest
rates. We generally do not utilize derivative financial instruments or hedging transactions to manage that risk.

- Our indebtedness as of July 31, 2007 consisted of a $6.0 million promissory note with a fixéd annual interest rate of 4%,
and term loan under our credit facility with Wachovia Bank of $8.1 million, with an interest rate that floats with LIBOR. The.
fixed rate note is not subject to fiuctuations in interest rates. In addition to the $8.1 million term debt with Wachovia Bank,
we also have an $8.0 million revolving credit facility with Wachovia Bank, both of which were put into place in May 2007:
The revolving loan did not have any borrowings against it as of July 34, 2007,

The following analysis presents the sensitivity of earnings and cash flow to hypothetical changes in interest rates. Since -
the existing credit facility was established in May 2007, the impact of changes in interest rate is measured against the
scheduled outstanding debt for fiscal 2008. The term note is scheduled to have an average outstanding balance of $7.3
million during fiscal 2008. A 1% change in the LIBOR interest rate would add approximately $73,000 to interest expense.

We have minimal exposure to foreign currency exchange rates, Less than 1% of our sales have been in Mexican pesos
Virtually all of our other sales are in United States dollars.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of KMG Chemicals, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of KMG Chemicals, Inc. (the “Company”) as of

July 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ cquity, and cash flows tor each of
the three years in the period ended July 31, 2007. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index
at Ttem 15(a). These consolidated financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements and schedule are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of KMG Chemicals, Inc., as of July 31, 2007 and 2006, and the consolidated results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended July 31, 2007 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion such financial statement schedule, when considered
in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the
information set forth therein.

As discussed in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for stock-
based compensation effective August 1, 2005.

/sf UHY LLP

Houston, Texas
October 15, 2007
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KMG CHEMICALS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES e T ' !
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS - af L J
AS OF JULY 31, 2007 AND'2006 (in thousands, except for share data) * o .
o en. 2007 2006
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS: v - " _ . v r
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENES ... e $ 16004 $ 11,168
Accounts receivable:, FR : ' .
Trade, net of allowances of $48 at J uly 31, 2007 and $35 at July 31 2006 ............ 11,709 8,832
. aOther............ e T GGG OOV 1,L136 ¢ 264
TEIVENEOTIES 1evvvvereiveseseeeeseve e eeeesesseeseeeeseseseeessseseessesecseseeasasanes s ramenesesesesesnemsneseremeeeens 13,067 9,971
Current deferred tax asSet ...t s resssee s e rna e 159 v 57
Prepaid expenses and other current aSSets ... neiat . 337 q . 712
_Total current assets ................... VOSSP 42,612 - * 31,004
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT . . . . .
Property, plant and equipment.................... OO UOVOTTOTON 13,808 13,463
Accumulated depreciation and aMOTHZAUON. ..ot (5,345) = 1(4,314)
Net property, plant and @qUIPMENL. .........o.oocriveieeeeeeiec et ssseseresesiseane 8,463 9,149
. Y \
DEFERRED TAX ASSET ............o... ettt eihee it ettt ee e eebe et e R b e reasaaaraerbeest e s s e arasneneans o , 8720, . 656
GOODWILL ..ot tecciciiiieiceieee s afre s e sisatasssannsessaer s nesereessasensasesssssprennesagessseseresns L3R 3 778
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, net of accumu]ated amonization...................................._.._ ...... . 23,696 26,448
OTHER ASSETS...._..'.'. .................................................................................................... 1,812 1,667
HUS1 V- SO et et rerteereireeieiataiaesterhrerrteereR eI TRt rnyeaaeanneeeeseereen .5 81,233 § , 72,702
LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS’EQUITY t :
CURRENT LIABILITIES: ~
rAccounts payable:. Do, i et ee s tee e tat e te e e e ae et et sastanenrarasetatssnrenetess .8 8,144 -§ - "-5950
ACCTUE HADILIEIES ......v.eoevvoeereaeseos s rrsssss st eens e se st ssaenneeie 2,014 1,649
‘Current deferred tax liability......... e teieteinesesfanaate s e e se it et eatgen e rataateaneerneehn s rerean .43 v a. 33
Current portion of long-term debt..........coiiiii e 3 656 3,663
Current portion of deferred Tent.........ooooiiiiiiieis s . 86 W . 86,
« Total current liabilities........ oot 13,943 11,381
! b : . e e . . Lt
LONG TERM DEBT net of current POTtION. ..o 10,468 l3,981
DEFERRED RENT, net of current portion el M ' 48 - 134
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES.......cooocvieeeinirieinsegreesresmeesescesseaseeseseegemeesnszees 364 288
- Total hablhtlps..'..:.......................:.......................,, ...................... i aneesraenes - 24,823 25,784
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES ......cirviiie e eceeer e s sresseseeeene TR — —
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized, none issued
Common stock, $.01 par value, 40,000,000 shares authorized.
10,774,224 shares issued and outstanding at July 31, 2007 and 10,677,119 shares
issued and 10,532,856 shares outstanding at July 31, 2006..........ccocniniiinnnns 108 107
Additional paid-in capital ... 20,882 20,117
Treasury stock, at cost (0 shares at July 31, 2007 and 144,263 at July 31, 2006)....... — (721)
Accumulated other comprehensive iNCOME ..o — 53
Retaingd CaminEZs. .....c.ccocicrererrereiesrciinie e e sesess s e snee s re s seesnesassaseenenr e nes 35,420 27,362
Total stockholders’ equity. ..o e 56,410 46,918
T T AL ettt e e e e manrran e eeermeresbbraetttasttatesattatasaaaesasssas s s s nnnrrrnrns 3 81,233 § 72,702

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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KMG CHEMICALS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES s . i
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS .« .. = ¢ « ‘70 - e |
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005 (in thousands) ’ i

i . . 2007 2006 2005
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES o . ¢ S

Net income........0 oo Db i . 37 8849 § 3,776 $ 3,052

Ad_lustments 10 reconcile net income to net cdsh prov1ded by (used m) -
operating actlvmes : . . . ;
Depreciation and amMOrZation................eve. v everreerreesseresesesesesssesesen. 3,832 " 3,889 2,204
;- +Amortization of loan costs included in interest expense.................. 50 .22 -
Impairment charge - MSMA aSSets .....occoovvvvivennisi e : — 2,368 —
Stock based COMPENSAION .....ceveueireneierere e 510 359 —
Bad debt expense (recovery) ‘ 13 - (115) + 70
Loss on disposal of property 157 5 o
(Gain) on termination of iNterest rate SWap............oooveeveeeeeereenrrnns (30) R -

" Deferred rental INCOME ...........ovvvooeveeeees e eeeor s sseeesseeeseressree s J(86) 37D —

 Deferred iNCOME 1AXES ...vvucvrvcrrierisiesiesscee e eesseses e seneseens (307) (505) ' 681

~ Changes in operating assets and liabilities: S o

Accounts receivable - trade...................... s e e T T (2,890) (750) (1,220)
Accounts receivable - other ................coevevevneierernn, e (872) 78 147

o INVENIOTIES ..o (3,096) (2,406) .. 1,838
+  Prepaid expenses and other current assets ...........cccoivvorernrrnnnnn. . 175 + (416) e (8)
Accounts payable..........coocoivicieiiie, vt 2,194.. i 862 12
Accrued Habilities .........coovvevieecrrc s e, 469 7 325 783

"+ Net cash provided by operating activities........l....ccoennins e -t 8,968 - 7055 - 7,563

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: o "

Additions to property, plant and equipment............... s (581) (2,085)° (445)
Product line purchases ...........ccccvviiviiniinienirineeee e — (8,603) - (13,019)
Proceeds from sale of property ...cccevvvivvevcecinr v 10 — a3
Proceeds from insurance claim .........cocooeevieeiiecene e —_ . 18 111
Collection of notes receivable.........oovvvrverciniinie i — ' — 14
Proceeds from termination of interest rate swap _ _ 30. — -
AAQItONS O ORET ASSELS ..evvveeveeerrereeeeenernsereefosreerenes . C @26 “{297) (106)

Net cash used in investing activities .. (802) (10,967) . (13,442)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: : ; e e
Principal BOMTOWINES .......coviviviieiiresiittic et ee e eeae e 8,400 L= . 10,000
Principal payments on Bormrowings.........o.cccvivivnnnivenencciiveesiaes (11,921) T (3,591) (1,530)
Proceeds from stock placement (net of related expenses).................... — . .10,482 5,677
Proceeds from exercise of stock OptionS........ccocevervnererrreierrrerirerereene 83 S 1 .67
Tax effect of exercise of nonqualified stock options ...&...eceeeereeanens 2,439 -3 o —
Payments of employee withholding tax for employee cashless -
- exercise of employee stock Options .......ccccovvviviieieinceee e {1,540) C = —
Payment of dividends... @) * (660) {529)
.+, Netcash (used m) prowded by ﬁnancmg actwmes ................. (3,330) ' 6,300 13,685
NET INCREASE IN.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS .................. - 4836 . 2,388 7,806,
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR...... 11,168 8,780 974.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR ................. 3 16,004 § 11,168 $ 8,780
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW

INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for interest..........ooeeeevvnennenncceseseens 3 1,008 3 637 % 549

Cash paid during the year for incCome taxes...........c.ocoeeereveeeveeennn, 3 3,814 § 2853 % 1,103

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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KMG CHEMICALS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
AS OF JULY 31, 2007 AND 2006 (in thousands, except for share data)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash eqUIVAIEILS ..............ccovmiriieirei e seenes

Accounts recewablc

ITIVEIEOTIES ....ooiiiiieiiiisiiiisie e csteesie e b reebseseessaee s s aesanassebeesane s saeemboeeane e sabeesneemas sk aasinessb
Current deferTed TAX GSSET ..o.viiiiiiieresireier s rrrrrree st esrenernrs s reeeanessabesecaeeseesseeseressasares
Prepaid expenses and other Current assets ...

Total current assets ......oovvveeenrnians e

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and eqQUIPMENL ......c.ccoivrminiiiiiiee e san
Accumulated depreciation and amortization...........covveeeee i
Net property, plant and eqUIPMENL........ccoiiiiienieerienni s s

DEFERRED TAX ASSET ...oiioiioreet i eirsvrrnseirernssneesesseassaeas e seamcnamseneessshesesasssssisssans
GOODWILL ..ot e siaess s s e s aesrrs g e sassaeeeess e e e e sesaensnes srebseetsanteesisssrsos
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, net of accumulated AMOTHIZATION. c.eeeeveceeeienisrerrreessessreesacenns
OTHER ASSETS....... e etteeeeebeieieiishessrsisieseiessviteeesaeeiateseseaseeiaeenaaenreoraneratesteenniene

LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES;

ACCOUNLS PAYADIE ... e s
ACCTUEH [ADIIEIES 11vvvvvovvevceeeectiaen e eess s ben e s eness s s essnesesseressees
Current deferred tax liability.......coccovninninninn O SO OO PPPSRROUPPTIN
Current portion of long-term debt........ccccvveiveeriini e e
Current portion of deferred rent.........ccocoiiiii

Total current liabilities ..o fememeenereeees

LONG-TERM DEBT, net of current portion.........cccooiieninrniniessieesoneeonessscseennnns

DEFERRED RENT, net of current portion .......c.cvvviieesecnsseeecememessisisssnnnss. -

OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES......ccoii e
Total HabilIes ....ooooie e e e

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES ...

STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized, none issued

Common stock, $.01 par value, 40,000,000 shares authorized.
10,774,224 shares issued and outstanding at July 31, 2007 and 10,677,119 shares

issued and 10,532,856 shares outstanding at July 31, 2006............occcoernvvccninnnnne

Additional paid-in capital ...
Treasury stock, at cost (0 shares at July 31, 2007 and 144,263 at July 31, 2006).......
Accumulated other comprehensive INCOME ...
REIAINEA CAMINGS...evervrerererrririireseiieorerres st s s eecscaasconeese e e e seseeoems bbb bsas

Total stocKhOlders” SQUILY .....ccoeiei et

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2007 2006
16,004 S 11,168
11,709 8.832

1,136 264
13,067 9,971
159 57
537 712
42,612 31,004
13,808 13,463
(5,345) (4,314)
8.463 9,149
872 656
3,778 3,778
23,696 26,448
1,812 1,667
81233 § 72.702
8144 § 5,950
2,014 1,649
43 o33
3,656 3,663
86 86
13,943 11,381
10,468 13,981
48 134
364 288
24.823 25,784
108 107
20,882 20,117
— (121)
— 53
35,420 27,362
56,410 46,918
81233 S 72,702




KMG CHEMICALS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005 (in thousands, except per share data)

NET SALES oo
COST OF SALES ..o,

GTOSS PrOfIlaccciiiiiii ettt esmee e et as s s atasear e e sbsnes

OPERATING COSTS:

Selling, general and administrative Xpenses .........c.ooveeeeeereeveeeseeanns
Impairment charge - MSMA aS8815 ...

Total OPErating COSLS ..ovmieo ittt e ee e

LOPETating iNCOME. .......vvuererteteiieeiecmeree et e se e e e resresesaanns

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):

Interest and dividend inCome .........ocvveiiiiiiiiieic e :

IREETESE EXPENSE ..vvvsvieririeresirierete ittt e

L0311t U 4T OO

" Total otherexpense ........
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES....co e

Provision FOr INCOME TAXES...ccccveievririnrrrairrerirrrssinsrrssstersesssressssnenes

NET INCOME ..ottt scesenensscsasneesesses e sassss s snns

EARNINGS PER SHARE

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2007 2006 2005

$ 89,785 $ 71,016 $ 59,168
58,942 47,158 41,102
30,843 23,858 18,066
16,258 14,802 12,664

— 2,368 —

16,258 17,170 12,664
14,585 6,688 5,402

560 281 73
(945) (1,044) (620)
6 (35) (35)
(379) (798) (582)

14,206 5,890 4,820
(5,357) (2,114) (1,768)

$ 8,849 § 3,776 $ 3,052
$ 084 $ 042 § 0.39
$ 0.80 040 § 0.37
10,573 8,914 7,901
11,034 9,447 8,256




KMG CHEMICALS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005 (in thousands)

Accumulated
Common Stock Additional , Other . Total
Shares Par Paid-In  Treasury  Comprehensive  Retained  Stockholders’
Issued Value Capital Stock Income Earnings Equity
BALANCE AT AUGUST 1, 2004... 7,730 78 § 3,671 % (900) 18 $21,723 § 24,590
Cash dividends......ccocvcininniennnn, : ’ . (529) (529)
Stock options exercised ........c...... 26 67 ’ N Y
Shares issued in stock : :
placement .......cccooeiiniinnaen 1,200 12 5,665 . 5,677
Treasury shares issued ................. (50) 50 . —
Comprehensive income: .
NetinCOmMEe. ..oooveeeei e . 3,052 3,052
Change in unrealized gain on interest '
rate swap (net of taxes of $6).... ' 31 31
Total comprehensive income......... 3,083
BALANCE AT JULY 31,2005 ....... 8,956 90 9,353 (850) 4% 24246 32,888
Cash dividends.........cooocveveicicrnacn. (660) (660)
Stock options exercised ................ 11 38 : ' 38
25,737 treasury shares issued........ . . (129) 129 ) ' —_
Shares issued 1n stock ) ‘
placement .........oooviineeceencnnn 1,710 17 10,891 : . 13,908
Direct costs of stock placement .... (426) (426)
Stock-based compensation............ 359 . 359
Tax benefit - nonqualified stock
options exercised.........coervrreen : KNS ' ' : 31
Comprehensive income: '
Net INCOME.....vveeiecreeeeeiecrree e sinas . 3,776 3,776
Change in unrealized gain on interest S
rate swap (net of taxes of $3).... : 4 -4
Total comprehensive income......... 3,780
BALANCE AT JULY 31, 2006 ....... 10,677 107 20,117 (721) 33 27362 % 46918
Cash dividends................... v ) (791) (791)
Stock options exercised ................ 97 1 (1,458) R (1,457
144,263 treasury shares issued...... (721) 721 ’
Additional costs of stock
placement..........coovmeecirieninnns {5 : : (5)
Stock-based compensation............ 510 510
Tax benefit - nonquatified stock . '
options exercised...........oeeeenen. 2,439 . . 2,439
Comprehensive income: :
NELINCOME..uveiveeiierrierressresresiseeens . 8,849 8,849
Change in unrealized value on _
interest rate swap (net of taxes _
Of 8333) i T (53) ' (53)
Total comprehensive income......... _ 8,796
BALANCE AT JULY 31, 2007 ....... 10,774 108 $ 20,882 § 0 3 -0 $35420 § 56410

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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KMG CHEMICALS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS ‘
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005 (in thousands)

2007 2006 2005
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
NELINCOME ...t b bbb $ 8,849 § 3,776 3,052
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:
Depreciation and amOrtization ... 3,832 3,889 2,204
-Amortization of loan costs included in interest expense................. 50 22 -—
Impairment charge - MSMA a8sets ... -— 2,368 —
Stock based cOMPENSALION .......ccoeerireiermriserimis e ere e 510 359 —
Bad debt expense (TeCOVETY)... ..ot eeesenaees 13 (115) 70
Loss on disposal of property ..o s 157 5 1
{Gain) on termination of interest rate SWap........ccovvvcrenievienneeniene 30) — —_
Deferred rental INCOME .....oceeveieiiemceeccecicrcievcr e (86) 37 —
Deferred income taXes ..o.o.ovviveeieeireeeeee e et (307) (905) 681
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable - trade.......oooeeeriieennll et (2,890) {750) (1,220)
Accounts receivable - Other ... (872) 78 147
INVEDOTIES L.vovisvscveereeesiceesres e veeeecemeemenseeneesee e e e e e reesee s e ssreven (3,096) (2,406) 1,838
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ............cccccovvecricverenenn 175 (416) (5
Accounts payable ... 2,154 862 12
Accrued Habilities .......cocovcecivicrmmcmerrerneeneenreserseeseenensensens o 469 325 783
Net cash provided by operating activities .........cc.ocecrevcrvcrrenrnns 8,968 7,055 7,563
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to property, plant and equipment........cccoveeceeneceieninnennnn (581) (2,085) (445)
Product Hine purchases .o cceeeeneee e sasnerasarasens — (8,603) (13,019)
Proceeds from sale of property ... 10 — 3
Proceeds from insurance claim ..........o.cooeeveceiienn e — 18 111
Collection of notes receivable,..........vviceeerreninninieee e, — — 14
Proceeds from termination of interest rate swap.......... FOTUTUTOROTPRR 30 — —
Additions to other 885815 .....cvivivirirerrerereeeeeeseeencans (261 (297) (106)
Net cash used in investing activities ........oooooviiiiicincicneae. (802) (10,967) (13,442)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal BOITOWINES .....cvvviviiiiniisiri e 8,400 — 10,000
Principal payments on borrowings.... (11,921) (3,591) (1,530)
Proceeds from stock placement (net of reiated expenses) .................... — 10,482 5,677
Proceeds from exercise of stock options.......oceevvininciiiiiicin, 83 38 67
Tax effect of exercise of nonqualified stock oOptions ........ociivvseernne 2,439 31 —
Payments of employee withholding tax for employee cashless
exercise of employee stock Options ... (1,540) — —
Payment of dividends........cccooveeiiniii e e (791} - (660) (529)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities................. (3,330) 6,300 13,685
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ................. 4,836 2,388 7,806
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR...... 11,168 8,780 974
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR ................... $ 16,004 3 11,168 8,780
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for interest ... $ . 1,008 637 549
Cash paid during the year for income taxes........c.ccoovrvsienivcvcnneecen 3 3814 % 2,853 1,103

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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KMG CHEMICALS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS ‘ - '
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General —KMG Chemicals, Inc. (the “Company™) is involved principally in the manufacture and sale of specialty
chemicals in niche markets through its wholly-owned subsidiary, KMG-Bemuth, Inc. (“KMG Bermuth™). The Company sells
two wood preserving chemicals—pentachlorophenol (“penta”) and creosote. The Company also sells.;animal health pesticides
to protect livestock and poultry from flies and other pests, including insecticidal ear tags for cattle, and feed-through and
pour-cn insecticidat products for use on livestock and their premises. We also sell an herbicide product line to protect cotton
crops from weed growth and for highway weed control.

The Company manufactures penta at its plant in Matamoros, Mexico through KMG de Mexico (“KMEX™), a Mexican
corporation which is.a wholly-owned subsidiary of KMG-Bemuth. The Company has three main suppliers of creosote, which
it sells throughout the United States. The Company contracts with third parties for the supply of the tetrachlorvinphos and .
other animal health active ingredients.

The Company’s significant accounting policies are as follows: -

. Principles of Consolidation —The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of KMG Chemicals, Inc.,
KMG-Bernuth, and KMEX. All significant inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. -

Use of Estimates —The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reporied amounts of
assets and Habilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

‘Cash and Cash Eguivalents —The Company considers all investments with original maturities of three months or less
when purchased to be cash equivalents. .

Fair Value of Financial Instruments —The carrying value of financial instruments, including cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, and accounts payable approximate fair value because of the relatively short maturity of
these instruments. The fair value of the Company’s debt at July 31, 2007 and 2006 was estimated to be the same as its
carrying value since the debt obligations bear interest at a rate consistent with current market rates.

Inventories —Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determmed using the first-in first-out
(“FIFO”) method.

Property, Plant, and Equipment —Property, plant, and equipment is stated at cost.less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Major renewals and betterments are capitalized. Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

Revenue Recognition —The Company has only one revenue recognition transaction in which our chemical products
sold in the open market are recognized as revenue when risk of loss and title to the products transfers to customers, which
usually occurs at the time a shipment is made.

Cost of Sales —Cost of sales includes inbound freight charges, purchasing and receiving costs, inspection costs and
internal transfer costs. In the case of products manufactured by the Company, direct and indirect manufacturing costs and
associated plant administrative expenses are inctuded as well as laid-in cost of raw materials consumed in the manufacturing
process.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts —The Company provides an allowance for accounts receivable that it believes may
not be collected in full. A provision for bad debt expense recorded to selling, general and administrative expenses increases
the allowance. Accounts receivable that are written off decrease the allowance. The amount of bad debt expense recorded
each period and the resulting adequacy of the allowance at the end of each period are determined using a customer-by-
customer analyses of accounts receivable balances each period and subjective assessments of future bad debt exposure,
Historically, write offs of accounts receivable balances have been insignificant. The allowance was $48,000 and $35,000 at
July 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses —These expenses include selling expenses, product storage and
handling costs and the cost (primarily common carrier freight) of distributing products to the Company’s customers.
Corporate headquarters’ expenses, amortization of intangible assets and environmental regulatory support expenses are also
included.

Advertising Costs —Our policy is to expense advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising costs were $537,000,
$130,000 and $96,000 in fiscal years ended July 31, 2007, 2006 and 20035, respectively.

Shipping and Handling Costs —Shipping and handling costs are included as both a cost of sales and as selling, general
and administrative expenses. Inbound freight charges and internal transfer costs are included-in cost of sales. Product storage
and handling costs and the cost of distributing products to the Company’s customers (distribution expense} are included in
selling, general and administrative expenses.

Income Taxes —Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined using the asset and liability method in
accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
established for future tax consequences of temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities and their tax basis.

Earnings Per Share —Basic carnings per common share amounts are calculated using the average number of common
shares outstanding during each period. Diluted earnings per share assumes the issuance of restricted stock awards and the
exercise of all stock opt10ns having exercise prices less than the average market price of the common stock using the treasury
stock method.

Foreign Currency Translation —The U.S. dollar is the functional currency for the Company’s foreign operations. For
those operations, re-measurements to U.S. dollars from currency translations are included in the statement of income.

Stock-Based Compensation — The Company has adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123
(revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment,” (“FAS 123(R)”} which requires the measurement and recognition of compensation
expense for all share-based payment awards made to employees and directors; including employee stock options, based on
estimated fair values. FAS 123(R) supersedes the Company’s previous accounting under Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees™ (“APB 25) for periods beginning in fiscal 2006, In March
2005, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 (“SAB 107”) relating to FAS 123(R). The Company has applied the
provisions of SAB 107 in its adoption of FAS 123(R).

The Company adopted FAS 123(R) using the modified prospective transition method, which requires the application of .
the accounting standard as of August 1, 2005, the first day of the Company’s fiscal year 2006.

No options were granted in fiscal years 2007 and 2006, In fiscal 2005 the fair value of options granted under equity
compensation plans was calculated to be approximately $279,000 for 50,000 shares ($5.59 per share) using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model. The model assumed a volatility of 63%, a dividend yield of .9%,-an expected term of 9.4 years,
and a risk free rate of 4.2%. Volatility was calculated using the historical volatility of the Company’s stock. The Company
has a history of no forfeitures or expirations, so none were assumed. All options have a 10-year contractual term upon
vesting. The risk free rate is based on interest rates for Treasury notes of comparable term.

The total intrinsic value of options exercised in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005 was approximately $6,43 1,000,
$84,000, and $4,000 respectively. The total fair value of shares vested during those same years were $59,000, $101,000 and
$384,000 respectively.
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As of July 31, 2007 there was approximately $132,000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-
vested employee stock options. This cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.6 years. A
summary of the status of the Company’s non-vested shares as of July 31, 2007 is presented below:

Year Ended July 31, 2007

Weighted
Average Fair
Number of Value per
' Shares Share
Non-Vested on August 1, 2006............ccoovimveevieneenereeeereeesieens o - 136,500 § 3.1t
Non-Vested Options Granted..........cccoimiiiimi —
VEBSIEA .ot e e se st e et es 19,500 §- - 3.03
Forfeited/EXPIred.........ooooiiieiiceie et ree st seeie e ] —
Non-Vested on July 31, 2007 ..o 117,000 S. 3.12

The effect on net earnings and earnings per share of the Company before and after application of the fair value
recognition provision of FAS 123(R) to stock-based employee compensation for the fiscal years ended July 31, 2007 and
2006 are illustrated below:

Year Ended July 31, 2007 Year Ended July 31, 2006
Net Earnings Effect of Stock Net Earnings Effect of Stock
Before Based Before Based
Applicationof  Compensation Net Earnings Application of  Compensation Net Earnings
FAS 123R - _Expense as Reported FAS 123R Expense as Reported
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data) (Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
Earnings before income . .
TAXES ..o veererreee e b 14,716 % (510) § 14,206 § 6,249 § (359) § 5,890
Provision for income
LAXES -oveonrneeeseeeeeesseerene (5,549) 192 - (5357) (2,243) 129 (2,114)
Net Earnings .....c..ccocoeeeeeee 3 9,167 § (318) $ 8849 § 4006 § (230) § 3,776
Earnings per share: ' '
Basic ........... e $ 0.87 (0.03) § 084 $ 045 § (0.03) S 0.42
Diluted ......covrvvrrrncnnn 3 083 - (0.03) § 080 3 042 § (0.02) 3 0.40

The pro forma efféct on net earnings and earnings per share as if the Company had applied the fair value recognition
provision of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards “Accounting for Stock-based compensation” (“FAS 1237),to
Stock-based employee compensation for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2005 is illustrated below, amounts in thousands except
per share data; . , S

2005
Net armings, a5 TEPOTTEA .......cevuceeeieiricinesee ettt es s s s e s s sa s sms b bbb es bbb ebebet st bbb st berseesanansans $ . 3,052
Add: Total stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net earnings under intrinsic
value based method for all awards, net of related tax effects ... —
Deduct: Total stock-based employce compensation expense determined under fair value based method for .
all awards, net of related 1ax effeCtS. .. ...cooovrieee e (254)
Pro fOrma Nt @armiNgs......cccovvevee it s a e et et e b b e ettt an e et aneaeans S 2,798
Eamings per share: ‘
Basic, as reported.........ccoveeeniieeenan E e b4 e et E oot R S A b e b eE et R e en e ke eme e b et "3 0.39
Basic, Pro fOTMA.......ooo e e g 0.35
Diluted, as reported........ e s et e et eetteeaneeeiereeeaeantesoeenteeineeeaaaaateieaanessearnnaaas $ 0.37
Diluted, pro forma .................... OO OSSO U OO O SOOI ] 0.34

Intangible Assets —For the purpose’ of the consolidated financial statements, identifiable intangible assets with a
defined life are being amortized using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the assets. Identifiable intangible
assets of an indefinite life are not amortized in accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”
These assets are required to be tested for impairment at least annually. See note 8 to the consolidated financial statements,

37




Concentrations of Credit Risks —Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant
concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable. Although the amount of
credit exposure to any one institution may exceed federally insured amounts, the Company limits its cash investments to
high-quality financial institutions in order to minimize its credit risk. With respect to accounts receivable, such receivables
are primarily from wood-treating manufacturers located worldwide and agriculture chemicals distributors in the United
States. The Company extends credit based on an evaluation of the customer’s financial condition, generally without requiring
collateral. Exposure to losses on receivables is dependent on each customer’s financial condition. At July 31, 2007, no
customer represented 10% or more of the Company’s accounts receivable. At July 31, 2006, one customer represented 15%
and another customer represented 11% of the Company’s accounts receivable, .

Concentration of Suppliers —The Company purchases creosote primarily from two suppliers. In fiscal year 2007 and -
fiscal year 2006, creosote represented 49% and 43% of total net sales, respectively.

Concentration of Operations in Other Countries —The Company manufactures penta and MSMA at its plant in
Matameoros, Mexico. Property, plant and equipment on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet of approximately
$2,705,000 in 2007 and $3,112,000 in 2006 are assignable to the Company’s plant in Mexico. This concentration of,
operations outside of the Company’s home country exposes the Company to the risk that its operations may be disrupted in
the future.

New Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Accounting for Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157
defines fair value, and establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP),
and expands disclosure about fair value measurements, SFAS No. 157 was effective for the Company for financial statements
issued subsequent to November 15, 2007. The new standard has not had any material impact on our financial position and
results of operations.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an interpretation of FASB
Statement No. 109.” This interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an entity’s
financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” It prescribes a recognition threshold
and measurement attribute for financial statement disclosure of tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return.
This interpretation is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company will be required to adopt
this interpretation in the first quarter of fiscal year 2008, Management is currently evaluating the requirements of FIN No. 48,
and the impact, if any, on our consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications —Certain reclassifications of prior year amounts have been made to conform to current year
presentation.

Segment Reporting —For purposes of financial disclosure, the Company’s four business segment operations are
organized around its four product lines. See note 15 to the notes to consolidated financial statements.

2 ACQUISITIONS

In February 2006, the Company purchased certain assets of the animal health pesticides business of Boehringer-
Ingelheim Vetmedica, Inc. The assets we purchased included pesticide registrations for pesticides used on cattle, swine,
poultry and livestock premises, a manufacturing and warehouse facility in Elwood, Kansas and related equipment. The
Company also purchased the insecticides finished goods, raw matenals and packaging inventory on hand at closing. The
pesticides registrations acquired in the transaction are for the United States, Canada, Mexico, Australia and several countries
in Latin America. The new pesticides include insecticidal ear tags for cattle and several IIqUId and dust formulations for
livestock and their premises. Through the end of fiscal year 2006, Boehringer Ingelheim marketed the purchased pesticides as
the Company’s sole distributor in the United States pursuant under a transition agreement. The purchase price was
approximately $8.9 million, including $2.7 million of inventory. The acquisition was financed entirely with available cash.
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In June 2005, the Company purchased certain penta assets from Basic Chemicals Company, LLC, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Occidental Chemical Company. The penta assets were.acquired by Basic Chemicals Company from Vulcan
Materials Company immediately prior to the Company’s purchase as part of a larger transaction to acquire the entire
chemicals business of Vulcan Materials. The consideration that was paid Basic Chemicals for the assets was $13,431,000 and
included a $10,000,000 promissory note. The promissory note is payable in five equal annual principal installments of
$2,000,000 plus interest at 4% per annum. The table below summarizes the total’ amount paid for the acquisition:

Cash paid 8t CLOSINE ....ccvuiecriiriiiiins it s e s ss st s st et e s e be b e b e s b e e b e nsas s es b b s nrn e s e raenrans $ 3,430,780
Promissory fote ........cceeeveeeieciee el et e e e e e e et e a et e e eaessbbaans 10,000,000
Other costS Of ACQUISTHON ..ooiiiiieee ettt e et e e eeaeeeas s e et aencassamsamearensesneas 18,934
Total conSIderation Paid.........cooiiieiiie e et b e ra e re gt $ 13,449,714

The purchased assets included product registrations and related data, manufacturing equipment, a non-compete
agreement with the seller, and the seller’s inventory of finished product. The table below summarizes the allocation of the
purchase price to the acquired assets:

INVEIIOTY ettt feeeee et ae e enestee e e e s erseenat e es £ e e e are b et eae e erne b 430,780

Equipment......... ' ............................. v s et rererrrees L 579,782

Total tangible assets................. vt resereran s e SR, et eenee , 1,010,562

Non-compete agreement ... s ererarararaeer e e e arararararares e reeeeeeeeaes eeeeeee e eeenes 85,770

Penta supply agreement ...l OO O RO URTOOTN esinninens 5,948,058
Product registrations ............ ettt e s S, s 6,405,324

Total intangible assets................... R AR S s s 12,439,152

TOMAl ACQUITEA ASSELS.........ovvvvereeereeerrseeseeesossesseessssesssssssessessesseseseeessaseeesssesssaseesessssasessssasasssseesesnsesesesses ' 13,449,714

3 INVENTORIES

1nvent0ries are sumiﬁariz_ed as follows at July 31, 2007 and ZOdQ (in thousands):

‘ ' 2007 2006
Chemical raw materials and supplles ........... S e $ 3933 3,500
Finished chemical products ..........cocooooeioeeeeeeeeeeee e 9134 - 6,471
$ 13,067 § 9,971

4, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant, and equipment and related accumulated depreciation and amortization are summarized as follows at
July 31, 2007 and 2006 (in thousands):

2007 2006

I 11T« O OO SO OT PRSP $ 666 § 666
Buildings. ..o e ettt ens 5,364 4,902
PLANT. ..ot ee ettt et et e e e 781 776
EQUIPIMENL. ...ttt ettt et e ee e teeeeetesneeeeeneetesmeesensesnenenes 6,789 6,274
Leasehold improvements . .......cooooovvieeeeeeeeee et 132 125
13,732 12,743

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ............cccceveeeieveeiceeeeee e (5,345) {4314)
8,387 8,429
CONSENUCHION-IN-PIOZIESS ©..vevevireriirarrererseisetenseseseesetessenssessesesseessessssessssssssesssasasnseseaes 76 720
Net property, plant and eqQUIPIMENL. ...t bere s $ 8463 § 9,149
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Approximately 32% of the Company’s property, plant and equipment is located in Matamoros, Mexico. Most of the
remaining property, plant, and equipment is located at the Company’s formulation and distribution facilities in Elwood,
Kansas and Tuscaloosa, Alabama.

Depreciation is computed using a straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation
expense was approximately 31,100,000, $1,308,000 and $1,081,000 in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The
estimated useful lives of classes of assets are as follows:

Asset Description Life (Years)
BUTIAING .o, - 15 to 30

Plant ....cco.oooeeeeeeeceeeen 101018
Equipment.........ccorveirecrarenes 3wol0
"Leasehold improvements....... remaining life of the lease

5.  IMPAIRMENT CHARGE

As a result of the deterioration in MSMA market conditions at the end of fiscal year 2006 and regulatory action
taken by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA™), we concluded that assets related to MSMA were
impaired, and that an impairment charge of $2.4 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006 was required based on
diminished future expected cash flows and a shorter expected useful life. The net value of the long-lived MSMA assets on the
Company's balance sheet as of the end of fiscal year 2006 was $175,000 after the impairment charge. The impaired assets
consist of registrations and property, plant and equipment related to the production of MSMA products at Matamoros,
Mexico. This impairment charge was included in selling, general and administrative expenses in fiscal year 2006. The
impairment charge appears solely in the agricultural chemicals business segment. The fair value of the long-lived MSMA
assets, for purposes of determining the impairment charge, was calculated using an expected present value technique that
assumed multiple cash flow scenarios reflecting the range of possible future outcomes. A risk free rate consisting of the
interest rate.earned by Treasury notes was employed to determine the present value of the future cash flow streams.

6. FOREIGN CURRENCY REMEASUREMENT

Monetary assets and liabilities and income items for KMEX are re-measured to U.S. dollars at current rates, and
certain assets (notably plant and production equipment) are re-measured at historical rates. Expense items for KMEX are re-
measured at average monthly rates of exchange except for depreciation and amortization expense. All gains and losses from
currency re-measurement for KMEX are included in operations. Foreign currency re-measurement resulted in an aggregate
exchange loss of approximately $4,000, $9,000 and $12,000 in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 20035, respectively.
7. INCOME TAXES

The geographical sources of income before income taxes for each of the three years ended July 31 (in thousands):

2007 2006 2005
UINEEA AL v evevererrerrssersiereressereeseorereersorasemeseareeseesereenane SSUTRR § 13,748 § 6,366 § 3,934
FOTBIEN .. ittt ettt s e e st reere e b 458 {476) 886
INCOME DefOre INCOME TAXES ..ot stete e eeeete s e e easeaes $ 14206 $ 5890 § 4,820
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The provision for income taxes for the years ended July 31 consisted of the following (ih thousands):

2007 2006 2005
Current: . . L 7 ' 1 .
FEARTal ...ttt et e . % 4863 § 2438 - § . 793
Foreign. .o eerereae et bbbt e . : 175 - 286 191
SHALE ....oovirorivrerer e e rerc st e oot e s e s b e saesennsaer s e . 594 297.. 122
5,632 3,021 1,106
Deferred: .o “ L
Federal ... (184) (410) 564
Foreign....c.ccooeeninenn ettt r ettt ettt ekt ete e et b en e seae et e st e e e rRea e bt e ba b eaban s . . (461) ' 48
STALE ottt ee e e e ea b bbb et earaneeeens {16) . . {16) 50
275) (907) 662
TOAL ettt ettt et st st e b 5,357 § 2,114 § 1,768
Deferred income taxes are provided on all temporary differences between financial and taxabie income. The '
following table presents the components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities at July 31, 2007 and 2006 (in -
thousands): ' ‘
2007 - 2006
Deferred tax assets:
Current deferred tax assets:
Bad debt XPEnSE ....ooeeve ettt eves sttt e er e et e eaneeene st ases T 18 §- 13
TIIVEIITOTY 1ottt eb bbb e b e s e e b as e e b easees 94 76
Accrued Habilities ..o et 5 15
R oot be e e st b1t et a e b e ae st e nrerns TR 125 94
Total current deferred taX 8SSCLS ......ocovvvririeivierieiiieis s bnesnere $ . 242§ 198
Non-current deferred tax assets \ - ’
Difference in depreciable basis of Property ... 8 856 % 903
Deferred compensation v ettt ettt e 308 183
Total non-current deferTed taX ASSEES ..ot ib ittt e e e e eee e s ereeeenis . $ 1,164 § 1,086
Deferred tax liabilities:
Current deferred tax labilities: . : . ‘ ' ‘ ‘
Prepaid ASSELS..........cevceinieierie et ce et bat et et b e s S °$ (126) % " (174)
Non-current deferred tax liabilities: ' _ . .
FOVEILEOTY ..ottt se ettt a e e ne et e e ne et e en bt e bst s snsaennne e (27 (173)
Ditference in amortization basis of intangibles .........ccocovvcnniiiiinine e (165) (225)
OBIET .ttt et b R bbb bt en et an s rereeas — (32)
Total non-current deferred tax labilities ......ocoovieieeven i e (292) (430)
Net current deferred tAX ASSEE ............o..oovvevuevrereeess oo s seeeeeeeseeeseeesereserese s eseresesas ) 116 § . 24
Net non-current deferred tax asset (HabilIty) ......oovoveeeeiereece i rrers s seenens 3 872 § 656
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No valuation allowance has been provided for as the Company expects to fully realize its deferred tax assets in
future years.

Undistributed earnings of the Company’s foreign subsidiary amounted to approximately $3.7 million at
July 31, 2007, Those earnings are considered to be permanently reinvested; accordingly, no provision for United States

* federal and/or state income taxes has been provided thereon. Upon repatriation of those earnings, in the form of dividends or

otherwise, the Company will be subject to both United States income taxes (subject to an adjustment for foreign tax credits)
and potentially withholding taxes payable to the foreign country. Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred
United States income tax liability is not practicable due to the complexities associated with its hypothetical calculation.

During calendar 2004, a new income tax law became effective in Mexico. The corporate income tax rate became
30% for calendar 2005, 29% for 2006 and 28% for 2007 and thereafter. .

The following table accounts for the differences between the actual tax provision, and the amounts obtained by
applying the applicable statutory United States federal income tax rate of 34%, to earnings before income taxes for the years
ended July 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 (in thousands).

2007 2006 2005
Income taxes at the federal statutory rate of 3d%..........ccccieinna. $ 4830 § 2,003 % 1,639
Effect of foreign Operations ... eeeneens 9 (13) (62)
State income taxes, net of federal income tax effect...coovceveecvivvrireveennnen. 441 160 , 118
OB ettt ts st e bs b e st e mesba s s baa s b e easasataasernesb e e e s snsannnnenn 95 (36) . 73
TOLAL e vt sereeee e e ee e e eeeeetbe et bsb e bt s st s satara b abe s s rea st aaas s esbarnsnar e rrrbenraebeaneernen $ 5357 % 2,114 % 1,768

8. INTANGIBLE AND OTHER ASSETS

Intangible and other assets at July 31, 2007 and 2006 are summarized as follows:

2007 2006
(Amounts in thousands) .

Intangible assets not subject to amortization:

Creosote product TRZISITAtIONS .....c.c.crerermimreecciiiieee e ssbsbsts st st s by 6,518 §$ 6,518
Other creosote related ASSEIS.....uvviiieiierireieerestereee oot bbb s s s nas 78 78
Penta product registratioNs. ..o cceeeer s reiseeseinsr i ss st assas s s st 8,765 8,765

15,361 15,361

Intangible assets subject to amortization:

Creosote SUPPLY CONMTACT... ..ot et sb et be s e nb s ts s enae e e 4,000 4,000
Other creosote related assets 131 ) 131
Other penta related ASSELS ......occvvviiiinii e et 7,288 7,288
MSMA product registrations and related assets ... 48 48
Sodium penta licensing agreement ... vveieeeecncnns et — 320
Animal health trademarks ........cccovoecieciininn e s e 304 364
Other animal health related GSSEtS........ovvvieiviriesreseesr e s e 6,165 * 6,165
LLOAI COBES cuevarrererrareririiesteseeseseesesentesaenestessasessesesnensesesnsmessssesnsresmesbet 14 0statsinsssssaseassssanns 30 124
18,026 18,440
Total IntanZible ASSELS....e vt e 33,387 33,801
Less accumulated amOMiZation. ... s s (9,691) (7,353)

$ 23696 % 26,448

Other assets consisted of the following:

Cash surrender value on key man life insurance policies ... $ 1,740 § 1,515
L0 14 (1=t ST US U O OO U PO UP ROV OUU T 72 152
g 1,812 § 1,667
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Amortization expense was approximately $2,700,000, $2,600,000 and $1,123,000 for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and
2005. The acquisition of animal health assets from Boehringer Ingetheim in fiscal year 2006 added approximately $54,000 to
amortization expense in fiscal year 2006. The acquisition of the penta assets formerly owned by Vulcan Materials Company
added approximately $1,667,000 to amortization expense in fiscal year 2006. The estimated amortization expense 1§
projected to be approximately $2,676,000, $1,454,000, $636 000, $615,000 and $386,000 for fiscal years 2008 through 2012,
respectively.

- The Company performed its annual impairment analysis of goodwill and intangible assets not subject to
amortization as of July 31, 2007 and 2006 and concluded that an impairment charge was not appropriate. The Company
incurred an impairment on' MSMA product registrations, which is an intangible asset subject to amortization. See note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements.

9.  LONG-TERM DEBT - .

As of May 16, 2007 we entered into a new credit agreement with our lender, Wachovia Bank, National Association.
The new credit agreement replaced existing credit facilities, and provided for both a revolving loan facility of up to
$8.0 million and a term loan facility of $8.4 million. Advances under the revolving loan facility mature on Aprit 30, 2010,
and advances under the term loan facility mature on January 31, 2013. Advances under both the revolving and term loan
facilities bear interest at a varying rate of LIBOR plus a margin based on our funded debt to EBITDA.

Ratio of Funded Debt to EBITDA Margin
Equal to or greater than 2.5 10 1.0 .ot 2.75%
Equal to or greater than 2.0 to 1.0, but less than 2.5 t0 1.0 2.25%
Equal to or greater than 1.75 to 1.0, but less than 2.0 t0 L0 < 1.70%.
Equal to or greater than 1.0 to 1.0, but less than 1.75 to L0 1.20%
Less than 1O 0 L. et e e 1.00%

The new credit facility is secured by our assets, including inventory, accounts receivable, equipment, and general
mtanglbles but excluding real property. The new facility has restrictive covenants including the maintenance of a fixed
charge coverage ratio of 1.25 to 1.0 and a ratio of funded debt to the sum of funded debt and owner’s equity of not more than
45%. The Company is in compliance with credit facility.-covenants.

At Juiy 31, 2007, we had not borrowed under our revelving loan facility, and our borrowing base availability under -
that facility was $8.0 million. Management believes that the new revolving loan facility, combined with cash flows from
operations, will adequately provide for our working capital needs for current operations for the next twelve months.

Qur purchase of certain penta assets from Basic Chemical Company in fiscal 2006 was financed in part by a
$10.0 million loan from the seller. The indebtedness is payable in five equal annual installments of $2.0 million plus interest
at 4% per annum: The principal balance of that indebtedness was $6.0 mllhon at July 31, 2007, The next installment of
principal will be paid in June 2007. -

Our purchase of the Rabon animal health products business in fiscal 2003 and our acquisitions in fiscal 2004 were
financed in part by two term loans under a senior credit facility with Wachovia Bank. The combined principal balance of
those two term loan facilities with Wachovia Bank was approximately $8.4 million at April 30, 2007. Those two term loans
have now been combined in the term loan facility entered into with Wachovia Bank as of May 16, 2007. Currently the
amount outstanding under the term loan facility bears interest at LIBOR plus 1%. Principal on the term loan is payable in
monthly installments of $138,000. For fiscal 2008, the interest spread over LIBOR for the term loan is expected to be 1.00%.

.Interest expense incurred in fiscal year 2007 on indebtedness totaled $945,000. In fiscal year 2007, the Company
terminated an-interest rate swap established in February 2003 under its prior credit facility for a gain of $30,000.

Principal payments due under long-term debt agreements for the years ended July 31 are as follows (in thousands):

Total 2008 2009 2010 M1l 2012

Long-term debt .....cceverenenne. $ 14,124  § 3,656 3§ 3,656 § 3656 % 1,656 $ 1,500

(1) Estimated payments are based on forecast interest rates as of August 2007.
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10, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Contractual Obligations —The Company has non-cancelable operating leases for its office and warehouse facilities and
certain transportation equipment. Its other long-term liabilities consist of obligations under a supplemental executive
retirement plan. See note 12 to the notes to the consolidated financial statements. Qur obligations to make future payments
under certain contractual obligations as of July 31, 2007 are summarized in the following table (in thousands).

Total 2008 2009 201¢ 2011 2012 Thereafter
Operating leases...........oovvveierricrevernineenene 3,012 1,064 876 708 204 158 . 2
Other long-term liabilities (1) .......cccooeeencne. 364 364
Purchase obhgations (2)............oeeeeeeemeenens 185,760 35,427 34,464 23,198 15,223 13,871 63,577

Total.....ooi e 189,136 36,491 35,704 23,906 15,427 14,029 63,579

(1) Post retirement benefit obligations are included.

(2) Consists primarily of raw materials purchase contracts. These are typically not fixed prices arrangements. The prices are
based on the prevailing market prices. As a result we generally expect to be able to pass on the costs of raw materials at
those future prices as a component of our product sales.

Rent expense relating to the operating leases was approximately $1,131,000, 31,053,000, and $948,000 in fiscal
years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively,

Environmental —The Company’s operations are subject to extensive federal, state and local laws, regulations and
ordinances in the United States and abroad relating to the generation, storage, handling, emission, transportation and
discharge of certain materials, substances and waste into the environment, and various other health and safety matters.
Governmental authorities have the power to enforce compliance with their regulations, and violators may be subject to fines,
injunctions or both. The Company must devote substantial financial resources to ensure compliance, and it believes that it is
in substantial compliance with all the applicable laws and regulations.

Certain licenses, permits and product registrations are required for the Company’s products and operations in the
United States, Mexico and other countries in which it does business. The licenses, permits and product registrations are
subject to revocation, modification and renewal by governmental authorities. In the United States in particular, producers and
distributors of chemicals such as penta, éreosote, tetrachlorvinphos and MSMA are subject to registration and notification
requirements under federal law (including under FIFRA, and comparable state law) in order to sell those products in the
United States. Compliance with these requirements has had, and in the future will continue to have, a material effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations, '

1 .

‘The Company incurred expenses in connection with FIFRA research and testing programs of approximately
$1,500,000, $1,200,000 and $990,000 in fiscal year 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. These costs are included in selling,
general, and administrative expenses.

Litigation —The Company is and may become a party in routine legal actions or proceedings in the ordinary course
of its business. Management does not believe that the outcome of any of these routine matters will have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In connection with the termination in 1998 of a “split-dollar insurance” plan with a former officer, the Company
amortized a non-interest bearing note to compensation expense over a five-year period ending in fiscal year 2005, The
amortization was $14,000 in fiscal years 2005,
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12, EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company has a defined contribution 401(k) plan covering substantially all of its U.S. employees. The Company
makes matching contributions under this plan of up to 3% of the participant’s compensation. Company contributions to the
plan totaled approximately $88,000, $63,000 and $48,000 in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

In July 2001, the Company adopted a supplemental executive retirement plan. Only persons specifically designated
by the company may be participants in the plan. The plan is unfunded and amounts payable to participants are general
obligations of the company. The plan provides that a participant will be paid a supplemental retirement benefit for 10 years
equal to a percentage of the participant’s three-year average base salary at normal retirement. The benefit payable to
participants is reduced by the equivalent actuarial value of the Company’s other pension plan payments to the participant, if
any, the Company’s 401(k} plan and one-half social security benefits. Normal retirement is the earlier of age 65 and
completion of 10 years credited service or age 60 with 30 years credited service. One executive was designated as a
participant in August 2001, which resulted in $76,000, $69,000 and $63,000 of expenses for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively. As of July 31, 2007, and 2006, the liability under this plan was $364,000 and $288,000, respectively.

13. SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMERS

The Company had no customer to whom sales as a percentage of total sales was 10% or more in fiscal years 2007
and 2006, and had one customer to whom sates as a percentage of total sales was 10% in fiscal year 2005.

14. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND EARNINGS PER SHARE

On July 6, 2006, the Company sold shares of common stock in a public offering underwritten by Boenning &
Scattergood, Inc. and Sterne, Agee & Leach, Inc. In the offering the Company sold 1,710,000 shares of common stock. The
shares were sold at a price per share of $7.00 (36.51 net of underwriting discounts and commissions of $.49 per share). After
offering expenses, the Company received $10.5 million in net proceeds from the sale of 1,710,000 shares of common stock.

On April 21, 2005, we sold 1,200,000 shares of common stock in a private placement. Tontine Capital Partners, L.P.
purchased 1,000,000 shares, and Terrier Partners, L.P. purchased 200,000 shares. The shares were purchased at a price of
$5.00 per share for an aggregate price of $6,000,000. The Company paid a fee of $275,000 and issued 10,000 treasury shares
to Boenning & Scattergood, Inc., for acting as placement agent in connection with the offering. The securities sold in the
offering were sold in reliance on the exemption from registration in Rulé 506 of Regulation D under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended and pursuant to the exemption under Section 4(2) of that act.

The Company adopted the 1996 Stock Option Plan (the “1996 Stock Plan™) on October 15, 1996, and reserved
700,000 shares of its common stock for issuance under that plan. The 1996 Stock Plan was amended in August 2003, and the
maximum number of common shares that may be granted under it was increased to 1,070,000 shares. The Plan terminated by
expiration of its original term on July 31, 2007, but options previously issued under the 1996 Stock Plan remain in effect. The
1996 Stock Plan provides for the grant of “incentive stock options,” as defined in Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended, and nonqualified stock options. The 1996 Stock Plan is administered either by the Company’s Board of
Directors or by a committee of two or more non-employee directors. Subject to the terms of the 1996 Stock Plan, the Board
of Directors or the committee has the authority to grant options, to amend, construe, and interpret the plan, and to make all
other determinations and take any and all actions necessary or advisable for its administration. The directors, consultants, and
key employees of the Company or any subsidiary were eligible to receive nonqualified options under the 1996 Stock Plan,
but only salaried employees of the Company or its subsidiaries are eligible to receive incentive stock options.

Options are exercisable during the period specified in each option agreement and in accordance with a vesting
schedule designated by the Board of Directors or the committee. Any option agreement may provide that options become
immediately exercisable in the event of a change or threatened change in control of the Company and in the event of certain
mergers and reorganizations of the Company. Options may be subject to early termination within a designated period
following the option holder’s cessation of service with the Company.

The Company adopted a 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan in October 2004 which was approved by the shareholders
at the Company’s annual meeting in November 2005. The 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan permits the granting of incentive
stock options, non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance
awards, dividend equivalent rights, and other awards. It is administered by the Board of Directors or a committee appointed
by the Board of Directors. The Board has designated the Compensation Committee as the administrator of the 2004 Long-
Term Incentive Plan. Subject to the terms of the 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan, the committee has the sole discretion to
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select the persons eligible to reccive awards under the 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan; the type'and amount of incentives to
be awarded, and the terms and conditions of awards. The committee also has the authority to interpret the 2004 Long-Term
Incentive Plan, and establish and amend regulations necessary or appropriate for its administration. Any employee of the
Company or a subsidiary of the Company or a director of the Company whose judgment, initiative, and efforts contributed or
may be expected to contribute to the successful performance of the Company is eligible to participate. The maximum number
of shares of the Company’s common stock that may be delivered pursuant to awards granted under the Plan is 375,000
shares. No executive officer may receive in any calendar year stock options or stock appreciation rights relating to more than
250,000 shares of common stock, or awards that are subject to the attainment of performance goals relating to more than
100,000 shares of commeon stock. The Company adopted FAS 123(R) using the modified prospective transition method,
which requires the application of the accounting standard as of August 1, 2003, the first day of the Company s fiscal year
2006. .

A summary of optlon actwny assoctated with employee compensation for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2007 is
presented below.

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining Aggregate
Average Contractual Intrinsic Value
Shares Excrcise Price Life (vears) (3000

Stock options on August 1,2006............cccooveveirniininiininnn, 774950 % 417
Granted ... 0 s —
ExXercised .......ccoooviniiiinnc it (345,450) §$ 4.64
Forfeited/EXpired.........coorerrrrnceececeece e enesecnenes 0 3 —
Stock optionts outstanding on July 31, 2007 ..ol 429500 $ 3.80 - 780 $ 7,281
Stock options exercisable on July 31, 2007 ... 312,500 S 3.62 561 § 5,354

No options were granted in fiscal years 2007 and 2006, In fiscal 2005 the fair value of options granted under equity
compensation plans was calculated to be approximately $279,000 for 50,000 shares ($5.59 per share} using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model. The model assumed a volatility of 63%, a dividend yield of .9%, an expected term of 9.4 years,
and a risk free rate of 4.2%. Volatility was calculated using the historical volatility of the Company’s stock. The Company
has a history of no forfeitures of expirations, so none were assumed. All-options have a 10-year contractual term upon
vesting. The risk free rate is based on interest rates for Treasury notes of comparable term. '

The total intrinsic value of options exercised in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005 was approximately $6,431,000,
$84,000, and 34,000 respectively.

In connection with an acquisition of certain penta assets in fiscal year 2003, the Company granted an affiliate of the
seller an option to acquire 175,000 shares by common stock at an exercise price of $2,50 per share. The option is exercnsable

for five years, and as of July 31 2007 the holder has exercised 25,000 shares :

As of July 31, 2007 there was approximately $132,000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-
vested employee stock options. This cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.6 years. -
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Performance based stock awards were granted to certain executives in fiscal 2005 and 2007 under. the Company’s
2004 Long Term Incentive Plan. The awards were granted as Series | and Series 2 awards as follows: :

s

Closing 3-Year
. [ Maximum Stock Price Measurement
Dateof . - . o Award on Grant : Period Projected Fair Value
Grant Series Award - (Shares) Date Ending {8000

09/02/2005 ......ccoevvmee. Series | 29,040 § 8.35 07/31/2007 $ 145
09/02/2005 ..., Series 2 . 19360 § 8.35 07/31/2007 ¥ 110
48,400 $ ., 255
02/16/2007 ..o Series 1 23850 $ 1016  07/31/2009 §$ 242
02/16/2007.............. eeeeeen Series 2 15900 5 10.16 07/31/2009 S 162
. : 39,750 $ 404
Total 88,150 b 659

*

The 2005 and 2007 Serics | awards are subject to 2 performance requirement composed of certain revenue growth
objectives and average annual return.on equity objectives measured across a three year period, The revenue growth objectives
and average annual return on equity objectives are estimated quarterly using the Company’s budget, actual results and long
term projections. Based on performance through July 31, 2007, 60% and 100% was projected to be the probable vesting for
the 2005.and 2007 Series 1 awards, respectively, at the end of their measurement periods. Therefore, the 2005 Series 1 award
was projected to have a fair value of approximately $145,000 to be recognized over the 23 months between the grant date and
the vesting date. The 2007 Series | award was projected to have a fair value of approximately $242,000 to be recognized over
29.5 months, i

* The 2005 Series 2 award is subj’ect to a performance requirement that the average annual total sharcholder return
equal or exceed 10% over a three year measurement period. Total shareholder return is calculated using both stock price
appreciation and dividends paid. The fair value for the maximum number of Sertes 2 shares was $162,000. Using a binomial
model, it was determined that there was a 32% probability that the average annual total shareholder return would not exceed
10%. Therefore, the fair value of the Series 2 award was discounted by 32% to approximately $1 10,000 to be recogmzed over
23 months. The risk free interest rate used in the binomial model was based on Treasury note interest rates and was 4.0%.

The volatility used in the model was 56%. The time to maturity was 1.9 years.

The 2007 Senes 2 award is subject toa performance requ:rement pertaining to the growth rate in the Company’s
earnings per share over a three year measurement period. The eamings per share growth rate is estimated quarterly using the
Company’s budget, actual results and long term projections. Based on performance through July 31, 2007 the 2007 Series 2
award was projected to have a fair value of $162,000 to be recog,mzed over 29.5 months. ’

. As of July 31, 2007, no shares have been vested from either the 2005 or 2007 awards and there was a projected total
unrecogmzed compensation cost related to non- vested share grants of approxlmalely $329,000. This cost will be recognized
over the fiscal years 2008 and 2009. _ . _ ,

The Company recognized $54,000 in fiscal year 2007 in compensation cost relating to the vesting of stock options
that were granted in prior fiscal years. The Company recognized $133,000 and $75,000 in fiscal year 2007 relating to the
vesting of the 2005 and 2007 performance stock awards, respectively. At July 31, 2007, there werc approximately 242,975
shares available for future grants under equity compensation plans (the 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan).
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The following is a reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of basic and dituted carnings.per share
computations, taking into account vested and unvested stock options whose strike price is less than the market price, in
accordance with SFAS No. [28:

Year Ended July 31, 2007

Income Shares Earnings
(Numerator)  (Denominator) Per Share’
BASIC 1 e s e rr i $ 8,849 10,573 % " 0.84
Effect of dilutive securities — options and stock awards...........ceeevievenenn. 461 (0.04)
DIUEd ...ttt et er e en $ 8,849 11,034 § 0.80
o Year Ended July 31, 2006
’ Income Shares Earnings
(Numerator) {Denominator) Per Share
BASIC 1ooerooeoevovese oo eeser e eees s seseeese e eseeser e srnereee s B $ 3,776 8914 § 0.42
Effect of dilutive securities - options and stock awards..........cccceeerennen. o, 533 (0.02)
Diluted ..o ererren peeereeenennnens R $ 3,776 ‘ . 0447 § 0.40
' Year Ended July 31,2005 __
Income Shares Earnings
{Numerator) °  {Denominator) Per Share
Basic .. SOOI | © 3,052 7901 % 0.39
Effect of dllutwe secuntles opuons and stock awards ........................... 355 {0.02)

Diluted .....ccoiiiiiniiiiiinoni i e s b 3,052 8256 % 0.37

15.  BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company operates in four business segments organized around its four product lines: pentachlorophenol (penta)

products, creosote, animal health products and our herbicide products (MSMA). The accountmg pOthes of the segments are

the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies. .
The penta segment manufactures and sells its penta products line, including penta blocks, flakes, solutions, and a

byproduct of penta production. Penta is used primarily to treat electric and telephone utility poles, protecting them from

mold, mildew, fungus and insects. The creosote segment sells creosote products as a wood preservative for railroad crossties

and utility poles. Our creosote suppliers distill coal tar, and creosote is a by-product of that process. The Cpmpang} supplies
industrial users with both penta products and creosote. The animal health segment sells pesticides products under the trade
names Rabon, Ravap, Patriot and Annihilator. These pesticide products are used by domestic livestock and poultry growers
to protect animals from flies and other pests. The Company’s agricultural chemicals segment sells products containing
monosodium methanearsonic acids (MSMA). These herbicides are sold to protect cotton crops, primarily in the Umted
States’ southern cotton-growing states and in California, and to state agencies to control highway weed growth.
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Non-domestic net revenues in the penta segment were approximately $1,787,000, $1,005,000 and $1,013,000 in
fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005. Non-domestic net revenues in the creosote segment were negligible in all years, Non-
domestic net revenues in the animal health segment were $803,000, $301,000 and $62,000 in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively. Non-domestic net revenues in the agricultural chemicals segment were approximately $969,000,
$779,000 and $518,000 in fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The following table sets forth segment information

for the past three fiscal years:

Revenues

Depreciation and amortization

PONA ..ot st a e
Cre0S0te ...vveceeeceeeceeeie vt s canenrand eteenede e i tnr e e e s e s et erneaaean
Animal Health...........ccooooii e it e e e et bssaae
Agricultural Chemicals ..o ]

H

Income (loss) from operations

PENTA coooviii e et bbbt

PEMIA oot s

2007 2006 2005
{(Amounts in thousands) ’

28,377 27,862 20,806
43,645 30,674 29,199
14,149 8,664 5,059
3,614 3,816 4,104
89,785 71,016 59,168
2,485 2,334 886
297 293 208
899 409 150

_ 100 821 ' 817
3,781 3,857 2,151
9,504 9,145 6,102
9,175 4,048 2,933
3,112 1,537 1,015
{533) (3,235 (368)
21,258 11,495 9,682
362 1,437 13,363

23 — —

197 6,343 —

— 338 62
582 8,118 13,425
22,920 25,641 24 805
16,223 11,115 12,180
18,401 17,499 6,969
2,982 3,564 6,132
60,326 57,819 50,086

(1) Includes non-cash impairment charge of approximately $2,400,000 in fiscal year 2006. See note 5 to consolidated

financial statements.-

49




A reconciliation of total segment to consolidated amounts for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005 is set forth in the

table below. .

Revenues:
Total revenues for reportable segments .......c.ococeeveeceeerceciseennene.
Other rEVENUES ..ot

Profit or Loss:
Total profit or loss for reportable segments......o.cccocoeicniinncn
Interest income............. eeetreeaera e e e aaeaan e eeenre et e e e e e rrenaees
Interest eXpense ...oocvviceeerieniereeercerinnes rmerere s are et e e s e mrr e e eaeaesanrne
Other profit 0T 1085 ...c..ovvieis s .
Other corporate expense .......... creseeneas tere ettt
Income before INCOME tAXES ...cvecveeveecierciercr e s e eesreeneeeas

Assets:
Total assets for reportable segmeEnts........cocveicievciciinninniinnincnnn,
Cash and cash equivalents ........c..ccoorievirciccren
Prepaid and other current assets........coocveererveeercececniecnn e
Deferred tax assets.......coocooviiiinenisnsniisccs i
OLhEr BSSEES ... eucriiirie ettt e reen
Consolidated 10tal .......ccovveirierineciic s

2006

16. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

First
Quarter
Year Ended July 31, 2007

INEESAIES..coi ittt sttt et 5 17,251
Gross profit. . 6,089
Operating income......., ettt eeeeennn 2,558
Income before income taxes ......cooevercmenn. - 2,461
Nt INCOME vt sere s e e rre e e anaas 1,571
Per share data:

Earnings per share - basic.......cocoeccveccicnannns

Earnings per share - diluted .............cccccenneins 0.14

Year Ended July 31, 2006

Nt SAlES ..o 3 14,373
Gross Profit .o 5,055
Operating inCoOME.........ooovirercieveninimreneneeeenes 1,270
Income before income taxes ........cooveeeveeeeeeenenns 1,088
NET INCOME . ..ccviririiernicirere e e e seeneenes 686
Per share data:

Earnings per share - basic .........ccccvvevrrene 0.08

Eamings per share - diluted ...........ococveneee. 0.07
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2007 2005
(Amounts in thousands)
§ 89,785 § 71,016 § 59,168
3 89,785 § 71,016 3 59,168
b3 21,258 § 11,495 3§ 9,682
560 28] 73
(945) (1,044) (620)
6 (35) (35)
(6,673) (4,807) (4,280)
3 14,206 § 5890 % 4,820
3 60,526 § 57,819 § 50,086
16,004 11,168 8,780
1,673 1,108 722
1,031 713 81
1,999 1,894 1,434
3 81,233 3§ 72,702 § 61,103
Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
$ 19,457 8§ 28,036 § 25,041
6,750 10,313 7,691
2,395 6,137 3,495
2,290 6,001 3,454
1,462 3774 2,042
0.14 0.36 0.19
0.13 0.34 0.19
h) 15,544  §$ 21,0l6- § 20,083
5,528 6,874 6,401
1,332 3,234 852
1,164 3,003 635
719 1,854 517
0.08 0.21 0.05
0.08 0.20 0.05
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

1]

None
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The term “disclosure controls and procedures” is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities i
Exchange Act of 1934. This term refers to the cdntrols and procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that i
information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, ‘
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the Securities and Exchange Commission. Our ‘
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of our |
disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this annual report. Based upon that evaluation, our }
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were !
effective as of the end of the period covered by this annual report.

There were no changes to our internal control over financial reporting during our last fiscal quarter that has
materially affected, or is reasonable likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None
PART III

Pursuant to-instruction G(3) to Form 10-K, the information required by Items 10-11, a portion of Item 12 and Items
13-14 of Part III is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement -relating to our annual meeting of
shareholders on November 27, 2007, which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of
the end of fiscal year 2007,

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

\ . _ . .
The Company’s 1996 Stock Option Plan was adopted and approved by its sharcholders in 1996, and has been filed
previously as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s report on Form 10-QSB12G filed on December 6, 1996. The 1996 Stock Option
Plan terminated by expiration of its original term as of July 31, 2007, but options previously issued under the plan remain in
effect. The 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan was adopted and approved by the shareholders in 2004, and has been filed
previously as Exhibit 10.21 to the Company’s report on Form 10-Q filed on December 15, 2004. The 2004 Long-Term
Incentive Plan is curiently the Company’s only equity compensation plan, and the following information is provided as of
July 31, 2007. o

. Number of securities
Number of securities to Weighted-average available for

be issued upon exercise exercise price of future issuance under equity
of outstanding options, outstanding options, compensation plans (excluding
warrants and rights warrants and rights *_securities reflected in column (a))
(a} - (1) ! (©)
Plan Category
Equity compensation plans I -
approved by security
holders .i...ooovvviiieeeeeccieeeene 312,500 3 : 3.62 242 975
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security .
holders ..o None

Total...coocviiiiiiieee 312,500 % .- 362 242,975
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON .FORM 10-K

(a)

The financial statements filed as part of this report in item 8 are listed in the Index to Financial Statements contained

in that item. The following documents are filed as exhibits, Documents marked with an asterisk (*) are management

contracts or compensatory plans, and portions of documents marked with a dagger (1) have been granted confidential

treatment.

EN Restated and Amended Articles of Incorporation filed as Exhibit 3(i) to the company’s filed as Exhibit
3(i} to the company’s Form 10-QSB12G ﬁled December 6, 1996 mcorporated in this report.

32 Bylaws filed as Exhibit 3(i1) to the company’s Form 10- QSBIZG ﬁled December 6, 1996,
incorporated in this report.

3.3 Articles of Amendment to Restated and Amended Articles of Incorporation, filed December.11, 1997
filed as Exhibit 3 to the company’s second quarter 1998 report on Form 10-QSB filed
December 12, 1997, incorporated in this report.

4.1 Form of Common Stock Cemf" cate filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the company s Form l() QSB12G f' led
December 6, 1996, incorporated in this report.

10.117 Creosote Supply Agreement dated November 1, 1998 between Riitgers VFT and the company filed as
Exhibit 10.20 to the company’s second quarter 1999 report on Form 10-QSB filed March 12, 1999,
incorporated in this report.

10.12* 1996 Stock Option Plan filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the company’s Form 10- QSBIZG filed
December 6, 1996, incorporated in this report.

10.13* Stock Option Agreement dated October 17, 1996 with Thomas H. Mitchell filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the
company’s Form 10-QSB12G filed December 6, 1996, incorporated in this report.

10.14 Warrant for tﬁe Purchase of 25,000 Shares of Common Stock dated as of March 6, 2000 between the.”
company and JGIS, Ltd., an assignee of Gilman Financial Corporation, filed as Exhibit 10.24 to the
company’s 2000 report on Form 10-KSB filed October 25, 2000, incorporated in this report.

10.15* Employment Agreement with Thomas H. Mitchell dated July 11, 2001 filed as Exhibit 10.25 to the -
company’s 2001 report on Form 10-K filed October 24, 2001, incorporated in this report.

10.16* Employment Agreement with John V, Sobchak dated June 26, 2001 filed as Exhibit 10.26 to the
company’s 2001 report on Form 10-K filed October 24, 2001, incorporated in this report.

10.17* Employment Agreement with Roger C. Jackson dated August 1, 2002 filed as Exhibit 10.31 to the
company’s 2003 report on Form 10-K filed October 23, 2093, incorporated in this report.

10.18* Employment Agreement with J. Neal Butler dated March'S, 2004 filed as Exhibit 10.18 to the

company’s 2004 report on Form 10-K filed October 15, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference.

10.19* Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan dated effective August 1, 2001 filed as Exhibit 10.27 to the
company’s 2001 report on Form 10-K filed October 24, 2001, incorporated in this report:

10.20 Direct Stock Purchase Plan filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the company’s report on Form 8 K filed
Februaryl4, 2002, incorporated in this report.

10.21* 2004 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan filed as Exhibit 10.21 to the company’s report on
Form 10-Q filed December 15, 2004, incorporated in this report.

10.22 Securities Purchase Agreement dated April 21, 2005 between the company and Tontine Capital
Partners, L.P. and Terrier Partners, L.P. filed as Exhibit 10.22 to the company’s report on Form 8-K
filed April 22, 2005.
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10.23 Registration Rights Agreement dated April 21, 2005 between the company and Tontine Capital
~ « +  Partners, L.P. and Terrier Partners, L.P. filed as Exhibit 10,23 to the company’s report on Form 8-K
filed April 22, 2005. - oo B '
10.26 Asset Purchase Agreement dated June 7, 2005 between the company and Basic Chemicals Company,
LLC. filed as Exhibit 10.26 to the company’s report on Form 8-K filed June 13, 2005.

10.28* Performance-Based Restricted Stock Agreement, Series 1 dated September 2, 2005 filed as Exhibit
10.28 to the company’s repert on Form 8-K filed September 7, 2005. :

10.29* Performance-Based Restricted Stock Agreement, Series 2 dated September 2, 2005 filed as Exhibit
10.29 to the company’s report on Form 8-K filed September 7, 2005.

10.30 Asset Purchase Agreement dated February 22, 2006 between the company and Boehringer Ingelheim
Vetmedica, Inc., filed as Exhibit 10.30 to the company’s report on Form §-K filed February 27, 2006,
and incorporated herein by reference.

T 1031¢ Asset Purchase Agreement by and among Wood Protection Products, Inc., KMG-Beruth, Inc. and
James R. Forshaw filed as Exhibit 2.1(v) to the company’s report on Form 8-K filed December 19,
2003, and incorporated herein by reference.

10.34% Sales Agreement with Koppers, Inc. dated May 8, 2007, and is incorporated in this report.
10.35 Credit Agreement with Wachovia Bank, National Association dated May 15,2007, and is .
incorporated in this report.

211 Subsidiaries of the company.

231 Consent of UHY LLP.

31 Certificates under Section 302 the Sarbanes-Oxley ‘Act of 2002 of the Chief Executive Officer and the
' Chief Financial Officer.

32 Certificates under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 of the Chief Executive Officer and

the Chief Financial Officer:

Schedule 11 — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Allowance for

Doubtful
Accounts Additions
Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance at
beginning costs and other end of
Reserves of period expenses . accounts Deductions . period
Fiscal year July 31, 2007 ......... b 35000 S 13,000 $ —_ — 8 48,000
Fiscal year July 31,2006 ........  § 150,000 — $  (115,000%1)$ 35,000
Fiscal year July 31, 2005 ......... 3 80,000 § 70,000 — — 3 150,000

(1) Reduction in valuation on review of allowance at July 31, 2006.
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SIGNATURES
. Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. ‘

¥

KMG CHEMICALS, INC.

By: /s/J. Neal Butler - . + Date: October 15, 2007
J. Neal Butler, President
- and Chief Executive Officer )

1

Pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

By:  /s/ John V. Sobchak Date: October 15, 2007
John V. Sobchak, Vice President ) .
and Chief Financial Officer .

By:  /s/David L. Hatcher : Date: October 15, 2007
David L. Hatcher,
Director and Chairman of the Board

By:  /s/ George W. Gilman Date: October 15, 2007
George W. Gilman, Director

By: /s/Fred C. Leonard ' ! : © " Date: October 15, 2007
Fred C. Leonard 11, Director

1

By: /s/ Charles L. Mears Date: October 15, 2007
Charles L. Mears, Director

By:  /s/ Charles M. Neff Date: October 135, 2007
Charles M. NefT, Jr., Director

By: _ /s/ Stephén A. Thorington Date: October 15, 2007
Stephen A, Thorington, Director

By:  /s/Richard L. Urbanowski Date: October 15,l2007
Richard L. Urbanowski, Director _ .
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KMG CHEMICALS, INC.
10611 Harwin Drive, Suite 402
Houston, Texas 77036

November 1, 2007

Dear Sharcholder:

The Board of Directors of KMG Chemicals, Inc. invites you to this year’s annual meeting of the
sharcholders to be held at the Marriott Houston Westchase at 2900 Briarpark Drive, Houston, Texas
77042, on November 27, 2007 at 10:00 a.m. The Board of Directors is also soliciting your proxies and
your votes and is recommending the approval of the proposals described in the enclosed Proxy
Statement,

We appreciate your continued confidence in us and look forward to seeing you at the annual
meeting.

Sincerely,

Dudy

David L. Hatcher
Chair of the Board




KMG CHEMICALS, INC.
10611 Harwin Drive, Suite 402
Houston, Texas 77036

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING
OF SHAREHOLDERS

The Annual Meeting of the Shareholders of KMG Chemicals, Inc., a Texas corporation (the
“Company™), will be held at the Marriott Houston Westchase at 2900 Briarpark Drive, Houston, Texas

77042, on November 27, 2007 at 10:00 a.m.:

1. To elect eight (8) directors to hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders or
until their respective successors have been duly elected and qualified;

2. To ratify the appointment of UHY LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm
and auditors for the Company for fiscal year 2008; and

3. To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment
or postponement thereof.

Shareholders of record at the close of business on October 17, 2007 are entitled to notice of and
to vote at this Annual Meeting of Shareholders or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

All shareholders are cordially invited and urged to attend the Annual Meeting of Shareholders in
person. Even if you plan to attend the meeting, you are requested to complete, sign, date and return
your proxy in the enclosed addressed envelope. A return of a blank proxy will be deemed a vote in
favor of the proposals contained in the Proxy Statement. If you attend, you may vote in person if you
wish, even though you have sent in your proxy.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Roger C. Jackson
Secretary
November 1, 2007




KMG CHEMICALS, INC.
10611 Harwin Drive, Suite 402
Houston, Texas 77036

PROXY STATEMENT
General Information

This Proxy'Statement and the accompanying form of proxy are being furnished to the shareholders
of KMG Chemicals, Inc., a"Texas corporation (the “Company”), in connection with the solicitation of
proxies by our Board of Directors for use at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the “Annual
Meeting”) 1o be held on November 27, 2007, at 10:00 a.m., at thé Marriott Houston Wesichase at
2900 Briarpark Drive, Houston, Texas 77042, and any adjournment or postponement thereof.

This Proxy Statement and the related form of proxy accompanying this proxy statement are being
mailed on or about November 1, 2007 to all shareholders of record as of October 17, 2007 (the
“Record Date”).

Unless otherwise indicated, shares of our common stock, par value $.01 per share (the “Common
Stock”), represented by proxies will be voted in favor of (i) the election of the eight director nominees
to the Board of Directors named in the Proxy Statement and (ii) the ratification of the approval of
UHY LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for fiscal year 2008. With respect to
the election of directors, a shareholder may, by checking the appropriate box on the proxy: (i) vote for
all director nominees as a group; (ii) withhold authority to vote for all director nominees as a group; or
(iii) vote for al! director nominees as a group except those nominees identified by the shareholder in
the appropriate area. With respect to the other proposals contained in this Proxy Statement, a
shareholder may, by checking the appropriate box on the proxy: (i) vote for the proposal; (ii} vote
against the proposal; or (iii) abstain from voting on the proposal.

Any shareholder who executes and delivers a proxy may revoke it at any time prior to its use by
(i} giving written notice of revocation to the Secretary of the Company, (ii) executing and delivering a
proxy bearing a later date or (iii} appearing at the Annual Meeting and voting in person.

If the proxy in the accompanying form is properly executed and not revoked, the shares
represented by the proxy will be voted in accordance with the instructions thereon.

If no instructions are given on the matters to be acted upon, the shares represented by the proxy
will be voted: (i) FOR election of the directors nominated herein; (ii) to RATIFY the appointment of
UHY LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm and auditors for fiscal year 2008, and
(iii} in the discretion of the proxy holders as to any business that may properly come before the
Annual Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

Who May Vote

Only holders of record of outstanding shares of Common Stock at the close of business on the
Record Date are entitled to one vote for each share held on all matters coming before the Annual
Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof. There were 10,911,599 shares of Common Stock
outstanding and entitled to vote on the Record Date.

Voting Requirements to Elect Directors and Approve Auditors

The holders of a majority of the total shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding on the
Record Date, whether present in person or represented by Proxy, will constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business at the Annual Meeting. For purposes of determining whether a quorum is
present under Texas law, broker non-votes and abstentions count towards the establishment of a
quorum. A broker “non-vote” occurs when a nominee holding shares for a beneficial owner does not
vote on a particular proposal because the nominee does not have discretionary voting power with
respect to that item, and the broker has not received voting instructions from the beneficial owner.
Votes cast at the meeting will be counted by the inspector of the election.




The election of directors requires the favorable vote of the holders of a plurality of shares of
Common Stock present and voting, in person or by proxy, at the Annual Meeting. Abstentions and
broker non-votes have no effect on determinations of plurality except to the extent that they affect the
total votes received by any particular candidate. A majority of the votes represented by the
shareholders present at the Annual Meeting, in person or by proxy, is necessary for approval of the
ratification of the appointment of the independent registered public accounting firm. Abstaining shares
will be considered present at the Annual Meeting for this matter so that the effect of abstentions will
be the equivalent of a “no” vote. With respect to broker non-votes, the shares will not be considered

present at the Annual Meeting for this matter so that broker non-votes wili have the practical effect of

reducing the number of affirmative votes required to achieve a majority vote by reducing the total

number of shares from which the majority is calculated.

.




Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners, Directors
e and Named Executive Officers

The following table sets forth certain information as of November 1, 2007 with regard to the
beneficial ownership of Common Stock by (i) each person known to the Company to be the beneficial
owner of 5% or more of its outstanding Common Stock, (ii) our named executive officers and the
directors individually and (iii} our officers and directors as a group. All addresses are in care of KMG
Chemicals, Inc., 10611 Harwin Drive, Suite 402, Houston, Texas 77036.

4,

Shares Including

Stock Options Options
Common Stock Exercisable Exercisable Percent of Total
Beneficially Owned Within Within Beneficial Shares

Name Exctuding Options 60 Days 60 Days
Directors and Named Executive Officers ,
David L. Hatcher. . .............. 4,118,568 4,118,568 377
J. Neal Butler........ e e L. . 20,000 20,000 *
Roger C. Jackson.....!........... 50,600 . 50,000 ¥
John-V, Sobchak ............... " 15,000 15,000 *
George W. Gilman. . ............. 5,990 30,000 35,880 *
Fred C. Leonard(1) .............. 688,540 40,000 728,540 6.6
Charles L. Mears-. . .............. 8,355 40,000 48,355 *
Charles M. Neff, Jr............... 31,850 40,000 71,850 *
Stephen A. Thorington ........... 2,100 2,100 *
Richard L. Urbanowski ........... 13,353 20,000 33,355 *
Thomas H. Mitchell . . ....... ... .. 2,000 2,000 *
Directors and Named Executive Officers .

asaGroup . ............. e 4,868,648 257,000 5,125,648 458
Five Percent Shareholders ' ’
Tontine Capital Partners, L.P(2) '

55 Railroad’ Avenue, 3" Floor :

Greenwich, Cornecticut 06830 . . .. 1,030,035 1,030,035 9.4
Valves Incorporated of Texas(3)

10600 Fallstone Road o :

Houston, Texas 77099 .. ... ... ... 672,085 672,085 6.1
Austin W, Marxe and David

Greenhouse(4)

(Special Sit Funds) ,

527 Madison Avenue, Suite 2600

610,000 5.6

New York, NY 10022 . .. .. e 610,000

*  Less than 1%. This table is calculated pursuant to Rule 13d-3(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. Under Rule 13d-3(d), shares not outstanding which are subject to options, warrants, rights,
or conversion privileges exercisable within 60 days are deemed outstanding for the purpose of
calculating the number and percentage owned by a person, but not deemed outstanding for the
purpose of calculating the number and percentage owned by any other person listed. As of
November 1, 2007, we had 10,911,599 shares of Common Stock outstanding,

(1) Includes shares held by Valves Incorporated of Texas, Inc., a company in which Mr. Leonard is an

officer, director and a principal shareholder.




(2) Based on the Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on April 25, 2005 by Tontine Capital Partners, L.P,
Tontine Capital Management, LL.C. and' Jeffrey L. Gendell, the reporting persons share
dispositi_vq a_nd voting power over the indicated number of shares.

(3) ‘Based on the'Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on October 31, 2007 by Valves Incorporated of
Texas, Valves Incorporated of Texas and Fred C. Leonard share dispositive and voting power over
the indicated number of shares. ’

(4) Based on the Schedule 13G filed with the SEC~ on February 14, 2007 by Messts. Marxe and
Greenhouse the reporting persons share dispositive and voting power over the indicated number of
shares. R :

PROPOSAL 1:
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors has nominated eight persons to serve as directors until the next annual -
meeting of shareholdérs or until his successor is elected and qualified. Each of the nominees is a
current director. The following table sets forth certain information with respect to each of our directors
as of November 1, 2007. '

v

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR all nominees for director.

Nominees for Director

- Director

Name and Age Since Business Experience during the Past 5 Years and Other Information

David L. Hatcher _ 1985  Mr. Hatcher was our Chief Executive Officer from 1996 until

(64) ' + June 2007, and was President from 1996 until March 2005. Mr.
Hatcher has also served as a director of KMG-Bernuth since
1985 and as President from then until 2005. Mr. Hatcher has
worked in the wood treating industry since 1980 for

. predecessors and affiliates of KMG-Bernuth in various
o capacities, including as an engineer, general manager and

President. He also currently serves as a director of Sterling
Bancshares, Inc., a publicly-held banking and financial services
company. Mr. Hatcher is the Chair of the Board of Directors.

J. Neal Butler 2007  Mr. Butler is a director and is our President and Chief
(55) Executive Officer. He joined us in 2004 as Chief Operating
Officer. He became our President in March 2005, and became
the Chief Executive Officer in June 2007. Mr. Butler has
worked in various capacities for agricultural chemical companies
since 1976. From 1976 to 1998 he worked for ISK Biosciences,
Inc. in various sales and operations capacities, becoming Vice
President and General Manager/Americas in the speciaity
chemical division. From 1998 to 2001, he was Vice President
and team leader for Horticulture for Zeneca Agrichemicals,
o7 Inc., a leading agricultural products chemical company. From
' 2001 to 2003, Mr. Butler was President and Chief Executive
Officer of Naturize Biosciences, Inc., a company providing
biotogical products for agriculture, and from 2003 until he
joined us he did consulting in the agricultural chemicals
industry.




Name and Age

George W, Gilman
(65). :

Fred C. Leonard I11
(62)

Charles L Mears
(67)

Charles M. Neff, Jr.
(61)

Director
Since

Business Experience during the Past 5§ Years and Other Information

1996

1996

2001

1996

.Mr. Gilman also served as a director of KMG-Bernuth from

1995 until 1997..Mr. Gilman has served as the Chief Executive.
Officer, President and as a director of Commerce Securities
Corporation, a Financial Industry Regulatory Authority member
firm; since 1982. He practiced law with the law firm of George
Gilman, PC. from 1986 to 1998, and since 1998 has practiced
with- the law firm of Gilman & Gilman, P.C. He also has been
invalved in the commercial real estate business since 1987, and

-currently through Gulf Equities Realty Advisors and Tex Sun
. Commercial Realty Co. Mr. Gilman is a certified public
. accountant. Mr.. Gilman is the Chair of the Audit Committee

and a member of the Governance and Nominating Committee.

Mr. Léeonard also served as a director of KMG-Bernuth from
1992 until 1997, and served as the Secretary of KMG-Bernuth.
from 1993 until 2001. Since 1972, Mr. Leonard has served as
the Chair of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and President
of Valves Incorporated of Texas, Inc., a manufacturing company
located in Houston, Texas. Mr. Leonard also currently serves as
a board member of Fairway Medical Technologies, Inc., an
integrated medical device development company. Mr. Leonard
is the Chair of the Compensation Committee and a member of
the Audit Committee, :

Mr. Mears retired in 2000 as Executive Vice President of the
chlor-alkali business of Occidental Chemical Company. While at
Occidental, he served in various management positions since
1987, including serving as Senior Vice President of the

" Industrial Chemicals Division from 1991 unti! 1995. Mr. Mears
.began his career with Diamond Shamrock Corporation in 1965,

and held various management positions. Mr. Mears, also served
from 2004 until August 2007 as a director of Pioneer
Comipanies, Inc., a publicly-held chemical company. Mr. Mears ~
is a member of the Compensation. Committee and ,the ;
Governance and Nominating Committee. i

Mr. Neff also served as a director of KMG-Bernuth from 1991
until 1997, and served as Treasurer of KMG-Bernuth from 1993

.until 1997, Mr, Neff has extensive experience in the banking

industry, and he now serves as President, Chief Executive .
Officer and as a director of Integrity Bank. Mr. Neff served as
the Chief Executive Officer and President of Houston National
Bank, N.A. from 1988 to 1998, and then as Chief Executive

‘Officer of Sterling Bank-Bayou Bend until early 2004. From

2004 until late in 2006, he was an’Executive Vice President of
Bank of Texas. Mr. Neff is’a member of the Audit Committee

“and the Compensation-Committée.
+ ) '

[}




Name and Age

Stephen A. Thorington .
G '

Richard L. Urbanowski
QY :

Director .
Since Business Experience during the Past 5 Years and Other Information

2007  Mr. Thorington is a private investor. He served as Executive
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Plains Exploration
& Production Company, a New York Stock Exchange listed
company from 2002 until he retired in May 2006. He also
served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
of Plains Resources, Inc. from 2002 until 2004. From 1999 to
2002 he was Senior Vice President-Finance & Corporate
Development of Ocean Energy, Inc. and from 1996 until 1999
he was Vice President-Finance of Seagull Energy Company.
Prior to 1996, Mr. Thorington was a Managing Direct of Chase
Securities and the Chase Manhattan Bank. Mr, Thorington is a
member of the Audit Committee and the Governance and
Nominating Committee.

]
'

2000  Mr. Urbanowski retired in 1998 as President and Chief
Operating Officer of 1SK Biosciences Corporation, a specialty
chemicals company selling crop protection chemicals and wood
preservative products. Mr. Urbanowski began his career with
Diamond Alkali Company where he held various positions in
research and development, engineering, operations, production
and sales. He is currently a director of the CropLife of America
Foundation. Mr. Urbanowski also served from 2005 until August
2007 as a director of Pioneer Companies, Inc., a publicly-held
chemical company. Mr. Urbanowski is the Chair of the
Governance and Nominating Committee and is a member of
the Compensation Committee,

Named Executive Officers and Employees Who Are Not Directors

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to our named executive officers and
employees who are not directors.

Name and Age

Roger C. Jackson
(56)

Thomas H. Mitchell
(63)

John V. Sobchak
CO N

*  Business Experience during the Past 5 Years and Other Information

* Mr. Jackson was elected Secretary in 2001, and became Vice President

and General Counsel in 2002. Prior to then, Mr. Jackson had been a
partner since 1995 in Woods & Jackson, L.L.F. and had been a partner in

~ the Houston law firm Brown, Parker & Leahy L.L.P. beginning in 1985.

Mr. Mitchell is KMG-Bernuth’s Vice President-Sales. He has served as
KMG-Bernuth’s Vice President since 1994, He has been employed by
KMG-Bernuth since 1988 in various capacities, including general sales
manager and general manager.

Mr. Sobchak was employed in 2001 as our Chief Financial Officer.
Before he joined us, Mr.. Sobchak had been the Chief Financial Officer
of Novistar, Inc., a joint venture between Torch Energy Advisors, Inc. and
Oracle Corporation, and prior to that he had been the Treasurer of Torch
Energy Advisors, Inc. He was employed from 1988 to 1997 by Mesa, Inc,
a publicly traded oil and gas company, most recently as its Treasurer.
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Communication with the Board

- #In order to provide our shareholders and other interested parties with a direct and open line of
communication to the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors has adopted the following procedures
for communications to directors. Shareholders and other interested persons may communicate with the
Chairman of our Audit Committee or with.our non-management directors as a group by written
communications addressed in care of Corporate Secretary, 10611 Harwin Drive, Suite 402, Houston,
Texas 77036 ‘

All communications received in accordance with these procedures will be reviewed mmally by
senior management.-Senior management will relay all such communications to the appropriate director
or directors unless it,is determined that the communication {a) does not relate to our business or
affairs or the functioning or constitution of the Board of Directors or any of its committees; (b) relates
to routine or insignificant matters that do not warrant the attention of the Board of Directors; (c) is an
advertisement or other commercial solicitation or communication; (d) is frivolous or offensive; or (e) is
otherwise not appropriate for delivery to directors.

. . . - Tt

. The director or_ dl}'ectors who,receive any such communication will have discretion to determine
whether the sub_]ect matter of the communication should be brought to the attention of the full Board
of Dlrectors or one, or, more of its committees and, whether any response to,the person sending the .

y 4

communlcallon is approprlatc Any such response will be, made only, in accordance with applicable’ law

and regulatlons relating to the dlsclosure of mformatlon

o a -
Theé Corporaté Secretary will retain copies of all ‘communications recewed ‘pursuant to these e
procedures for a’periodiof at-least one.year. The Board of Directors will review the effectiveness of !

these procedures from.time to time and,-if appropriate, recommend changes. ‘As of the Record Date}

.t

no communications have been received.

e . . - o . .
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w«tI'The Board of Directors held five meetings in-fiscal 'yéar 2007, including special meetings, and took
action by unanimous consent’in several instances.-All Board members.are' expected to attend the

Annual Meeting and last year they all did attend. A A

Director Independence N I .

The’ Board of Directors is composed of six non-employee directors-and two employee directors.
Undeiour guidélines‘and the listing requirements of The Nasdagq Global Market, 'at least a majority of

N H ). ‘s

our Board of Directors'must be independent. The Board of Diréctors has determined that'all six of its:
non-employee diréctors meet the'requirement of independence. The only non-indepéndent dlrectors s

are Mr. Hatcher, our Chair, and Mr. Butler, our Chief Executive Officer. = N ¢ o
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Board Commlttee Membershlp
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5.3 The Board-of Directors has' three standing committees, an Audit Committee, a Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee (*Governance Committce”) and a Compensation Committee. The* ;
Audit Committee, the Governance Committee and- the:Compensation Committee are composed = - - =
entlrelyaof non-employee directorstwhom the Board hdS determmed are independent. The table below
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Nominating and. Corporate Governance Committee '

During fiscal year 2007, the Governance Committee held two meetlngs The commiittee is .
responsnble for developing and implementing policies and practlces relating to ‘corporate governance,
mc]udmg establlshmg and monitoring implementation of corporate governance guidelines. The '
commlttee also plans for the succession of the Chief Executive Officer and other executives. The
commitiee is ‘responsible for 1dent1fymg and assessing candldates for the Board of Directors, mcludmg
making ré¢cémmendations to the Board regarding candidates. In fulfilling its dutles the Governance
Committee, among other thlngs

?

¢ .identifies mdmduals qualified to be Board members consistent with criteria establlshed by the -
« committee; oo oo . : . . '

. recommen.ds.to' the Board nominees for the next annual meeting of shareho]d‘ci’s; and

. .
oo,

+ evaluates individuals suggested by shareholders.

In recommending director candidates to the Board the Governance Committee charter requnres
the committee to setect individuals who possess the highest personal and professional mtegrlty

The Governance Committee is comprised solély of non-employee directors who are independent
within the meaning of listing standards of The Nasdaq Global Market. Members of the Governance
Committee are Messrs. Gilman, Mears, Thorington and, Urbanowski, and Mears. Mr. Urbanowskl is-the
Chair. . - . o

- “The Governance Committe€ will consider recommendations for director made by shareholders for -
fiscal year 2009, if such recommendatioris aré received in writing, addressed to the chair of the: *~
committee, Mr. Urbanowski, in care of KMG Chemicals, Inc., at 10611 Harwin, Suite 402, Houston,
Texas 77036 by July 31, 2008, Recommendatlons by shareholders that are made in accordance with,
these procedurcs will receive gqual consideration by the Governance Committee. Dlrectors and | . . '
members of management may also suggest candidates for director. In, some cases, the commlttee may
engage, for a fee, the services of a third party executive search firm io assist it in ldentlfymg and
evaluatlng candldates for director.

. ! . AV n

L e ey "o 2
Compensatlon Commlttee ‘
) ’ LA 1o oo
- During fiscal year 2007, the Compensatlon Commlttee held six meetings. 'I'he Compensatlon o T
Committee establishes compensation for our Chief Executive Officer and other executive-officers, and
makes. recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding compensation.of directors. The committee
also administers our incentive compensation;-stock option and other equity based compensation plans,
which included in fiscal year 2007 our 1996 Stock Option Plan and our 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan.
The Compensatnon Committee is composed currently of four non-employee directors, Fred C..
Leonard;'IT1, Charlés L. Mears, Charles M. Neff, Jr. and Richard L. Urbanowskj Mr. Leonard i$ the
current chair. The Board has detérmined that each of the members of the commlttee is. mdcpendent '

within the meaning of the listing standards of The Nasdaq Global Market. - X

i - L
Compensation Discussion and Analysis

The Compensation Discussion and An'dlys'is contains the philosophy underlying our compensation
strategy and the fundamental eléments of compensat:on paid to the persons included in our Summary
Compensation Table. We refer to those persons as “named executive officers”.

- Objectives of Our Compensation. Program . L S

We manufacture formulate and distribute specnalty chemncals and we currently operate four”’ . .
business segments. Our strategy mcludes growing in a manncr that i mcreases shareholder value by
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Communication with the Board

" In order to provide our shareholders and other interested parties with a direct and open line of
communication to the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors has adopted the following procedures
for communications to directors. Shareholders and other interested persons may communicate with the
Chairman of our Audit Committee or with our non-management directors as a group by written
communications addressed in care of Corporate Secretary, 10611 Harwin Drive, Suite 402, Houston,
Texas 77036.

All communications received in accordance with these procedures will be reviewed initially by
senior management. Senior management will relay all such communications to the appropriate director
or directors unless it is determined that the communication (a) does not relate to our business or
affairs or the functioning or constitution of the Board of Directors or any of its committees; (b) relates
to routine or insignificant matters that do not warrant the attention of the Board of Directors; {c) is an
advertisement or other commercial solicitation or communication; (d) is frivolous or offensive; or (e) is
otherwise not appropriate for delivery to directors.

The director or directors who.receive any such communication will have discretion to determine
whether the subject matter of the communication should be brought to the attention of the full Board
of Directors or one or more of its committees and whether any response to the person sending the
commumcat:on is appropriate. Any such response will be made only in accordance with applicable law
and regulanons relating to the disclosure of mformauon

The Corporate Secretary will retain copies of all communications received pursuant to these
procedures for a period.of at least one year. The Board of Directors will review the effectiveness of
these procedures from.time to time and, if appropriate, recommend changes. As of the Record Date,
no communications have been received.

Board Meetmgs ‘ '_ . o ' .

1 . . . ' ' '

--+Thé Board of Directors held five meetings in fiscal year 2007, mcludmg special meetings, and took
action by unanimous consent in several instances. All Board members are expccted to attend the
Annual Meeting and last year they all did attend. o

Director Independence

The: Board of Directors is composed of six non-employee directors and two employee directors.
Under our guidelines and the listing requirements of The Nasdaq Global Market, at least a majority of
our Board of Directors must be independent. The Board of Directors has determined that all six of its
non-employee diréctors méet the requirement of independence. The only non-independent directors
are Mr. Hatcher, our Chair, and Mr. Butler, our Chief Executive Officer.

¢

Board Commlttee Membershlp

" The Board of Directors has three standmg committees, an Audit Committee, a Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee (“Governance Committee™) and a Compensation Committee. The
Audit Committee, the Governance Committee and the Compensation Committee are composed
entirely of non-employee directors whom the Board has determined are independent. The table below




provides the fiscal year 2007 membership for the three standing committees after Mr. Thorington
became a member of the Board of Directors in May 2007.

il

Nominating & '

. Committee - Commities  _ Committee
George W. Giliman . . . .. U T X* X '
Fre::i C.leonmard...:.............. I X - X* on
Charles L. Mears . ..........outireninniannnnan.. ‘ X X'
CharlegM.Neff,Jr......‘..................._ ........ X ‘ X
Stephen A. Thorington . ... ... ... oL X X
Richard L. Urbanowski . .. ............... PR . X X

*  Committee Chair

Committee Charters and the Code of Business Conduct

The Audit, Governance and Compensation Committees have each adopted charters that have been
approved by the Board of 'Directors. The Board of Directors has also adopted a Code of Business
Conduct applicable to all employees, including the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Finaricial Officer’
and other senior management. The Code of Business Conduct covers such topics as financial reporting,
conflicts of interest, compliance with laws, fair dealing and use of our assets. The Code of Business
Conduct satisfies the requirements of a “code of ethics” under Section 406(c) of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, and requires that any waiver of those provisions by executive officers or directors may be
made oaly by the Board of Directors and must be promptly disclosed to sharehelders along with the
reason for the waiver.

The charters of the Audit, Compensation and Governance Committees, and the Code of Business
Conduct, are available on our website at kmgchemicals.com or by writing to Corporate Secretary, KMG
Chemicals, Inc., 10611 Harwin, Suite 402, Houston, Texas 77036. These documents will be provided free
of charge. Material.contained on our website is not incorporated by reference in, or considered to be -
part of, this Proxy Statement.

Audit Committee -t

The Audit Committee met four times during fiscal year 2007. The Audit Committee advises the
Board and management from time to time with respect to internal controls, systems and procedures, .
accounting policies and other significant aspects of our accounting, auditing and financial reporting © , .
practices. The Audit Committee also monitors the preparation of our quarterly and annuai reports and
supervises our relationship with our external auditors. :

The Audit Committee operates under a charter approved by the Board of Directors. The Audit
Committee’s function under its written charter is to appoint the independent registered public
accounting firm and auditors to audit our financial statements and perform other services related to the
audit; review the scope and results of the audit with the independent accountants; review with
management and the independent accountants our interim and year-end operating results; oversee our
external reporting; consider the adequacy of the internal accounting and auditing procedures; evaluate
the independence of the internal and external auditors; and approve and review any non-audit services
to be performed by the independent accountants.




The Audit Committee consists currently of four non-employee directors, George W. Gilman, Fred
C. Leonard, Il1, Charles M. Neff, Jr., and Stephen A. Thorington. Mr. Gilman is the current chair. The
Board has determined that all of the members of the Audit Committee are independent and financially
sophisticated within the meaning of the listing standards of The Nasdaq Global Market. The Board of
Directors has also determined that Mr. Gilman and Mr. Thorington are “audit committee financial
experts” within the meaning of that term under the rules of the SEC. Mr. Gilman has served on our '
Board 6f Directors since 1996, and he is a certified public accountant. Mr, Thoringion has served as
the Chief Financial Officer of two publlc companies from 2002 to 2006, and he has held other financial
reporting positions in industry and in banking. In the course of their careers, Mr. Gilman and
Mr. Thorington have. acquired (i) an understanding of generally accepted accounting principles and
financial statements, (ii) the ability to assess the general application of such principles in connection
with the accounting for estimates, accruals and reserves, (iii) experience preparing, auditing, analyzing
or evaluating financial statements that present a breadth and level of complexity of accounting issues
that are generally comparable to the breadth and complexity of issues that can reasonably be expected
to be raised by our financial statements, (iv) an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, and (v) an understanding of audit committee functions.

Report of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee reviewed our audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended July 31,
2007, with the independent auditors. Management has the responsibility for the preparation,
presentation and integrity of the financial statements, and the independent registered public accounting
firm and auditors have the responsibility, for auditing the financial statements and expressing an opinion
as to their conformity with accounting principles gencrally accepted in the United States of America.

The Audit Committee discusscd and reviewed with the independent auditors alt communications
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, including those
described in Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended, “Communication with Audit
Cormmittees™ and discussed and reviewed the results of the audlt by the independent auditors of the
financial statements.

In discharging its oversight responsibility with respect to the audit process, the Audit Committee
obtained from the independent auditors a formal written statement describing all relationships between
the auditors and the Company that might bear on the auditors’ independence consistent with
Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1, “Independence Discussions with Audit Committees.”
The Audit Committee also discussed with the auditors any relationship that may impact their objectivity
and independence and satisfied itself as to the auditors’ independence. The Audit Committee also
discussed with management and the indepéndent auditors the quality and adequacy of our
responsibilities, budget and staffing.

Based on the above-mentioned review and discussions with management and the independent
audltors the Commmee recommended to the Board that the audited financial statements be included
in our report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2007, for filing with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Audit Committee:
George W. Gilman, Chair
Fred C. Leonard II1
Charles M. Neff, Jr.
Stephen A. Thorington

This report by the Audit Committee shall not be deemed incorporated by reference by any general
statement incorporating by reference this Proxy Statement into any filing under the Securities Act of
1933 or the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934 except to the extent that we specifically incorporates thls
information by reference, and shall not otherwise be deemed filed under such acts,




Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

During fiscal year 2007, the Governance Committee held two méetihgs The committee is
responsible for developing and implementing policies and practices relating to ‘corporate governance,
including establishing and monitoring implementation of corporate governance guidelines. The
committee also plans for the succession of the Chief Executive Officer and other executives. The
committee is responsible for identifying and assessing candidates for the Board of Directors, including
making recommendations to the Board regarding candidates. In fulfilling its duties, the Governance
Committee, among other things,

* identifies individuals qualified to be Board members consistent with criteria established by the
committee;

» recommends to the Board nominees for the next annual meeting of shareholders; and
* evaluates individuals suggested by shareholders.

In recommending director candidates to the Board, the Governance Committee charter requires
the committee to select individuals who possess the highest personal and professional integrity.

The Governance Committee is comprised solely of non-employee directors who are independent
within the meaning of listing standards of The Nasdaq Global Market. Members of the Governance
Committee are Messrs. Gilman, Mears, Thorington and Urbanowski, and Mears. Mr. Urbanowski is the
Chair.

The Governance Committee wilt consider recommendations for director made by shareholders for
fiscal year 2009, if such recommendations are received in writing, addressed to the chair of the
committee, Mr. Urbanowski, in care of KMG Chemicals, Inc., at 10611 Harwin, Suite 402, Houston,
Texas 77036 by July 31, 2008. Recommendations by shareholders that are made in accordance with
these procedures will receive equal consideration by the Governance Committee. Directors and
members of management may also suggest candidates for director. In some cases, the committee may
engage, for a fee, the services of a third party executive search firm to assist it in identifying and
evaluating candidates for director.

’

Compensation Committee

During fiscal-year 2007, the Compensation Committee held six meetings. The Compensation
Committee establishes compensation for our Chief Executive Officer and other executive officers, and
makes recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding compensation of directors. The committee
also administers our incentive compensatjon; stock option and other equity based compensation plans,
which included in fiscal year 2007 our 1996 Stock Option Plan and our 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan.
The Compensation Committee is composed currently of four non-employee directors, Fred C.

Leonard, I1I, Charles L. Mears, Charles M. Neff, Jr. and Richard L. Urbanowski. Mr. Leonard is the
current chair. The Board has determined that each of the members of the committee is independent
within the meaning of the listing standards of The Nasdag Global Market.

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

The Compensation Discussion and Analysis contains the philosophy underlying our compensation
strategy and the fundamental elements of compensation paid to the persons included in our Surnmary
Compensation Table. We refer to those persons as “named executive officers”.

Objectives of Our Compensation Program

We ‘manufacture, formulate and distribute specialty chemicals, and we currently operate four
business segments, Our strategy includes growing in a manner that increases shareholder value by
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purchasing additional product lines and businesses. We target for acquisition products and businesses in
specialty chemicals that we believe provide an opportunity to obtain a significant market share through
further acquisition and growth, that are of a size that larger industry participants often find too small to
be attractive, that have niche products with well established uses, that do not require substantial
on-going research and development, and that have significant barriers to entry. To assist in carrying out
that strategy, the Compensation Committee has designed our compensation program to:

+ Reward executive officers for long -term strategic management and the 'enhancemcnt of
« "shareholder.value; ' o :

' . Inte_grate }he compensétion program with our short and loqg-terin st_rategilc.busincss plans; and

+ Attract, motivate, reward and retain experienced and highly qualified executive ‘officers. '

What Our Compensation Program Is Designed To Reward =~ -

Our compensation program is desxgned to reward executive officers who are capable of leadmg us
in achieving our business strategy on both a short-term and long-term basis. When making
compensation decisions, we consider the personal performance of our executives, relative internal
equity within the executive pay structure, compensanon at comparable compames and fmancnal '
affordabnhty

. ' The Elements of Our Compensation -
To further our executive compensatlon philosophy, and to assist us in achieving our busmess ‘
strategy, in fiscal year 2007 we utilized the following elements of compensation:

* base salary,

* annual incentive compensation,

» long-term incentive compensation, ' . R
* other broad-based employee benefi}s, and .

* executive benefits' and perquisites . ' co : .

* How We Determine Each Element of Compensatwn And Why We Pay Each Element

In fiscal year 2007, the Compensanon Committee began to refine our compensanon program by
increasing total compensanon and more heavily weighting the compensation of our named executive
officers toward long-term incentive compensation. We believe that our compensation program will
enhance our, profitability and shareholder value by more closcly aligning the financial interests of our
executive officers with those of our shareholders.

.t 1

When the refined compensation program has been fully implemented in fiscal'year 2011, the
Compensation Committee expects that base salary for our Chief Executive Officer (*CEO”) will be
approximately 30% of the major elements of total compensanon (base annual incentive and long-term
incentive). Base salary for our other named executive officers i is expected to be approxnmately 40% of
the major elements of compensation. The Compensation Committee belicves that approximately 20%
of the major elements of compensation of our named executive officers, including our CEO, will be in
an annual incentive bonus. Our CEO is expected to receive long-term incentive compensation at
approximately 50% of the major components, while long-term incentive compensation will be about
40% for our other named executive officers, when the refined approach is fully phased-in. We intend
that long-term incentives be weighted more heavily than annual incentives in recognition of the
importance of achieving long-term goals which enhance shareholder value,
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Below we discuss each element of compensation listed above, including why we elect to pay each
element of compensation and how the Compensation Committee determines each element of
compensation. o -

ey
1 i . b

Base Salary . .. - . o ‘.

Base salary is the fixed compensation paid to an executive for performing specific job
responsibilities, and it represents the minimum income an executive might receive in any given year.
Base salary is essential to attracting and retaining experienced and highly qualified executives, including
our named executive officers. Base salary is established initially on the abilities, accomphshments, and
the prior work experience ahd performance of the executive officer. Adjustments il base salary are
considered on a discretionary basis taking into account internal equity and consistency, the executive’s
performance and experience, level of responsibility, changes in responsibilities, retention risk and
market surveys. When our refined compensation strategy is fully phased-in, the Compensation
Committee intends to set base salaries at approximately the 45 percentile (90% of the median) of
national survey and 'peer group data for executwes having srmllar responsmlhtles at similarly s1zed
companies.

‘ v . C e , .
Prior to adjustments to- base salaries in November 2006, base salaries for our named executive
officers ranged between the 33 and 41% percentile of the survey data. After the November 2006 salary
increases, base salaries of the named executive officers ranged between the 37" and 44" percentile of

the survey data. In June 2007, Mr. Hatcher resigned-as CEO and retained the role of Chairman.
Mr. Butler was promoted from Chief Operating Officer (“COO”) to CEQ, and his base salary
increased dt that time by $35,000. Our Summary Compcnsatlon Table sets forth base salary for our
named executive officers.

Annual Incentive Compensation

The design of our annual incentive plan focuses executives on our strateglc ob;ectwes We believe
annual incentives motivate our executives to lead us in achieving success.

The Compensation Committee administers our annual incentive awards to executives, but delegates
to our CEQ day-to-day responsibility for the program. Annual incentive compensation rewards
executives based upon achievement of company performance objectives, strategic objectives and
individual performance objectives that are established by the Compensation Committee, based upon the
recommendation of the CEO. The Compensation Commitice is responsible for establishing the
objectives’ for the 'CEO. Each objective is given greater or lesser weight based primarily on the
Compensatlon Committee’s evaluation of the relative importance of the objective. The Compensatlon
Committee evaluates the achievement or progress toward the ob3ectlves of executives, and determines
the degree to which objectives are achieved. Although the Compensation Committee may make
adjustments to objectives or weights to take into account special or unforeseen circumstances, in fiscal
year 2007, it did not doso. ., . , ) : ) '

Annual incentives are paid as a pcrcentage of base' salary based upon the proportion that
performance objectlves are achieved. The annual incentive is calculated by the formula Base -
Salary X %Objectlve Achleved X %Objective Welght '

b '
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The Board of Directors establishes company performance objectives-based upon one or more of
the following performance measures: return on equity, assets, capital or investment; revenue growth;
carnings per share growth; gross margin; and gperating cash flow or cash flow from operating activities.
These objectives may be identical for all executives or may differ to ‘reflect more appropriate measures
of individual performance. Performance measures are adopted and weighted by the Compensation
Committee annually to give emphasis to performance for which executives have the most direct control.

For fiscal year 2007, the table below lists the objectives and their relative weights for determining
annual incentive compensation for named executive officers.

Annual Incentive Performance Objectives and Weightings in Fiscal Year 2007 ,
. for the Named Executive Officers

Objective Hatcher Butler Sobchak Jackson  Mitchell

Earnings per Share e 15% 30% 25% 30% 20%
Cash Flow from Operations . . . ............ ........ 15% 30% 25% 30% 20%
Strategic Plan Goals ..............cccuuinn.... 35% 20% 20% 20% —

Gross Margin . ........v it — — _ - 40%
Personal Objectives .. ... ... ... .., 335% 20% 30% 20% 20%

The objectives of each executive have a threshold level below which no award will be payable, a
target level and a maximum award level. The target level for executives is generally set based on
performance at 100% of budget for the year. Threshold performance is generally set at 90% of budget,
and the maximum award level is generally set for performance at 120% of budget. For fiscal year 2007,
the award levels for several of the named executive officers were increased over fiscal year 2006 to
better align their annual incentive compensation with the marketplace and to allocate more of their
compensation to elements that are performance based. The following table describes the potential
award levels, as a percentage of bdse salary, for the named executivc officers:

Potential Annual Incentive Levels as a Percentage of Base Salary for Objectives
for Flscal Year 2007 for the Named Executwe Officers

Name/Title DA ' - ‘Threshold Target Maximum
David L. Hatcher, Chairman of the Board, and Chief Executive Officert . 15% 50% 70%
J. Neal Butler, Chief Executive Officer, Chlef Operating Offlcer and .

President(1) . .. .. ... o o 12% 40% 52%
John V. Sobchak, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer ... ....... 12% 40% 52%
Roger C. Jackson, Vice President and General Counsel . . . . . e 12% 40% 52%
Thomas H. Mitchell, Vice President (KMG- Bernuth only) ........... . 9% 30% 39%

(1) Mr. Hatcher was CEO until June 1, 2007. Mr. Butler was COO until June 1, 2007, when he also
became CEO.

Base salaries in fiscal year 2007 plus the target level of annual incentive compensation for the
named executive officers ranged between the 37 and 45" percentile of the survey data prior to the
November 1, 2006 salary increases. After the November 1, 2006 increases in salary and annual incentive
compensation took effect, fiscal year 2007 base salaries plus the target level of annual incentive
compensation for the named executive officers ranged between the 40th and 48th percentile of the
survey data. The amounts paid to each named executive officer are reflected in the Summary
Compensatlon Table under the Non Equnty Incentive Compensatlon column

¢
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The actual aggregate annual incentive award payment-to the named executive officers for fiscal
year 2007 ranged from 32:3% to 66.5% of their respective base salaries. The annual incentive award
paid to named executive officers by performance objective for fiscal year 2007 as’a percentage of base

salary, is descrlbed in this tdb]e :

Award Level Paid as a Percentage of Base Salary for Fiscal Year 2007 : o

QObjective e Hatcher Butler | Sobchak .luckson Mitchell
Eamings per Share .............. ... ... ... ...... 105% 15.6% 13.0% 156% 1.8%
Cash Flow from' Operations . . . . . .. e oo 105% 15.6% 13.0% 156% @ 7.8%
Strategic Plan Goals . .......... .. ... ... ......... 21.0% 104% 104% 104% —

Gross Margin . .......... . — — — — 12.0%
Persomal Objectives . ... ...... .. .. .. .., 245% 104% 132% 60% 4.7%
Total. ..o 66.5% 520% 496% 476% 323%

Long-Term Incentive Compensation .

General

We provide senior executives, including our named executive officers, with long-term’ equity
compensation that is tied to performance, because we believe it aligns the financial interests of our .
executives with our shareholders, and motivates our executive officers to create shareholder value.
Long-term equity compensation is also an important reténtion tool. Long-term equity compensation can
comprise the largest percentage of executive compensation. When our refined compensation approach -
is fully implemented, long-term equity incentives for senior executlves will be targeted above the market
median if performance objectives are- achieved.

In the past we have awarded equity compensation in two forms, performance-based restricted stock
unit awards and stock options. The Compensation Committee currently administers equity incentives
under our 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan. Stock options were granted in the past to employees under
our 1996 Stock Option Plan, but we shifted to utilizing performance-based stock unit awards in fiscal
year 2005, and no option grants were made under the 1996 plan in fiscal year 2007. Although the 1996
Stock Option Plan terminated on July 31, 2007, the Compensation Commlttee can grant stock options '
under the 2004 plan. : o

The Compensation Committee determines long- -term incentive award levels and type of award i in
November of each year, after the release of financial resuits for the prior fiscal year. Long-term
incentive grants vary in amount from year to year based on the performance of the executive, his
expected role in our future performance and on our financial performance. The Compensation
Committee also considers prior stock option awards made to the executive officer, which were often
made as new hire awards, in setting new long-term equity awards. The value of stock option awards is
annualized over a 10-year period when the new awards are considered. Stock options are valued using
the Black-Scholes method, and performance-based restricted stock awards are valued at 100% of the
then current stock prlce ’ ‘

*

Petfonnance Based Stock Awards

With current Iong-term incentives below the targeted market percentlte of our peer group for a]l '
executives, the Compensation Committee continues to move long-term incentive awards toward a level
above the market median. The Compensation Committee chose performance restricted stock units,
because they have a greater perceived value to executives over options since their expected base value
is not dependent on share price appreciation. Performance restricted stock units are favored by
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shareholders because of the direct link to company performance and the fact that they are less subject
to manipulation based upon the timing of the grant than options. The Compensation Committee has
also designed performance restricted stock awards to strongly support retention of exécutives by usmg
three year overlapping performance periods.

Performance-based stock units were granted to each of the named executive officers. except for
Mr. Hatcher in fiscal year 2007 under our 2004 Long Term Incentive Plan. The awards were granted as
Series 1 and Series 2 awards of shares of Common Stock, subject to performance vesting requirements.
Performance under the awards is measured over a three year measurement period beginning August 1,
2006, and shares vest based on satisfaction of performance requirements at the end of the three years.

The Series 1 awards, valued at 60% of the total award, granted the named executive officers up to
an aggregate of 23,850 shares of Common Stock, subject to a performance requirement of certain
revenue growth objectives and average annual return on equity over the three year measurement
period. The Series 2 award, valued at 40% of the total, granted the named executive officers up 1o
aggregate of 15,900 shares of Common Stock, subject to a performance requirement of earning per
share growth over the three year measurement period.

When considering the individual awards, the Compensation Committee determines a target award
level as a percentage of base pay appropriate for each executive. The value of the restricted share units
used to calculate the number of shares then awarded may take into consideration some ant1c1pated
share appreciation. . .

As Mr. Hatcher is one of our major shareholders, the Compensanon Committee did not award
him long -term incentive compensation in fiscal year 2007. The Compensatlon Committee believes his
interests are already aligned with shareholders. Excluding Mr. Hatcher, in fiscal year 2007 total targeted
direct compensanon for the named executlve officers ranged between the 30 and 34™ percentile of the
survey data prior to the November 1, 2006 'increases in salary and annual incentives. After the
November 1, 2006 base salary increases and the new target annual incentive awards took effect, and
including long-term equity awards i in fiscal year 2007, total targeted direct compensation for the named
executive officers ranged between the 47 and 55 percentile of the survey data. The Grants of Plan
Based Awards table sets forth the awards made to the named execuitive officers.

Stock Options ' _

.Although, we believe that options emphasize the importance of improving stock price performance
and increasing sharcholder value over the long-term, we have not awarded our named executive officers
stock options since fiscal year 2004. The Qutstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End table sets forth
the number and dollar value of options made previously to the executives. The plan does not allow the
repricing of options without stockholder approval,

Broad-based Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are designed to be attractive to employees and competltlve in the market at the
median, o’

Health and Welfare Plans

We offer health and welfare benefits to substantially all employees, includ}ng executives. These
benefits include medical, dental, life, accidental death, short and long-term disability, and long-term
care coverage. Executives make the same contributions for the same type of coverage, and receive the
same level of benefit as other employees for each form of coverage or benefit. We provide vacation
and paid holidays to all eligible employees, including exccutives, that is comparable to other similarly
sized companies.
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Retirement Plans

‘We offer a defined contribution 401(k) plan to substantially all of our employees in the United
States. Participants may contribute in calendar year 2007 up to $15,500 of their compensation. We
make matching contributions under the plan up to 3% of the participant’s compensation. Employees
age 50 or over are entitled to make an additional pre-tax contribution of up to $5,000 per year.
Employees become fully vested in employer contributions after five years of employment and are
ratably vested prior to that time. The Summary Compensation Table reflects our contributions to the
401(k) Plan for each named executive officer.

Executive Benefits and Perquisites

Executive benefits or perquisites may be provided on a limited basis to attract and retain key
executives. Currently, we do not offer executive benefits or perquisites with a value over $10,000 to any
executive other than the SERP outlined below. This benefit is reflected in the All Other Compensation
Column of the Summary Compensation Table.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

We adopted a supplemental executive retirement plan (SERP) in fiscal year 2001. Only executives
specifically designated by us may be participants in the plan, and currently only one executive, Thomas
H. Mitchell, is a participant. The SERP is unfunded and amounts payable to participants arc our
general obligations. The SERP provides that an executive will be paid a supplemental retirement
benefit for 10 years equal to a percentage of the participant’s three-year average base salary at normal
tetirement muttiplied by the years of credited service up to a maximum of 20 years. The benefit
payable to participants is reduced by the equivalent actuarial value of our portion of the contributions
to the 401(k) plan and one-half of social security benefits. Normal retirement is the earlier of age 65
and completion of 10 years credited service or age 60 with 30 years credited service. Early retirement is
possible after reaching age 60 and completion of 10 years credited service. A participant may elect
payment of benefits in any one of the following forms: Joint and 100% Survivor Annuity, Joint and
50% Survivor Annuity, 10 Year Certain and Life, and Single Sum. The Compensation Committee, in its
sole discretion and without any obligation to exercise reasonable discretion, must approve a single sum
payment. If the Compensation Committee does not grant approval of a single sum payment, a
participant must elect to receive benefits in any one of the other three options. If a participant’s
employment with us terminates prior to attainment of early retirement or normal retirement age, and if
that termination is not due to death or disability, benefits that would otherwise be payable -.under the
SERP may be forfeited. The CEQ, with the consent of the Compensation Committee, may waive the
application of this provision.

Thomas H. Mitchell was designated as a participant in the SERP in fiscal year 2002, and his
benefit percentage was established to pay 56% of his three-year average base salary at normal
retirement prior to reductions. The annual benefit payable under the plan to Mr. Mitchell at normal
retirement is estimated to be approximately $75,000. We maintain a life insurance policy on
Mr, Mitchell. We believe that the cash surrender value of that policy will be sufficient to pay the
benefit under the SERP. .

Employment Agreements

We have employment agreements with four executives, John V. Sobchak, Thomas H. Mitchell,
Roger C. Jackson and J. Neal Butler. Each agreement is now automatically renewing for one-year
periods, and will continue to do so unless we provide at least 60 days prior written notice of
non-renewal.
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Under the terms of ‘these.employee agreements, if we terminate the executive’s employment (other
than for cause or due to death or disability) or elect not to extend the executive’s term of employment
for the renewal term, or if the executive voluntarily terminates his employment for good reason, then
we must pay the executive a termination payment equal to a multiple of his base salary at termination.
For Messrs. Mitchell and Jackson, this multiple is three times base salary, and-for Messrs. Sobchak and
Butler, the multiple is two times base salary. Using base salaries as of the end of fiscal year 2007, these .
payments would be $429,780 to Mr. Mitchell, $419,328 for Mr. Jackson, $500,008 for Mr. Butler and
$317,520 for Mr. Sobchak. The termination payments are.paid in a lump sum at termination, except
that Mr.-Jackson’s amount would be paid in thiee annual payments if the termination is not within one
year of'a change of control.-If the termination or election not to extend by us or voluntary resignation
for good reason by the executive occurs within one year of a change of control, then any option to
acquire shares of our common stock held by the executive becomes fully vested as of the date of
termination, and exercisable for a period of two years. For unvested options that would vest in that
circumstance, as of the end of fiscal year 2007 the spread between the market value of common stock
that would be recelved on the éxercise of the options and the exercise price was $35, 750 for
Mr. Mltchell $1, 719 900 for Mr. Butler and $171,700 for, Mr. Sobchak. If such termination or election’
not to ‘extend by us or voluntary resignation for good reason by the executive occurs within one year of
a chdnge of control, then performance restricted awards will only vest if the award agreement so
provides, The current performance restricted awards only vest upon death, total and permanent.
dlsabtllty or retlrement On death and total and permanent dlsablltty performance restricted awards
vest proportlonally baséd on months of service in the three year performance measurement perlod but
based on performance achieved as of the termination. Using the market value of our common stock ‘as
of the end of fiscal year 2007,.we estimate the value of the performance stock awards to the executives
on their death or total and permanent disability at the end of that fiscal year would be $102,955 for
Mr. Mitchell, $201,337 for Mr. Jackson, $421,336 for Mr. Butler and $247,368 for Mr. Sobchak. On
refirement, the awards vest 100%, SUb_]EC[ to satisfaction of the performance crttena at the end of the
performance measurement period.

In addition, Mr. Mitchell will be entitled to the beneflt owed him paid in accordance w1th our:
SERP if we were to terminate his employment (other than for cause or due to death or disability) or
elect not to extend the executive’s term of employment at the end of the initial term or any renewal
term, or if the executive voluntarily terminates his employment for good reason. The benefit is payable
annually for ten years,. and we have esfimated the benefit to be $75 000 per year However if such
termmatlon or election not to extend or re51gnat10n oceurs wrthm one year of a chdnge of control, then ,
the beneﬁt that 1s payable 10 Mr Mitchell under this plan would be paid to him as a single lump sum,
If Mr. Mltchell’ emp]oyment 'with us termmatcs by reason of death, we are requ1red to pay his
benef1c1ary a lump sum payment of $500,000. We have obtained life 1nsurance on Mr. Mttchell to
provide a source of funds for this obllgauon

Re51gnatton by the executive for “good reason” 'mcludes failure to pay any amount due to such
executive, demotion,‘relocation or an uncured breach of the employment agreement by us: A “change
of control” includes, among other events, the acquisition of an individual or group of beneficial

ownership of more than 50% of the, combined voting power of our then-outstanding common stock.

The employment agreements. for Messrs. Butler, Jackson, Sobchak and Mitchell have provisions for
the assignment to us any rights, titles and. interest in and to ali works, copyrights, materials, inventions,
ideas, discoveries, designs, improvements, trade secrets,"patents and trademarks and applications'for
any of these during their respective employment In addition, each has agreed not to dlsc]ose
conﬁdentra] information. s ' . R !

As part of the consrderanon for the compemdtlon dnd beneflts each executtve mentloned above
also signed an agreement with non-competition obllganons Wthh prohibits the executive from engaging
and being interested in any business which is competitive with us during employment and for a penod
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of one year after employment terminates without our prior written consent. In'the event an executive
breaches any of these provisions, we may terminate any payments then owing to the executive and/or
seek specific performance or injunctive relief for such breach or threatened breach. . o

Hew We Determine Executive Officer, Compensation

Role of the Compensatlon Comimittee

The Compensatlon Committee is composed of independent; outside members of the Board of
Directors in accordance -with NASDAQ rules, current SEC regulations, and Section 162(m) of the
Internal Revenue Code, and is responsible for establishing, reviewing, approving and monitoring the + ,
compensation paid to the named executive officers. . .

Role of Executive Officers in Setting Compensation .

Our CEO provides input on the Compensation Committee agenda, including background =
information regarding our strategic objectives, suggestions on annual performance targets and reports
on his evaluations of the executive officers. He makes compensation recommendations with respect to
base salary merit increases, annual and long-term incentives that are then reviewed by the
Compensation Committee and passed on to the Board. Since our CEO is'a member of the Board, he
has input into the final approval of the overail compensation program. The Board, excluding the CEO,
makes decisions about the CEQ’s compensation. The entire Board approves compensation of the other
named executive officers.

The Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) evaluates the financial 1rnpllcat10ns of Compensatlon C
Committee actions. . 4 : . :

The Compensation Committeec meetings are attended by the committee members, and as needed
by other directors, the CFQ, and outside advisors, mcludmg our compensation consuitant, The
Compensation Committee regularly meets in executive session without any members of management
present, .

Benchmarking

The Compensation Committee has the sole authority, to the extent deemed necessary and
appropriate, to retain and terminate any compensation consultants. In fiscal year 2007, the’ )
Compensation Committee engaged Stone Partners, Inc. to advise it on executive compensation. Stone
Partners, Inc. is independent of us, reports dlrectly to the Compensation Committee and has no other
business relationship with us other than assisting the Compensation Committee with its executive
compensation practices. The Compensation Committee and Stone Partners, Inc. review salaries, annual -
incentives and long-term incentive programs established for the executive’s position from data in
general industry surveys and from peer companies. The Compensation Committee also obtains input
from our CEQ respecting the performance and compensation of other executives, and input from other
members of the Board. .

For fiscal year 2007, Stone Partners, Inc. prepared an analysis of comparative data from the
Watson Wyatt and Mercer national surveys and from a peer group of publicly-traded chemical
companies. The composition and performance of the peer group is reviewed each year, and in fiscal
year 2007 the peer group included the following nine publicly-traded chemical companies with "
comparable annual revenues and a comparable value for ongoing operations: American Pacific
Corporation, American Vanguard Corporation, Balchem Corporation, CFC laternational lac., Chase
Corporation, Hawkins Inc., Oil-Dri Corporation, SurModics Inc., and Zoltek Companies Inc. The 25,
50%® and 75" percentlles for the data sources were analyzed to gain an understanding of the range “of
competitive pay practices. Although the 50" percentile of the combined data was used by the o
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Compensation Committee as a reference point for establishing base salary (90% of the median), annual
incentive targets (at the median) and total direct compensation (at the median), the compensation of
individual executives may vary above or below the reference point because of background, personal
performance, skills and expericnce, internal equity considerations and financial affordability. .

.~ ]

Other Impo'll'tapt Compensation Policies, - _ .

'
¢

L.

Stock Ownership Requirements for Named Executives

We have adopted a stock ownership requirement for certain executives. The fequirement calls for
stock ownership related to base salary by position to equal three times base salary for the CEO, two
times base salary for the COO, CFO and Chief Legal Officer and one time base salary for other
designated executives. Executives covered by the requirement must achieve the stock ownership by
August 1, 2012. As of July 31, 2007, Mr, Hatcher owned 4,118,568 shares of Common Stock. None of
our other named executives owned shares. If the required stock ownership level is not met by an
executive, the Compensation Committee can pay out the after-tax portion of any cash bonus due to
that executive in our stock. B '

o

Trading in Our Stock Derivatives l s - . e

Qur Insider Trading Policy prohibits executive officers from purchasing or selling options on our
Common Stock, engaging in short sales with respect to our Commeon Stock, or trading in puts, calls,
straddles, equity swaps or other derivative securities that are directly linked to our Common Stock.

Financial Restatement

The Compensation Committee does not have a policy in place governing modifications to
compensation where the payment of such compensation was based upon the achievement of specific
results that were subsequently subject to restatement. If the Compensation Committec deems it
appropriate, however, to the extent permitted by governing law, we will seek to recoup amounts
determined by a financial restatement to have been inappropriately paid to an executive officer.

Tax and Accounting Implications of our Forms of Compensation

Section 162(m) of the Code limits the deductibility of certain compensation to $1 million per year
for our CEO and our four other most highly compensated exccutive officers. There is an exception to
the $1 million limit for compensation meeting certain requirements. None of our exccutive officers
currently receives compensation exceeding the limits imposed by the Code. While the Compensation
Committee cannot predict with certainty how our executive compensation might be affected in the
future by the Code, the Compensation Committee intends to try to preserve the tax deductibility of all
executive compensation while maintaining an executive compensation program consistent with our
compensation philosophy.

Tax and accounting implications of each form of compensation:

* Salary is expensed when earned, but it is not deductible over $1 million for our covered
employees (our CEO and our four other highest paid executives).

* Annual incentives are expensed during the year when payout is probable. Annual incentives paid
under our shareholder-approved 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan meet the requirements of
Section 162(m) of the Code and are deductible. Any portion paid under non-objectively
verifiable criteria is not deductible over $1 million under Section 162(m) of the Code for
covered employees,
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* Stock options are expensed over the vesting period. Our 1996 Stock Option Plan and our 2004
Long-Term Incentive Plan have been approved by shareholders, and awards are deductible under
Section 162(m) of the Code. :

* Performance-based restricted share awards are éxpensed over the performance and service
period when payout is probable. Our plan has been approved by shareholders and compensation
is deductible under Section 162(m) of the Code. No dividends are paid on performance
restricted stock until shares are actually issued.

.* Our 401(k) contributions and SERP benefits are accrued and expensed in the year of service.

Beginning on August 1, 2006, we began accountmg for stock-based payments including stock
options, restricted stock and other equity awards in accordance with the requirements of FAS
No. 123(R)

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed with management the foregoing
Compensation Discussion and Analysis. The Compensation Committee recommended to the Board of
Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this proxy statement.

The Compensation Committee
Fred-C. Leonard III, Chair
Charles L. Mears

Richard L. Urbanowski
Charles M. Neff, Jr.
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The following table presents information for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2007 for our President
and Chief Executive Officer, our Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, our one other executive
officer, and two other persons who were among our most highly compensated employees, one of whom
was an executive officer during a part of the fiscal year and the other of whom is a Vice President of
our subsidiary.

Summary Compensation Table

Change in
Pension
Value
and
Non-Equity Nongualified
Stock Option Incentive Plan Deferred All Other
Salary Bonus Awards Awards Compensation Compensation Compensation Total
Name and Principal Position  Year (%) (£3] $2) 2D $H3A Earnings ($)(4) ($)(5) %
David L. Hatcher, . .. . ... 2007 301,138 1,500 205,022 10,086 517,746
Chairman of the Board
Directors(1)
J. Neal Butler, ......... 2007 216,995 1,500 84,548 49,847 130,002 7,685 490,577
Director, President and
Chief Executive(1)
John V. Sobchak, ....... 2007 155,150 1,500 50,054 3,653 78,745 5,833 294,935

Vice'President and Chief
Financial Officer

Roger C. Jackson, . ... ... ¢ 2007 136600 1,500 39,014 66,533 5,388 249,035
Vice President, General ’ :
Counsel and Secrctary

Thomas H. Mitchell, .. ... 2007 143,287 1,250 21,151 874 46,330 75,903 5,638 294,433
Vice President—Sales : . :
{KMG-Bernuth only) .

{1y Mr. Hatcher held the position of Chief Executive Officer for KMG Chemicals, Inc. from August 1, 2006 to May 31, 2007,
while Mr. Butler simultaneously held the positions of President and Chief Operating Officer. Mr, Hatcher resigned his
position as Chief Executive Officer effective June 1, 2007, but he remains an employee. Mr. Butler became Chief Executive
Officer of the Company at that time. ' :

{(2) Stock awards and option awards reflect the amount of compensation expense recognized in our financial statements for the
fiscal year ended July 31, 2007 for performance based restricted stock awards and stock options, as required by Statement of
Financial Accounting Standard 123(R), “Share-Based Payments.” The assumptions used in caleulating the compensation
expense are set forth in note 14 of our audited consolidated financial statements in our report on Form 10-K for the year
ended July 31, 2007. Sce also the table respecting Grants of Plan-Based Awards in Fiscal Year 2007,

(3) Non-equity incentive plan compensation represents payments under our annual incentive plan. See the discussion of our
incentive plan under the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section of this Proxy Statement.

(4) Reflects the change in the amount of our accrued liability in our consolidated financial statements for the year ended
July 31, 2007 under the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan. Only Mr. Mitchell is a participant in the plan.

{5} Under our 401(K) plan for U.S. based employees, we match up to 3% of an employee’s compensation. All other
compensation included the following for each person in the table: (i) David L. Hatcher’s other income included
contributions of $9,011 to our 401{K) plan and $1,075 for an annual exccutive physical. (ii} J. Neal Butler’s other income
included contributions of $6,495 to our 401(K) plan and $1,190 for an annual executive physical. (iii} John V. Sobchak’s
other income included contributions of $4,643 to our 401(K) plan and $1,190 for an annual executive physical. {iv} Roger C.
Jackson’s other income included contributions of $4,088 to our 401(K) plan and $1,300 for an annual executive physical.

(v} Thomas H. Mitchell’s other income included contributions of $4,288 to our 401(K) plan and $1,350 for an annual
executive physical,
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The following table presents information respecting grants of plan based awards for fiscal year

2007 o . . ;
o .+ Grants of Plan-Based Awards in ‘F iscal Year 2007
Estimated Future Payouts Grant Date Fair
Under Equity Incentive Value of Stock and
Name Grant Date Series Plan Awards (#)}{(1){(2) Option Awards
David L. Hatcher .. ... e
J. Neal Butler ... ..... e 2/16/2007  Series 1 9,600 $97.536
Series 2 6,400 $65,024
John V. Sobchak ......... e 2/16/2007  Series 1 - 6,000 $60,960
) ' ’ N Series 2 4,000 $40,640
Roger C. Jackson ................ 2{16/2007  Series 1 3,375 $34.290
Series 2 2,250 $22,860
Thomas H. Mitchell. . ... ... ... ..., 2/16/2007  Series 1 2,775 $28,194
Series 2 1,850 $18,796 .

(1) On February 16, 2007 certain executives, including executives in the above table, were granted

2

performance-based restricted stock awards, Series 1 and Series 2. The estimated future payout of
those awards is based on the assumptions used in calculating the compensation expense recognized
in our consolidated financial statements in the year ended July 31, 2007. See note 14 to our
audited consolidated financial statements in our report on Form 10-K for the year ended July 31,
2007. The Series 1 awards are subject to a performance requirement composed of revenue growth

. and return on equity objectives measured across a three-year period beginning August 1, 2006. The

calculation of the Series 1 performance requirement is not based on a threshold, but rather is
based on a matrix comparing average annualized revenue growth and average annualized return on
equity. The maximum award vests, if over the measuring period, the average annualized revenue
growth rate is at least 25% while the average annual return on equity is at least 15%. Based on
performance through July 31, 2007, we projected in our consolidated financial siatements for the
year ending July 31, 2007 that 100% of the Series 1 awards would vest. The Series 1 award was
projected to have a fair value based on the grant date price of our Common Stock of $10.16 of
$220,980 for the executives in the table. The Series 2 awards are subject to a performance
requirement pertaining to the growth rate in our earnings per share over the same three year
measurement period. If the annualized increase in earnings per share is 10% over the measuring
period, a threshold of 20% of the award would vest, If the annualized increase is at least 20%, the
entirc award would vest. In our consolidated financial statements for the year ending July 31, 2007,
we estimated that the entire Series 2 award would vest. The fair value of award for the executives
in the table was $147,320 based on the grant date price of $10.16 for our Common Stock.

See the discussion of our incentive plan under the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section
of this Proxy Statement.
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" The following table presents information respecting outstanding eqmty awards at July 31, 2007. In
fiscal year 2007 we did not grant any stock option awards.

Outstanding Equity Awards at 2007 Fiscal Year-End

o Option Awards(1) Stock Awards(1)
T . i . . Equity Equity Incentive
’ i Incentive Plan . Plan Awards:
Number of Awards: Market or
Securities Number of Number of Payout Value of
Underlying Securities . Unearned Unearned
Unexercised  Underlying Option Shares, Units or Shares,
Options Unexercised  Exercise Option Other Rights | Units or Other
{#) Options {#) Price Expiration That Have Not  Rights That Have
Name : *  Exercisable Unexercisable %) Date Vested (#) Not Vested (8),
David L. Hatcher ....... B .
J Neal Butler ......... 5,000 4.37 3/8/2016 30,972 642,669
i : 15,000 437 . 3/8/2017. .
' - 15,000 - 4.37 3/8/2018
15,000 437  3/82019
15,000 - 437 3/8/2020
) 15,000 4,37 3/8/2021
15,000 437 3/8/2022
15,000 437 3/8/2023
L . 15000 437 382024
John V. Sobchak . ... ... 5,000 : 3.58  6/26/20i5 * . 18,588 385,701
7,500 3.58 6/26/2016
2,500 3.58 6/26/2017
2,500 3.58 6/26/2018
2,500 3.58 6/26/2019
2,500 3.58 6/26/2020
2,500 3.58 6/26/2021
Roger C. Jackson. . . . ... 50,000 400 7312012 13453 279,150
Thomas H. Mitchell . . . .. 2,000 288  10/30/2013 8,045 166,934
2,000 2.88  10/30/2014 .
o £ < 2,000 2.88  10/30/2015
2,000 .2.88  10/30/2016

2,000 2.88  10/30/2017

(1) Outstanding option awards reflect grants under our 1996 Stock Option Plan which terminated
effective July 31, 2007. Stock awards reflect grants of performance-based restricted stock awards
under our 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan. See the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section
of this Proxy Statement and note 14 of our audited consolidated financial statements in our report
on Form 10-K for the year ended July 31, 2007.
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The following table presents information respecting options exercised by named executive officers
during fiscal year 2007. There were no stock awards vested in fiscal year 2007. )

Option Exercises and Stock Vested in Fiscal Year, 2007

Option Awards

Name . , . ‘ Number of Shares Acquired on Exercise (#) Value Realized On Exercise ($)(1)
David L. Hatcher .. ........... — ‘ —

¥ Neal Butler. . ... ........... 25,000 L 465,500

John V. Sobchak .. .\ oL 25,000 | 467,000

Roger C. Jackson . ............ 100,000 : 1,599,000 T
Thomas H. Mitchell ........... 130,250 '2,842;219‘ o

(1) The value realized is calculated by multiplying the spread between the market price on the date of
exercise and the exercise price of the optien by the number of shares acquired on exercise,

The table below presents information respecting our Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan.

Pension Benefits for the 2007 Fiscal Year

Number of Years of-
Credited Service Present Value of Accumulated Payments during Last
Name, Plan Name (#) Benefit ($) Fiscgl Year ()
David L. Hatcher . .
J. Neal Butler . . ..

John V. Sobchak . .

Roger C. Jackson . . .
Thomas H. Supplemental 179 364,226 —

Mitchell . . ... .. Executive Retirement "
Plan(1) " '

-

(1) Thomas H. Miichell is the only participant in our Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan.
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For a description of payments on termination and change of control, see the Employment

Agreements section of the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section of this Proxy.

The table below presents information respecting compensation paid to non-employee directors in

fiscal year 2007. We also reimburse our directors for travel, lodging and related expenses incurred in
attending Board, committee or other business meetings.

Non-Employee Director Compensation in Fiscal 2007

Non-Equity
Incentive
Fees Earned Option Plan
Or Paid in Stock Awards Awards Compensation All Other Total
Name . Cash ($)(1) ($)(2) (3] %) . Compensation $)
George W, Gilman . .. .. ... 40,225 43,600 —_ —_— —_— 83,825
Fred C. Leonard, III ... ... 43,025 43,600 — — — 86,625
Charles L. Mears ... ...... 28,025 43,600 —_ —_ — 71,625
Charles M. Neff, Jr. ....... 39,025 43,600 — —_ —_ 82,625
Stephen A. Thorington . . . . . 9,625 29,067 — — - 38,692
Richard L. Urbanowski. .. .. 41,925 43,600 — — — 85,525

(1)

2)

Compensation of non-employee directors changed during fiscal year 2007. Currently, each director
is paid a fee of $1,650 for each regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors, and paid an
annual retainer of $16,500 per year. Directors are also paid $1,100 for attending committee
meetings and business meetings, and the chair of each committee is paid a retainer of $4,000 per
year, except for the chair of the Audit Committee who is paid a retainer of $8,000 per year.
Annual retainers are paid quarterly. Directors are reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses incurred
in attending meetings and for other expenses incurred in performing.in their capacity as directors.

Stock awards reflect the award of 4,355 shares of Common Stock on January 16, 2007 to each
non-employee director other than Mr. Thorington. The grant date fair value was $10.01 per share.
Mr. Thorington joined the Board of Directors in May, 2007, and the amount of his stock award
was prorated to 2,100 shares. The grant date of his award was May 22, 2007, and the fair value at
that date was $13.84 per share. Stock awards were of full shares and fractional shares were paid in
cash. '
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. PROPOSAL 2:
TO RATIFY THE APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors has appointed UHY LLP as independent registered public accounting firm
and auditors to conduct the annual audit of our accounts for fiscal year 2008. Although action by the
shareholders in this matter is not required, the Board of Directors believes that it is appropriate to
seck shareholder ratification of this appointment in light of the important role played by the
independent auditors in maintaining the integrity of our financial controls and reporting. If ratification
of the appointment is not approved, the Board of Directors will reconsider the appointment. A
representative of UHY LLP will be present at the Annual Meeting and will have the opportunity, if he
so desires, to respond to appropriate questions,

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote to ratify the appointment of UHY LLP as our
independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year 2008. Unless otherwise indicated, all
properly executed proxies received by us will be voted “FOR” such ratification at the Annual Meeting.

Principal Accounting Firm Fees

The aggregate fees billed by our independent registered public accounting firm and auditors, UHY
LLP and its predecessor firms, for professional services rendered to us for the two fiscal years ended
July 31 were as follows:

2007 2006
Audit Fees ... .............. e e e $227.448  $160,908
Tax Fees . ... .. . e — —
All Other Fees . . ... i ittt i e i e e e 17,037 89,647

Total ... $244,485 $250,555

The policy of the Audit Committee is to pre-approve all audit and non-audit services conducted by
our independent registered public accounting firm and auditors. Under the policy, pre-approval is
required before the independent accountants are engaged for the particular services. 'The amount
described as “All Other Fees” in fiscal year 2007 was for services rendered primarily for minor technical
assistance, and for fiscal year 2006 the amount was almost entirely to assist us in connection with other
filings with the SEC. The Audit Committee has considered whether the provision of the services
included in other fees is compatible with maintaining the independence of our independent registered
accounting firm and auditors.
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Section 16(A) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Based solely on a review of Forms 3, 4 and 5 and amendments thereto furnished to us, we know of
no failure in Section 16{a) beneficial ownership reporting compliance except that through inadvertence
certain executives and directors filed late.

Shareholder Proposals for 2008 Annual Meeting

Any shareholder who intends to present a proposal at the 2008 Annual Meeting of Sharcholders
must file such proposal with us by June 30, 2008, for possible inclusion in our proxy statement and
form of proxy relating to that meeting,

Other Matters

The Board of Directors knows of no matters other than those stated above which are to be
brought before the Annual Meeting. However, if any such other matters should be presented for
consideration and voting, the persons named in the proxy to vote thereon will do so in accordance with
their judgment.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Roger C. Jackson
Secretary
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Shareholder Information

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Communications concerning the transfer of shares, lost

certificates, or changes of address for registered shares
should be directed to the transfer agent;

Securities Transfer Corporation,

2591 Dallas Parkway, Suite 102, Frisco, Texas 75034
Voice: 469.633.0101 Fax: 469.633.0088
Email: info@stctransfer.com
Website: www.stctransfer.com

Direct Stock Purchase Plan

The Company has a Direct Stock Purchase Plan (DSPP)
for registered shareholders. Participants may invest in
KMG commeon stock at current market prices without
service fees or brokerage commissions, and automatically
reinvest KMG dividends into additional common shares.
Participants may also use the plan to make gifts of KMG
common stock, deposit existing stock certificates for
safekeeping and sell KMG shares,

Securities Transfer Corporation (STC) is the plan
administrator. The DSPP prospectus can be obtained from
KMG's website, www.kmgchemicals.com, at STC's website,
www.stctransfer.com, or by calling 713.600.3814. This is
not an offer to sell or a solicitation to buy securities,
which are only offered by prospectus.

Shareholder Services

KMG maintains an internal financial mailing list and can
email you when news releases are distributed. To sign up,
visit the website at www.kmgchemicals.com and click on
Investor Relations. You can also request that certain finan-
cial information be mailed to you on a one-time basis, by
contacting the corporate office.

Code of Business Conduct

KMG's Code of Business Conduct can be viewed and
downloaded from the home page of the Company's
website at www.kmgchemicals.com, Copies are also
available at no charge by contacting John V. Sobchak,
Chief Financial Officer, at the address at right by email,
phone, fax or letter.

Form 10-K

Additional copies of the KMG Chemicals, Inc. Form 10-K,
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, can
be downloaded from the Company website and are also
available upon written request to the corporate offices.

NASDAQ Prices for KMG Common Stock ($ per share)

High Low
Q1 ending October 31, 2006 9.62 7.50
Q2 ending January 31, 2007 10.75 8.81
Q3 ending April 30, 2007 1250 9.30
Q4 ending July 31, 2007 28.25 11.20

As of October 12, 2007, there were 10,911,599 shares of
common stock outstanding, held by approximately 500
shareholders of record,

Independent Accountants
UHY LLP - Houston, Texas

Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Measure to GAAP

Net income before the impairment charge is a measure
not recognized in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles { GAAP) and should not be
considered an alternative to, or more meaningful than,
GAAP measures of performance. Net income before the
impairment charge has been presented as a supplemental
disclosure because the impairment charge is a non-cash
expense of a sufficient size that management believes its
impact on net income is material information for investors.

Investor Inquiries on Company Activities
Inquiries about KMG are welcome by email, phone, fax or
letter. Please direct them to:

John V. Sobchak, Chief Financial Officer
KMG Chemicals, Inc.

10611 Harwin Drive, Suite 402
Houston, Texas 77036-1534

Voice: 713.600.3814 Fax: 713.600.3850
Email: jsobchak@kmgchemicals.com

Reconciliation of Net Income Before

the Impairment Charge to Net Income

{thousands, except per share amounts} Fiscal Years Ended Juty 31

2007 2006

Net Income Before the Impairment Charge  $8,849  $5,294
Impairment Charge - {2,368)
Income Tax Benefit (35.9%) - 850

Net Income $8,849 $3,776

The information in thix document includes certain forward-looking statements that are hased upon assumptions that in the future may prove not to have been
accurate and are subject o certain risks and uncerainties, including statements as to the future performance of the company. Although the company believes
that the expeciations reflected in its forward-looking statements are reasonable, it can give no assurance that such expectations or any of its forward-looking
statements will prove 1o be correct. Fuctors that could cause results 1o differ include, but are not limited to, successful performance of internal plans, product
development acceplance, the impact of competitive services and pricing and general economic risk and uncertainties.
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